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Mission Statement

Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited aims
at strengthening economic cooperation between the brotherly people
of Saudi Arabia and Pakistan. To achieve this objective, we are commit-
ted to add value for our stakeholders through capital formation and
investment related activities in Pakistan and abroad.

Corporate Vision

To excel and play a leading role in the financial sector in Pakistan.

Corporate Objectives

P

Promote investment in industrial
and agro-based projects with high
value addition, export potential,
and maximum utilization of indige-
Nnous resources.

Build and manage a diversified
equity portfolio promising optimum
return.

Mobilize funds in a cost effective

manner to meet our
needs.

Achieve sustainable growth and be
competitive in our commercial oper-
ations.

Undertake investment advisory
services and formation/participa-

tion in financing syndicates.

financing

Core Values

P
P

Professionalism in our conduct.
Competitiveness in our business.

Transparency in our operations.
Ethics in our dealings.
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Corporate

Profile

Saudi Pak Industrial and
Agricultural Investment
Company Limited was
incorporated in 1981
under a joint venture
agreement between the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
and the Government of
Islamic Republic of Paki-

stan. The initial autho-
rized capital of the Com-
pany was Rs.1,000
million. As of December
31, 2022 paid up capital
of the Company is
Rs.6,765 million.
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Islamic
Republic
Saudi of

Arabia Pakistan

(Through Ministry of Finance) (Through State Bank of Pakistan)

Percent Each

Saudi Pak has a diverse product range to cater the growing needs of its corporate
customers in the private and public sectors. The product mix and services comprise of:

B Project Finance.

® Medium to long term loans.

® [ease financing.

® Term Finance Certificates (TFCs).

® Long Term Finance for Export Oriented Projects (LTF-EOP).

Short term loans to meet the working capital requirements.

Direct equity investments.

Underwriting of public issues of shares and Term Finance Certificates.
Non-funded commitments in the form of Letter of Comfort etc.
Syndication, Trusteeship, Acting as Financial Arranger/ Advisor and Consultancy
services.
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Financial Highlights

(Rs. in million)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Profit & Loss

Net mark-up income 743.05 | 60320 | 763.28| 992.24 |1,430.58 | 499.29
Non mark-up income 732.25 | 445.60 | 426.08 611.52 | 301.35| 740.24
Total income 1,475.30 | 1,048.80 | 1,189.36 | 1,603.76 | 1,731.93 | 1,239.53
Non mark-up expenses 376.79 | 427.58 | 455.98| 454.68 | 530.59| 527.56
Provisions and write-offs (net) 238.61| (77.23) | 328.49| 340.28 | (139.72) | 318.01
Profit before tax 859.91 | 698.46 | 404.90 | 808.80 | 1,341.06 | 393.95
Profit after tax 627.32 | 407.55| 267.07 | 616.25| 922.32| 310.78
Profitability Ratios

Return on equity 5.10% 328% | 2.08% | 476% | 6.74% | 218%
Return on assets 2.70% 1.97% 0.95% | 1.44% 1.99% | 0.63%
Cost / income ratio 26% 41% 38% 28% 31% 43%

Balance Sheet

Total assets 22,167 19,191 | 37,085 | 48,236 | 44,688 | 53,607
Advances - gross 10,584 10,028 | 10,109 9,345 9,09 | 1,475
Advances - net 8,458 7,865 7,869 6,811 6,868 9,119
Non-performing loans 2,593 3,10 | 4,069 3,895 2,387 2,778
Investments - net 9,468 4,159 | 23,904 | 35,557 31,131| 36,321
Borrowings 9,077 5,771 | 22,759 | 32,320 | 26,457 | 36,775
Deposits 8 8 510 2,446 2,912 1,953
Shareholder's equity 12,205 12,649 | 13,003 12,912 | 14,459 | 14,044
Asset Quality & Other Ratios

NPL to gross advances 24% 31% 40% 42% 26% 24%
Specific provisioning coverage ratio| 82% 70% 55% 65% 94% 82%
Capital adequacy ratio 45% 47% 45% 38% 47% 43%
Net stable funding ratio 127% 18% 154% 184% 167% 169%

Share Information
Earnings per share 0.950 0.618 0.405 | 0.934 1.363 0.459
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Summary of
Consolidated Accounts

(Rs. in million)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Income Statement
Total income 2,006.3 | 1,493.2 | 2,782.6 | 4,383.9 | 4,057.6 | 5,958.6
Net income 1,513.7 | 1,087.6 | 1,225.0 | 1,645.6 | 1,768.5 | 1,297.3
Profit before tax 870.1 702.4 4235 836.3 | 13716 4431
Profit after tax 631.9 409.7 2832 | 6405 953.0 | 352.8
Balance Sheet at year end
Total shareholders' equity 12,383.6 | 12,828.7 | 13,200.1| 13,132.9 | 14,710.2 | 14,337.0
Total assets 22,462.4| 19,447.2 | 37,282.8| 48,443.1 |44,940.9/53,875.3
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Chairman’s Message

On behalf of the Board of Directors, |
present the 41st audited financial state-
ments of Saudi Pak Industrial and Agri-
cultural Investment Company Limited,
including consolidated accounts and
the accompanying Auditors’ Report
and Directors’ Report for the year
ended December 31, 2022.

During the year, the management
focused on consolidating balance
sheet, recovering non- performing
loans and managing counterparty
credit exposures that mounted due to
the rising inflationary impacts, fluctuat-
ing exchange parities and interest
rates volatility in the market.

The company disbursed financing of
Rs. 3.76 billion during the year, which
contributed to an increase in total
assets of 20%. The profitability of the
company remained under stress due
to the impact of volatile interest rates
on the company’s Treasury earnings.
The company recorded profit before
tax of Rs. 394 million with a profit after
tax of Rs. 311 million. The credit quality
and financial stability of the company
were reconfirmed by the credit rating
agency VIS, which maintained our
long-term entity rating at AA+ and
short- term rating at A-1+ with a stable
outlook.

Moving forward, the company
remains well-positioned to capitalize
on available opportunities while close-
ly monitoring the overall economic
climate to mitigate any potential risks.
The Board of Directors fully supports
the management's plans.

The Board of Directors warmly
welcomes the new CEO, Mr. Rizwan
Sheikh, who joined on January 2,
2023, and expresses its gratitude for
the contributions of former CEO, Mr.
Kamal Uddin Khan, over his more than
a decade of association with the com-

pany.

We acknowledge the support of our
sponsors, the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and the Islamic Republic of Paki-
stan, as well as the professional guid-
ance of the State Bank of Pakistan and
the Securities Exchange Commission
of Pakistan. | am also thankful to the
Board Members, management, and
staff for their contributions to the com-
pany's performance.

Thank you for your continued
support.

TR

Sultan Abdulrauf
Chairman
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Directors’ Report

Economic Overview

After witnessing brisk growth of
597% during FY22, the economy
showed broad-based moderation in
H1-FY23, in response to policy tighten-
ing and exogenous shocks such as
floods. Indicator data such as auto,
POL, and cement sales, as well as
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large-scale manufacturing output saw
a decline. The agricultural sector
faced challenges with crop production
lower than expected. Companies cut
production amidst supply shortages.

Foreign exchange reserves came

under pressure during the year due to




a lack of fresh financial inflows and
ongoing debt repayments. Impact of
sharp decline in imports, due to both
policy tightening and administrative
measures, was partially offset by
declines in export receipts and remit-
tances. The completion of the 9th
review under the IMF's Extended Fund
Facility (EFF) remained pending at the
end of the year.

The Rupee depreciated from PKR /
USD 176.51 at the start of the year to
PKR / USD 226.43 by year-end.

National CPI inflation increased from
12.3 percent y/y at the start of the
year to close at 24.5 percent y/y in
December 2022. State Bank of Paki-
stan increased the policy rate from
9.75 percent to 16 percent by
year-end.

The macro conditions negatively
impacted business confidence as well
as financial markets which remained
highly volatile. On the domestic credit
front, the pace of loans given out for
working capital and investment in

fixed assets showed moderation.
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Operational Overview
Corporate Finance

The business times continue to be
uncertain with marked increase in
markup rates and high inflationary
pressures significantly reducing the
commercial activities and the general
credit off take in the market. There are
also continued constraints for foreign
currency which has led to reduced
imports and pressure on the Pakistan
Rupee further decreasing commercial
activity. Given the rise in the discount
rate there is evident enhanced due
diligence by banks to allow new cred-
its. Accordingly, Saudi Pak remained
highly watchful and booked only quali-
ty assets during the year 2022.

Our focus is on high yielding business
opportunities and the goal remains to
retain top tiered names to meet the
requisite standard of rewards whilst
maintaining low risk profile of our port-
folio. Quality assets were booked in
Cement, Automobile and Allied, Elec-
tricity Engineering / Power Transmis-

sion, Paper & Board, Hospitality and IT
industries with a total disbursement in
advances of Rs. 3,756M coupled with
approved Rs. 792M, awaiting disburse-
ment.

The trend in FY 2022-23 is deemed to
continue to be that of the previous
year. Saudi Pak will however continue
the vigilance and be adaptive of the
current scenario whilst allowing credit
as well as maintaining our investments
for sustainable operations.

The Management anticipates that
there can be delayed repayments
from existing regular loan portfolio
and risk of increase in NPLs cannot be
precluded due to which a general
provisioning of Rs.86.384 million, i.e.
“1%” of regular loan portfolio (exclud-
ing staff advances) has been provided
in the accounts for year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2022 and will be continued in
subsequent years.
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Special Asset Management

Special Asset Management Division
(SAMD) remained focused on the
reduction of Non- Performing Loans
(NPLs) during the year. In the difficult
business conditions, besides litigation,
SAMD effectively managed to reduce
the NPLs through out of court settle-
ments with the chronic loan defaulters
and contributed significantly towards
Saudi Pak profit.

The year ahead is expected to remain
challenging, however, SAMD is intend-
ing to make further concerted efforts
for recovery of NPLs, cleansing of
balance sheet through execution of
decree along with negotiated out of
court settlement deals which will
further reduce the NPLs.

Capital Market Operations

The PSX Benchmark Index, the
KSE-100, returned -9.36% for CY22 as
compared with 1.92% for CY21. This
lackluster performance was primarily
driven by domestic macroeconomic
challenges, political uncertainty and a
global economic trend of increasing
inflation coupled with higher interest
rates.

On gross basis, PMD reported total
income of Rs.510 million for CY22 as
compared with Rs.468 million for

—RE

CY21. After factoring in impairment,
net earnings of PMD stood at Rs.246
million.

Despite the stock market witnessing
its worst performance in the last five
years with a negative return of 9.36%,
Saudi Pak listed stock operations at
PMD produced positive return. In
terms of relative return basis against
the Benchmark Index, PMD’s Listed
Common-Stock  Portfolio  outper-
formed the Index by 9.49%.
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Treasury

Treasury Division, during the vyear,
carried out effective funds manage-
ment by maintaining an active pres-
ence in the money market. Fresh
funds were raised by Treasury and
inflows received from recovery of
loans were deployed optimally.

Treasury increased its weightage on
floating-rate  Pakistan  Investment

Bonds (PIBs) with focus on minimizing
interest rate risk resulting from drastic
upward shift in monetary policy by
Central Bank in the backdrop of higher
inflation, current account deficit and

substantial depreciation in Pak Rupee
value.

As an alternative funding source, COI
deposits were maintained. On liability
/ sustainable fund mobilization side,
Treasury Division continued to make
progress in meeting this crucial goal.
In light of changing macro-economic
dynamics, Treasury Division will focus
on optimizing risk reward metrics of
the Treasury investment portfolio and
continue to enhance the funding
sources.

@lmunlm 'ul
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Information Technology

During 2022, the company upgraded
its Technology Governance Frame-
work to streamline the IT operations
using best practices. Moreover, follow-
ing the industry standards and reflect-
ing the regulatory landscape, IT infra-
structure was further improved using
evolving technologies for strengthen-
ing the security controls and IT Gover-
nance, Plan is also underway in year
2023 to upgrade the Data Center host-
ing the core services, SBP Data Inspec-
tion System, automation of complete

SAUDI PAK
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life cycle of Audit System and making
partnership with Fintech companies,
aligning to Organizational objectives.

Disaster Recovery Site has been setup
with complete IT infrastructure to
effectively manage and ensure the
continuation of critical business opera-
tions, coping up with localized or
global disasters. It provides reliability,
trust and strengthens the confidence
of our prestigious clients.



Human Resources

The company takes pride in hiring
best talent and providing them with an
environment full of opportunities and
growth. The Company believes in
investing in the growth and develop-
ment of employees and fosters a chal-
lenging work environment where
merit and performance help the
individuals to explore their true poten-
tial.

We strongly believe in providing equal
opportunity, encourage diversity and
inclusion, learn through targeted learn-
ing programs, and grow within ranks.
Key positions are filled internally and
externally to strengthen top team and
middle management. From functional
training to behavioral skills develop-
ment, our learning framework ensures
that our people are equipped with the
right capability and provided with the

conducive environment to deliver
results.

A high level of enthusiasm, energy
and motivation are essential in achiev-
ing greater job performance, creativi-
ty, productivity and innovation. Attain-
ing this goal is our top objective at
Saudi Pak. This is why HR fosters
people engagement and despite the
challenges, successfully and safely
conducts several employee engage-
ment activities every year to keep the
spirits high.

HR pledges to meet the challenge
with new policies, services, and assis-
tance that our people and the Compa-
ny need to meet the business goals
and objectives more efficiently and
effectively.
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Risk Management Framework

The company has put in place a com-
prehensive risk management frame-
work that is overseen by the Board of
Directors and its Risk Management
Committee and is in compliance with
regulatory standards. It includes
policies, procedures, limits, reporting
mechanisms, and independent control
functions aimed at identifying, commu-
nicating and managing risks within the
company's approved risk appetite.

The credit risk management process
is an essential part of the risk manage-
ment framework and involves a
systematic evaluation of credit risk
exposures. The processincludes evalu-
ating the obligor's risk, facility risk,
and environmental risk, securing
advances with collateral, conducting
stress testing, and regularly reporting
to the Credit Risk Management Com-
mittee. The company has internal
controls and processes in place to
manage credit risk, including credit
approval and monitoring mechanisms,
borrower/counterparty, group, and
sectoral limits, and personnel training.
The Risk Management Division
conducts independent reviews for
new and existing credit exposures
throughout the year, closely monitor-
ing portfolio concentrations, risk
levels, and managing the watchlisting
process in the evolving economic
conditions. During 2022, the company
has taken steps to further strengthen
controls in the credit approval, admin-
istration, monitoring, and reporting
processes to ensure that credit risks
remain within manageable limits.

SAUDI PAK
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The market risk management process
is equally important, and the company
has defined market risk management
policies and limits to control market
risk levels. Risk is monitored and
analyzed daily by an independent
Market & Liquidity Risk / Middle Office
unit, using various techniques includ-
ing marking-to-market, PVBP, beta,
Value-at-Risk (VaR), and sensitivity
analyses. The company managesinter-
est rate risk in the banking book
through gap analysis and a static simu-
lation model, with results included in
management and board reporting.
The company has established dura-
tion limits and sensitivity thresholds to
control interest rate risk in the trading
and banking book respectively, and
scrip-wise, sectoral, and portfolio
limits are in place to control equity
price risk. During the year, daily
market and liquidity risk monitoring
was conducted and escalated as
necessary, along with detailed month-
ly deliberation of market and interest
rate risk by Assets and Liability Man-
agement Committee (ALCO).

The company strives to maintain
acceptable liquidity levels over the
short and long-term supported by
policies such as the Liquidity Risk
Policy, Treasury Policy, and Contingen-
cy Funding Plan. The Treasury
Division is responsible for managing
liquidity risk and ensuring that the
company can meet its funding needs,
with a focus on gap management,
diversification of sources, and compli-
ance with regulatory limits. The ALCO



provides additional oversight, and the
Market & Liquidity Risk/Middle Office
Unit independently reviews and moni-
tors liquidity risk, with regular report-
ing and stress testing.

Operational risk management is
governed by the Operational Risk Man-
agement Framework and Operational
Risk Policy, which have been approved
by the Board of Directors. The
process involves three lines of
defense, with line management as the
first, the Operational Risk Manage-
ment Unit as the second, and Internal
Audit as the third. Operational Risk
Coordinators from each division work
with the ORMU to identify, analyze,
and mitigate operational risks, and the
senior management-level Operational
Risk Management Committee meets
quarterly to ensure that actions are
being taken to manage operational
risks. The company has a Business
Continuity Plan, Technology Gover-
nance Framework, IT Security Policy,

and KYC/AML Policies in place to
address different aspects of opera-
tional risk management. The basic
indicator approach has been applied
for operational risk, with a fully imple-
mented loss data process. During the
year, operational improvements were
made through the ongoing use of
RCSAs, KRIs, and risk incident report-
ing. Scenario analysis was introduced.
Information security risk assessments
were conducted and information secu-
rity reporting mechanisms were
streamlined.

At the enterprise level, Saudi Pak's
Capital Adequacy Ratio remained well
above both internal and regulatory
requirements throughout the vyear,
providing a strong buffer against unex-
pected losses. Stress testing exercis-
es revealed that the company main-
tained a robust capital and liquidity
position even under stress.
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Internal Audit

During the year, post-Covid normaliza-

tion, the audit activities were
performed in a more acclimatized
manner while ensuring compliance

with the applicable requirements and
procedures. Consistent with past prac-
tices, the Internal Audit Division (IAD)
of Saudi Pak remained focused on its
multiyear strategy to achieve its
long-term goals on best effort basis.
Major achievements included: Devel-
opment of the existing staff through
acquiring prestigious qualifications,
i.e., Certified Internal Auditor (IlA) and
Chartered Accountancy (ICAP); and
finalization of the Audit software

Auditors

The Auditors, M/s Grant Thornton
Anjum Rehman, Chartered Accoun-
tants, have completed their assign-
ment for the year ended December 31,
2022. The Board on the proposal of

Future Outlook

There is limited visibility and the over-
all economic situation in Pakistan
remains complex and multifaceted,
with a number of headwinds. The com-
pany will continue to monitor these
issues to mitigate any potential nega-
tive impacts. The company recognizes
the need to adapt to a fast-changing
and competitive world and is focused
on earning market leadership by rein-
forcing policies, processes, and cost
control frameworks. The aim is to be a
financially sustainable, develop-

SAUDI PAK
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design.

The |IAD followed its approved
risk-based audit plan to conduct its
audit activities. A continued emphasis
was ensured on value addition
through enhancement of control struc-
ture by making suitable recommenda-
tions in result of evaluations conduct-
ed by IAD. The year ended with the
review and revision of audit policies
and procedures as per the latest
requirements; and increase in the staff
strength along with the impartation of
professional skill enhancing trainings,
where required.

the Audit Committee, recommends
the appointment of M/s Grant Thorn-
ton Anjum Rehman, Chartered
Accountants as Auditors for the year
2023.

ment-focused financial institution with
afocus oninnovation and risk manage-
ment. Innovative financing solutions,
venturing into  structured trade
finance and inclusive development
finance, partnership with fintech
entities, promotion of capital forma-
tion initiatives, and exploring opportu-
nities in real estate investment trusts
will be explored. The ultimate goal is
to leverage the growth trajectory of
KSA and support bilateral trade and
investment opportunities.



Entity Rating

Saudi Pak’s long term and short-term entity rating has been
assessed by VIS Credit Rating Company Limited. Long Term entity
rating has been reaffirmed at AA+ (Double A Plus) and Short-Term
entity rating reaffirmed at A-1+ (A One Plus). Outlook on assigned
rating has been “Stable”.

Credit Rating

By VIS Credit Rating Company Limited.

e

High credit quality. Protection

factors are strong. Risk is modest
but may vary slightly from time to
time because of economic condi-
tions.

Short Term A-1+

Highest certainty of timely pay-
ment. Short Term liquidity, includ-
ing internal operating factors
. and/or access to alternative sourc-
es of funds, is outstanding and
safety is just below risk-free Gov-
Outlook

ernment of Pakistan’s Short Term

obligations.
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Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

a)

b)

d)

e)

The financial statements, prepared
by the management of the Compa-
ny, present fairly its state of affairs,
the result of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity.
Proper books of accounts of the
Company have been maintained.
Appropriate accounting policies
have consistently been applied in
preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are
based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

International Accounting  Stan-
dards, as applicable in Pakistan,
have been followed in preparation
of financial statements and any
departure there from has adequate-
ly been disclosed.

The system of internal control is
sound in design and has been effec-
tively implemented and monitored.
An audit committee, composed of
four non-executive directors, has
been formed for the purpose. The

f)

9)

h)

),

Committee meets periodically and
independently  throughout the
year.

There are no significant doubts
upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
There has been no material depar-
ture from the best practices of
corporate governance.

Key operating and financial data
for the last six years, in summarized
form, is included in this annual
report.

There are no statutory payments
on account of taxes, duties, levies
and charges which are outstanding
as of December 31, 2022, except as
disclosed in the financial state-
ments.

The value of investment of Provi-
dent Fund as at December 31, 2022
according to their unaudited finan-

cial statement is approximately
Rs.99.5 million (2021: Rs.113.5
million).
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Board of Directors Meetings

During the year, six meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attended
by the directors as follows:

Number of Number of
meetings held meetings attended
during the tenor | during the tenor
of Directorship of Directorship

Name of Directors

Mr. Sultan Abdulrauf

Mr. Zafar Hasan

Mr. Majid Misfer J. Alghamdi

Mr. Mohammad Tanvir Butt

Mr. Ghanem Alghanem

DO O OO
DO OO O

Mr. Qumar Sarwar Abbasi

During the year, two meetings of the Risk Management Committee of the Board
were held and attended by the directors as follows:

Mr. Zafar Hasan

Mr. Majid Misfer J. Alghamdi

Mr. Qumar Sarwar Abbasi

NINININ
NINININ

Mr. Ghanem Alghanem

During the year, four meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board were held
and attended by the directors as follows:

Mr. Ghanem Alghanem

Mr. Mohammad Tanvir Butt

Mr. Qumar Sarwar Abbasi

N NN
MDA WH

Mr. Majid Misfer J. Alghamdi

During the year, three meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Com-
mittee of the Board were held and attended by the directors as follows:

Mr. Sultan Abdulrauf

Mr. Zafar Hasan

Mr. Mohammad Tanvir Butt

W Ww
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Mr. Ghanem Alghanem

Mr. Majid Misfer J. Alghamdi 2 2

The categories and pattern of shareholding as required by the Companies Act,
2017 are included in this Report. The Government of Pakistan and the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia hold the shares of the Company in equal proportion.
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Green Banking Initiative

Saudi Pak continues to support Government of Pakistan’s environmental sustain-
ability related initiatives and steps taken by State Bank of Pakistan for promot-
ing green banking and environment friendly business projects. The green bank-
ing policy of Saudi Pak and environmental risk management manual documents
are in place and being implemented. Saudi Pak looks forward to extend its com-
plete financial support to business entrepreneurs for their eco-friendly ventures.
Several other steps have been taken internally to encourage environmentally

sustainable growth.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a fully committed corporate citizen
of the country Saudi Pak is well aware
of its social responsibilities. During
2022, Saudi Pak made donations to
Prime Minister’s Flood Relief Fund as

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

well as organizations working on
cancer treatment, education for blind
students, and granting the wishes of
children with life-threatening illnesses
in Pakistan.



Strategic Investments

Saudi Pak’s strategic investments include Saudi Pak Real Estate Limited and

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited.

Saudi Pak
Real Estate Limited

Saudi Pak Real Estate Limited (SPR)
showed improved performance in
all segments of its operations in
CY22. SPR is steadily attaining
strength both in terms of income
generation potential and resource
base. Enhanced profitability over
the last few years is mainly contribut-
ed by improved rental income,
various cost-cutting initiatives and
steady capital gains.

Net profit after tax of the Company
increased by ~191% in last three
years with notable increase of ~46%

from last financial year. Going
forward, SPR is envisaging growth
strategy with focus on enhanced
profitability through investment in
the core business including invest-
ment in REITSs.

Head Office Building

Saudi Pak owns a twenty storey High
Rise Building in Islamabad known as
Saudi Pak Tower. The building,
constructed in the year 1991, is known
as a landmark of Islamabad.

A major portion of the building is
rented out. Several national and multi-
national companies including financial
institutions, telecommunication com-
panies, clinical service-oriented
concerns etc. are housed in the
Tower. The average building occupan-
cy level in the year 2022 was 97%
whereas, the occupancy from

Saudi Pak Leasing

Company Limited

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited
(SPLQC) is an associated company of
Saudi Pak by virtue of its 15,835,403
fully paid-up ordinary voting shares
(35.06% of total ordinary shares)
and 33,320,850 unencumbered and
fully paid-up preference shares
(63.08% of total preference shares).

Saudi Pak is actively engaged in
divestment of SPLC, the process of
which is at an advanced stage and is
pending approval of the SECP for a
potential qualified buyer.

September 2022 to December 2022
remained 100% translating to revenue
of Rs.465 million as compared to
Rs.412 million in the year 2021.

Several initiatives were taken to
strengthen the building services and
safety during 2022 which are complet-
ed / in advanced stage of completion.
During 2023, Head Office Building
Department will continue its efforts to
materialize further improvements for
the betterment in overall building
services.
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Financial Results — 2022

During the extremely difficult operat-
ing environment amidst economic chal-
lenges and financial markets volatility,
Saudi Pak disbursed Rs.3.7 billion
loans in project financing without com-
promising on credit quality. Focus
remained on reducing risk, book
cleansing and recoveries.

During the vyear, Saudi Pak’s total
assets increased by 20% as Rs.7
billion PIB floating rate bonds were
added thereby increasing its share to
73% of total PIBs portfolio, which
offset the negative drag on fixed rate
PIBs. Investment in quoted stocks
reduced by 9% in terms of year end
carrying value. Dividend income
increased by 25% to Rs. 400.457
million as a result of portfolio alloca-
tion in high dividend yielding stocks.

i -
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Shareholder’s equity decreased by
3.0% compared to previous year as
Rs.165 million cash dividend was
appropriated for payment and there
was a decrease in revaluation surplus
mainly related to mark to market loss
on PIBs. Administrative expenses
reduced by 1% despite high inflation
as a result of effective expense man-
agement. The company prudently
booked provisions of Rs. 318 million
that also included a general provision
of Rs.86.383 million by foreseeing the
possible increase in NPLs.

Overall despite a challenging year
with adverse macro-economic factors,
the company managed to close with
profit before tax of Rs.393.955 million
while profit after tax was Rs.310.784
million.
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The summarized financial results and
recommendation for appropriations are as under:

2022 2021
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Un-appropriated/un-remitted profit 4,169,842,451 | 3,353,786,002

brought forward

Profit after tax for the year 310,784,220 | 922,318,007
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 86,850,400 80,210,443
Other comprehensive income related to equity (139,833) (2,008,400)

Profit available for appropriations

4,567,337,238

4,354,306,052

Appropriations:

Transfer to reserve funds 62,156,844 184,463,601
Transfer to general reserve - -
Bonus Shares Issued 165,000,000 -
Dividend paid 165,000,000 -
Total appropriations 392,156,844 184,463,601
Un-appropriated/un-remitted profit 4,175,180,394 | 4,169,842,451

Acknowledgement

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation of the hard work and dedi-
cation of the management, officers and staff of the Company.

Islamabad
February 25, 2023

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

TR =

Chairman

Annual Report 2022 I 39 -



LEL(PIB)GTY 2 #udi 736920y (PIB)
%Jnd/u*(médv.atfu/wﬁufd’}bu
bl e S0 J;LJL(Carrylng Value)
Juld/l;ﬂy Lz C’L/ulu_a 3 JJMQ o
.auwz5u“c’v%u*a£¢,/ﬂiww*
u‘d:"/'Juubu‘ﬂc-a-uu‘ﬁoo 457&~c.v
165 Bl dndadz 0t d L JotS
d)bﬁu(u)lyl’)dzmwwwu‘jiﬁfl;!dVﬂLu
//Ll/mg/.,;c-‘guu.{tu:(PlBs)4Qdué,p
S bAGEH e L soie fr bl Posal L
La,w,?u“(NPLs)J'dwa—u”{uquM1
u%&g_uu*smc,bw der Ut b
uﬂfé Ju*» S SProvision)el
2 LSS, S 86,383

C i o L3 B s o F b
#310. 784/)|JCJIJ’K¢»J’L393 955&55;;,L
dVJC/sz_u
LJ}CJ)JUP{VVJU//J’@U(}ULJ.LJ/‘J

2021 2022
(c“.._u) (%u)

3,353,786,002| 4,169,842,451 VL T il B A

922,318,007| 310,784,220 BedrFnd £

80,210,443 86,850,400 NP ST

(2,008,400) (139,833) TG e (5K

4,354,306,052|4,567,337,238 ol Lo S P

o

184,463,601| 62,156,844 Flrsisss

- = QEXJ:;L;;J/

-| 165,000,000 S S

-| 165,000,000 Findenss

184,463,601) 392,156,844 NI

4169,842,451| 4,175,180,394 B G

= u(/’ Fa N5 30508 sl 58

‘¢:%") SAUDI PAK
by !} INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
/,-" INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

25 b

A $uu?5.97 S2 LSS 20220 UL
/’L«Luﬂ“f@ubl d/ﬁ/}lL/JU’gtﬁéd/
L e et SRS 20220000
du’ Iz s JVUL»’»L@!L L/VLL U/la{) Ju.ﬂ
UD{ JJ/Q}'“/LKL/A')/J (POL)JM
u‘{/m(fﬂuitzimw Al Crdui LJ
mwwa_u/uftéu@/du/. (el Ee 182
) ST
ua/dl/ubucpﬁd/fbid/ur"/“u’/lp/;!)b/&l)l.rllp
SE2 sl J':JL ( (}UL)J aju" :L;/lp)a':JJVu
_,uftﬁu/cd/u"_,u s (L Uzl
y/.lf’/UJlr‘Lub«Uf/A! ) Jvu !/,/.:/:1’6)1/
U9 eI (I §) b B 5L o 1 3T
,Ld/w)m.,(rwzdvf b
JVL/!;J/!(}L}/(}JL’I?G 51 ULLTZ Ju-
oo 18 3226, 435 L
d&xu“,widt/:dwfédnagf RTINS -
SUaB24 BUE2022 e 2 w12 3USLAS
F B el g e e e Sl
_awucu‘c/&’t_{wmc,wg 75

d"/ L L}UL 2 Sl Jlﬂﬂd/uﬂla dg
(u*&/u’l)_c,l,ul//,’é”ﬂ ,wu*fu’;/ S]]

A!J’/J/Au"ula 214 c/,vVJu/u,b/uC*‘»
u"(dwlu“/wJu//uﬂugw_;izid/{ L~
<

2022- 563U
J’JMJLL(@“l(xu"u/,wdl.mvlbuéb»
/”é };c}‘j)’/uﬂ/Lhﬂvd)ﬂfub))Ldt{//
,’ju"',o J//Lyu/!:_% 7 u"b):%/ Lu)bf‘dt
/U}J)“}AIJ/KJU{JH}’;!(JJJI)_

_c‘.(f/
e 3elaai20 TS S $rrpund Ju
(ddtd)uL_/uwuul/LLL;/.d!? Sl
dd!dfcj’u!‘iiJv(u"u‘i) J).L_//.,C)’zi

sl !
2023.4,9,925



5w
g LT

» -

Fos,
y

A AR A LA A R A AR AL A AL e L

BE RN LE RS R . v
EhﬁnsE.hh diddd £d ada

e i

. = ——— — -




Statement of Compliance
with Code of Corporate Governance

_,1-"
I'L 4
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The statement is being presented
in accordance with the listed Com-
panies (Code of Corporate Gover-
nance) Regulation, 2019 (the Regu-
lations) issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Paki-
stan, which has been voluntarily
adopted by the Company. The Com-
pany has applied the principles
contained in the Code in the follow-
ing manner:

The total number of directors is 6
as per the following detail:

* Male 6

* Female O

The Board comprises of six non-ex-
ecutive directors as follows:

* Mr. Sultan Abdulrauf

Mr. Zafar Hasan

Mr. Mohammad Tanvir Butt

Mr. Majid Misfer J. Alghamdi

Mr. Qumar Sarwar Abbasi

Mr. Ghanem Alghanem

Exemption regarding appointment
of independent director has been
obtained from the State Bank of
Pakistan.

Company has no female represen-
tation on the Board as no nomina-
tion for a female director has been
received from the Governments of
Pakistan and KSA.

The directors have confirmed that
none of them is serving as a direc-
tor on more than seven listed com-
panies, including this company;

During the year 2022, three Direc-
tors representing Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia (KSA) were re-ap-
pointed. The Directors nominated
by the Government of Pakistan
remained unchanged during the
period;

g
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5. The company has prepared a code

of conduct and has ensured that
appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the
company along with its supporting
policies and procedures;

Board has developed a
vision/mission statement, overall
corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board
has ensured that complete record
of particulars of the significant
policies along with their date of
approval or updating is maintained
by the company;

. All the powers of the Board have

been duly exercised and decisions
on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board as empowered
by the relevant provisions of the
Act and these Regulations;

. The meetings of the Board were

presided over by the Chairman
and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this
purpose. The Board has complied
with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recording and circulat-
ing minutes of meeting of the
Board;

Directors, General Man-
ager/Chief Executive and execu-
tives do not hold any interest in the
shares of the Company. State Bank
of Pakistan from its holding has
transferred O1 share in the name of
Director Finance, SBPin arepresen-
tative capacity.

10. The Board have a formal policy and

transparent procedures for remu-
neration of directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations;



1. The following Directors and Execu-
tives have obtained relevant train-
ing (Director Training Program):

ﬁ';') Name of Directors

Mr. Sultan Abdulrauf
Mr. Zafar Hasan

Mr. Mohammad Tanvir Butt
Mr. Majid Misfer J. Alghamdi
Mr. Qumar Sarwar Abbasi

GRIWIN| =

The required training under Director’s
Orientation Program as per regulation
18 of Code of Corporate Governance
Regulations 2019 has been provided
to all the directors, except one. He
was appointed as director in 2020
during the COVID pandemic. His train-
ing as required under the Regulations,
will be completed in the this year.

Sr. Designation

No Name of Executives

1 |Mr. Rizwan Sheikh GM/Chief Executive
2 |Ms. Tayaba Mazhar Company Secretary
3 |Mr. Safdar Abbas Zaidi | Chief Financial Officer

12. The Board has approved appoint-
ment of Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remu-
neration and terms and conditions
of employment and complied with
relevant requirements of the Regu-
lations;

13. Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Executive Officer duly endorsed
the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

14. The Board has formed committees
comprising of members given
below. -

a) Audit Committee:

ﬁ% Names Designation
1 | Mr. Ghanem Alghanem Chairman
2 | Mr. Mohammad Tanvir Butt Member
3 | Mr. Qumar Sarwar Abbasi Member
4 | Mr. Majid Misfer J.Alghamdi Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee:
r.

ﬁlo Names Designation
1 | Mr. Sultan Abdulrauf Chairman
2 | Mr. Zafar Hasan Member
3 | Mr. Mohammad Tanvir Butt Member
4 | Mr. Ghanem Alghanem Member

c) Risk Management Committee:

ﬁ';; Names Designation
1 | Mr. Zafar Hasan Chairman
2 | Mr. Majid Misfer J. Alghamdi Member
3 | Mr. Qumar Sarwar Abbasi Member
4 | Mr. Ghanem Alghanem Member

15. The terms of reference of the afore-
said committees have been
formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance;

16. The frequency of meetings of the
committees were as per following,

Board Committees Frequency of Meeting

Audit Committee

Risk Management
Committee

Quarterly
At least Twice in a year

Human Resource &
Remuneration
Committee

At least Once in a year
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17.

18.

The Board has set up an effective
internal audit function who are
considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and
are conversant with the policies
and procedures of the company;

The statutory auditors of the com-
pany have confirmed that they
have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control
Review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and are registered with Audit Over-
sight Board of Pakistan, that they
and all their partners are in compli-
ance with International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accoun-
tants of Pakistan and that they and
the partners of the firm involved

Islamabad
February 25, 2023
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19.

in the audit are not a close relative
(spouse, parent, dependent and
non- dependent children) of the
chief executive officer, chieffinan-
cial officer, head of internal audit,
company secretary or director of
the company;

The statutory auditors or the
persons associated with them have
not been appointed to provide
other services except in accor-
dance with the Act, these Regula-
tions or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard;

20.We confirm that all requirements

of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

TR

Chairman




Statement on Internal Controls

The Company’s management is responsi-
ble to establish and maintain an adequate
and effective system of internal controls
and procedures. The internal controls
system comprises of various components
including Control Environment, Risk
Assessment, Control Activities, Informa-
tion & Communication and Monitoring.
The management is also responsible for
evaluating the effectiveness of the Com-
pany’s internal controls that encompass
material matters by identifying control
objectives and reviewing significant
policies and procedures.

The Company has adopted an internation-
ally accepted internal control COSO
Framework in accordance with ICFR
guidelines from State Bank of Pakistan
(SBP). Keeping in view of the risk expo-
sure, the control activities are evaluated
across the Company through the Internal
Audit Division, working independently of
the line management. In addition, Compli-
ance Division monitors control activities
related to the regulatory and other proce-
dural compliance requirements. The Audit
Committee of the Board regularly reviews
both internal and external audit reports
and recommends to the Board for
desired corrective measures to be taken
by the Management, wherever required.

The Management of the Company
ensures that an effective and efficient
internal control system stays implement-
ed and no compromises are made in
implementing the desired control proce-
dures and maintaining suitable control
environment in general. However, control
activities are continuous in nature that
include identification, evaluation and man-
agement of significant risks faced by the
Company. The Management strives for
timely and satisfactory response to new
identifications or recommendations by
the risk controlling divisions. Nonetheless,
all internal control systems, no matter
how well designed, have inherent limita-
tions that they may not prevent or detect
all misstatements. Also, projections of

Islamabad
February 25, 2023

any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that
degree of compliance with policies and
procedures may deteriorate.

The Management took sufficiently neces-
sary steps to rectify all observations and
suggestions for improvement raised
during the year by the Internal Audit
Division. Furthermore, regular follow-up
of the internal audit reports were done by
the Compliance Division which ensured
timely implementation of queries raised
and recommendations to mitigate identi-
fied risks to safeguard the interests of the
Company. Based upon the results
achieved through ongoing testing of finan-
cial reporting controls and internal audits
carried out during the year, the manage-
ment considers that the Company's exist-
ing internal control system is adequate
and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

The Company has completed all stages of
its ICFR program as per the guidelines
and has been granted exemption from
the requirement of submission of the
External Auditor’s issued Long Form
report to SBP. Annual assessment report
on the efficacy of ICFR for the year ended
December 31, 2022, was duly prepared
and submitted to the Audit Committee of
the Board in its 103rd meeting for review.

Based on the above, the Board endorses
the management's evaluation of Internal
Controls.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

TR

Chairman
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o GrantThornton

Grant Thornton Anjum
Rahman

302 B, 3rd Floor,
Evacuee Trust Complex,
Aga Khan Road, F-5/1,
Islamabad, Pakistan.

T +92 512271906
F +92 512273874

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by Board of Directors of Saudi Pak Industrial and
Agricultural Investment Company Limited (the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2022 in accordance with
the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance
with the provision of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required
to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form
an opinion on the effectiveness of such controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulation require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respect, with the requirement contained in
the Regulations as applicable to the company for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Geanl Shaeaten Aajum Sl

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: March 02, 2023

UDIN: CR202210164WCHDVYaRr

Chartered Accountants grantthornton.pk

SAUDI PAK
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Financial Statements

for the year ended December 31, 2022
STANDALONE
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o Grant Thornton

Grant Thornton Anjum
Rahman
302 B, 3rd Floor,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Evacuee Trust Complex,

Aga Khan Road, F-5/1,

Islamabad, Pakistan.
To the members of

. . . . T +92 512271906
Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited F +92 512273874

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural
Investment Company Limited (the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2022 and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of
the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated
statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2022
and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

a) We draw attention to note 9.1.2 to the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements describing the effect
of lock-in event in respect of term finance certificates (TFCs). Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

b) We draw attention to note 21.3.1to the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements describing in detail
the tax contingencies. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Chartered Accountants grantthornton.pk
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Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company’s business; and

d) in our opinion, no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).
Other Matter

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 26 March 2022.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Hassaan Riaz.

Gt Theehon degom Gl

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Place: Islamabad

Date: March 02, 2023

UDIN: AR202210164JNgM91vhn

— SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Non-current asset classified as held for sale
Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

General reserve

Surplus on revaluation of assets
Unappropriated/ Unremitted profit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes 1to 43 and annexure | form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

P RCR )

15
16

17
18

19

20

21

2022 2021
116,437,350 101,939,997
127,875,540 134,486,399
36,321,015,128 31,130,696,425

9,119,290,062 6,867,783,165
4,181,796,569 4,243,479,479
6,392,003 6,109,050
58,011,030 -
3,675,883,486 2,203,325,41
53,606,701,168 44,687,819,926
36,774,866,849 26,456,618,972

1,953,000,000

2,911,587,775

= 441,365,024
835,273,389 419,468,403
39,563,140,238 30,229,040,174
14,043,560,930 14,458,779,752
6,765,000,000 6,600,000,000
1,431,486,211 1,369,329,367
358,662,940 358,662,940
1,313,231,385 1,960,944,994
4,175,180,394 4,169,842,451

14,043,560,930

14,458,779,752

W W?ﬁd\&w@

GI\J/C})@f Execut\vé

Chief Fm cial Officer

Director

\ Director

Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS

ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Mark-up / return / interest expensed

Net mark-up / interest income

Non mark-up / interest income

Fee and commission income
Dividend income

Foreign exchange income
Income / (loss) from derivatives
(Loss) / gain on securities
Other income

Total non-markup / interest income

Total income

Non mark-up / interest expenses

Operating expenses

Workers welfare fund
Other charges

Total non-markup / interest expenses

Profit before provisions

Provisions and write offs - net
Extra ordinary / unusual items

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The annexed notes 1to 43 and annexure | form an integral part of these financial statements.

L.

Note

23
24

25

26
27

28

29

30

31

32

2022

5,161,935,651

2021

3,721,032,863

4,662,646,956 2,290,452,473
499,288,695 1,430,580,390
8,950,000 3,860,000
400,457,127 319,355,077
6,551,295 2,202,435
66,148,755 (300,166,762)
258,130,770 276,095,134
740,237,947 301,345,884

1,239,526,642

1,731,926,274

527,530,958 530,455,781
30,000 130,429
527,560,958 530,586,210
711,965,684 1,201,340,064
318,010,719 (139,724,460)
393,954,965 1,341,064,524
83,170,745 418,746,517
310,784,220 922,318,007
Restated
0.459 1.363

TR Y er —m

GrJ/C!)ff Execut\vé

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Chief Fm cial Officer

Director

\ Director

Director




UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021

Profit after taxation for the year 310,784,220 922,318,007
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss
account in subsequent periods:
Movement in deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax | (406,969,314)| | (384,257,720)|
(406,969,314) (384,257,720)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
account in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligations -
net of tax (139,833) (2,008,400)
Movement in surplus on revaluation of operating
fixed assets - net of tax - 995,875,974
Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - 14,712,840
(139,833) 1,008,580,414
Total comprehensive income / (loss) (96,324,927) 1,546,640,701

The annexed notes 1to 43 and annexure | form an integral part of these financial statements.

v g
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UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation
Less: dividend income

Adjustments:

Depreciation

Amortization

Provision and write-offs

Loss / (gain) on sale of fixed assets
Gain on disposal of non banking assets

Interest expense on lease liability against ROU assets

Charge for defined benefit plan
Charge for compensated absences
Unrealized gain - held for trading investments

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets

Lendings to financial institutions
Held-for-trading securities

Advances

Others assets (excluding advance taxation)

(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities

Borrowings from financial institutions
Deposits
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation)

Payments against off-balance sheet obligations

Payment to defined benefit plan and compensated absences

Income tax paid
Net cash flow (used in) / from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Net investments in available-for-sale securities
Net investments in held-to-maturity securities

Dividends received

Investments in operating fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Sale proceeds from disposal of non banking assets

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Payments against lease liabilities
Dividend paid

Net cash flow used in financing activities

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note

13
30

28.1
281
9.1

33

2022 2021
393,954,965 1,341,064,524
(400,457,127) (319,355,077)

(6,502,162) 1,021,709,447
181,696,136 156,629,217
4,422,525 4,592,471
318,010,719 (139,724,460)
(22,701,534) 794,282
- (60,630,049)
1,284,979 1,411,285
8,793,471 7,480,100
7,258,409 6,451,181
p (1,822,511)
498,764,705 (24,818,484)
492,262,543 996,890,963
- 119,988,000
67,927,999 (11,030,989)
(2,365,402,738) 184,207,714
(1,064,275,374) (15,125,577)
(3,361,750,113) 278,039,148

10,318,247,877
(958,587,775)
301,831,307

(5,863,060,462)
465,787,775
(87,475,156)

9,661,491,409
(17,386,685)
(670,806,920)

(5,484,747,843)
(13,853,720)
(519,174,460)

6,103,810,234

(4,742,845,912)

(6,690,909,105)
337,616,126
408,683,258

(78,282,450)
25,751,951

4,139,972,919

(224,706,493)
298,711,460

(47,848,764)
5,285,193
158,000,000

(5,997,140,220)

4,329,414,315

(16,283,520)
(82,500,000)

(15,143,040)

(98,783,520)

(15,143,040)

7,886,494 (428,574,637)
236,426,396 665,001,033
244,312,890 236,426,396

The annexed notes 1to 43 and annexure | form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

1.

2.1

3.1

3.2

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in
Pakistan as a private limited company on December 23, 1981 and subsequently converted to public limited
company on April 30, 2008. The Company is jointly sponsored by the Governments of Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia (KSA) and the Government of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan. The Company is a Development
Financial Institution (DFI) and principally engaged in investment in the industrial and agro-based industrial
projects in Pakistan on commercial basis and markets its products in Pakistan and abroad. The Company
was initially setup for a period of fifty years and upon mutual consent of the Government of Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia (KSA) and Government of Pakistan the duration of Company has been further extended for
another period of fifty years.

The registered office of the Company is situated at Saudi Pak Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad. The
Company is also operating offices in Lahore and Karachi.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These unconsolidated financial statements have been presented in accordance with the requirements of
format prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan’s BPRD Circular No.2 dated January 25, 2018.

These unconsolidated financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in which the
investment in subsidiary is stated at cost and have not been accounted for on the basis of reported results
and net assets of the investee which is done in consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. The unconsolidated financial statements are
presented in Pak. Rupee, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and Companies Act,
2017; and

- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or
directives issued by the SBP and SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS, requirements of the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

The SBP, vide its BSD Circular Letter no. 10 dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of
International Accounting Standard 40, Investment Property, for banking companies and DFls till further
instructions. Further, the SBP, vide its BSD Circular Letter no. 10 dated September 11, 2002 has deferred the
applicability of International Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instrument; recognition and measurement and

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statement was made applicable from period beginning on or after January
01, 2015 vide S.R.0. 663(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014 by SECP. However, SECP has directed through S.R.O.
56(1)/2016 dated January 28, 2016, that the requirement of consolidation under section 2018 of Companies
Act, 2017 and IFRS 10 is not applicable in case of investment by companies in mutual funds established
under trust structure. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the
preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. Further, the SECP, through S.R.O 411(1)/2008
dated April 28, 2008, has deferred the applicability of IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, to banks
and DFls.

33 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards
that are effective in the current year:

There are certain amendments to existing accounting and reporting standards that have become
applicable to the Company for the accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. These are
considered either not to be relevant or not to have any significant impact on these unconsolidated financial
statements.

3.4 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that
are not yet effective:

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023:

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) - the Board
has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to
help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

- requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are
themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions
are themselves material to a company’s financial statements

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on
the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

e Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) - The amendments introduce a new definition
for accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates
by specifying that a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies
the amendments.

Annual Report 2022 I 57 -



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

S =

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)
- The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply
to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will
need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning
liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognized from the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment
to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business
or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves
neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective
date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations
in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements other than in presentation /
disclosures.

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are
mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 but are
considered either not to be relevant or will not have any significant effect on the Company’s operations
and are therefore not detailed in these unconsolidated financial statements except the IFRS 9 Financial
instruments: classification and measurement that will have significant effect on unconsolidated financial
statements on its appliaction as detailed below:

SBP vide its BPRD Circular Letter no. 03 of 2022 dated July 05, 2022 has conveyed the implementation
date of IFRS-9 for DFls as January 01, 2023 and has also issued detailed application guidance for
its implementation. The standard IFRS 9 “financial Instruments” addresses recognition, classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard has also
introduced a new impairment model for financial assets which requires recognition of impairment
charge based on an ‘expected credit losses’ (ECL) approach rather than the ‘incurred credit losses’
approach as currently followed. The total estimated adjustment at the adoption of IFRS 9 will decrease
opening balance of the Company’s equity at O1 January 2023 by Rs. 853.928 million due to recognition
of ECL on related financial assets and also increase related deferred tax asset by Rs. 281.796 million.
The adjusted Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Company after absorbing referred adjustments will be
43.96%.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for:

- certain items of operating fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
which are shown at revalued amounts;

— certain investments which are carried at fair value in accordance with directives of the SBP; and

- staff retirement benefit which is stated at present value of defined benefit obligation net of fair
value of plan assets.

SAUDI PAK
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The
Company uses estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimate will,
by definition, seldom equals the related actual results. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these unconsolidated financial
statements are as follows:

) Classification of investments (note 5.4)

i) Provision against investments (note 5.17), advances (note 5.5) and other assets (note 14)

iii) Valuation and impairment of available for sale securities (note 5.4(b))

iv) Valuation, useful life and depreciation of fixed assets (note 5.7) and non-banking assets acquired in
satisfaction of claims (note 5.10)

V) Useful life of intangibles (note 5.8)

Vi) IFRS 16-lease term and effective interest rate of lease contracts for lease liabilities and right of use
of assets (note 5.9)

Vii) Taxation (note 5.12)

Viii) Present value of staff retirement benefits (note 5.13)

iX) Valuation and impairment of subsidiary (note 5.4)

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
unconsolidated financial statements.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks
and call money lendings.

5.2 Non-current asset classified as held for sale

The Company classifies a non-current asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must be
available for sale in its present condition and its sale must be probable. For sale to be probable, the appropriate
level of management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset and an active programme to locate a buyer
and complete plan must have been initiated. Assets designated as held for sale are carried at lower of carrying
amount at designation and fair value less cost to sell, if fair value can reasonably be determined.

5.3 Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold under repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the unconsolidated financial statements as
investments and a liability for consideration received is included in borrowings. Conversely, consideration for
securities purchased under resale agreement (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions.
The difference between sale and repurchase / purchase and resale price is recognised as mark-up / return
expensed and earned respectively on a time proportion basis as the case may be. Repo and reverse repo
balances are reflected under borrowings from and lendings to financial institutions respectively.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

5.4

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

5.5

S o

Investments
Investments are classified as follows:
Held-For-Trading (HFT)

These represent securities acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short-term market
/ interest rate movements. These are marked to market and surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of
‘held for trading’ investments is taken to unconsolidated profit and loss account in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan through various circulars.

Available-For-Sale (AFS)

These represent securities which do not fall under ‘held for trading’ or ‘held to maturity’ categories. In
accordance with the requirements of the SBP’s BSD Circular No. 20 dated August 04, 2000 and BPRD
Circular No. 06 dated June 26, 2014, available for sale securities for which ready quotations are available
on Reuters Page (PKRV) or Stock Exchanges, are valued at market value and the resulting surplus / deficit
on revaluation, net of deferred tax, is taken through “Statement of Comprehensive Income” and is shown
in the shareholders’ equity in the unconsolidated statement of financial position. Where the decline in
prices of available for sale securities is significant and prolonged, it is considered impaired and included in
unconsolidated profit and loss account. Impairment loss on available for sale debt securities is determined
in accordance with the requirements of prudential regulations issued by SBP.

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of equity
securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee companies as per their latest
available financial statements.

Investments in other unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Held-To-Maturity (HTM)

These represent securities acquired with the intention and ability to hold them upto maturity. These are
carried at amortized cost less impairment, if any, in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the
State Bank of Pakistan through various circulars.

Investments in associate and subsidiary
Investment in associate and subsidiary is carried at cost less impairment, if any.

All purchases and sale of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations
or market convention are recognized at the trade date, which is the date the Company commits to purchase
or sell the investments.

Advances

Advances are stated net of provision. Provision for non-performing advances is determined in accordance
with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP from time to time.

The provision against non-performing advances are charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account.
Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
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5.6 Finance lease receivables

Leases where the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset to the lessee are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the
present value of the lease payments including any guaranteed residual value. Finance lease receivables are
included in advances to the customers.

5.7 Fixed assets and depreciation
(a) Property and equipment (owned and leased)

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except for
freehold land which is stated at cost and lease hold land, buildings and certain other items which are carried
at revalued amount less depreciation.

Certain items of fixed assets are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from their fair value. Surplus / (deficit) arising
on revaluation of fixed assets is credited / (debited) to the surplus on revaluation of assets account and is
shown in the shareholders’ equity in the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

In making estimates of the depreciation / amortization, the management uses useful life and residual value
which reflects the pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The
useful life and the residual value are reviewed at each financial year end and any change in these estimates
in future years might effect the carrying amounts of the respective item of operating fixed assets with the
corresponding effect on depreciation / amortization charge.

Depreciationis provided on straight line method at rates specified in note 12.2 to the unconsolidated financial
statements so as to write off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an
asset begins when it is available for use. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date when the
asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is derecognized. Therefore, depreciation does
not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account as and when
incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on disposal of operating fixed
assets are taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss account.

(b) Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is transferred to
the respective item of fixed assets when available for intended use.

5.8 Intangibles

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Amortization
is charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account. Amortization is computed from the date of purchase
to date of disposal / write off using the straight line method in accordance with the rates specified in note 13 to
these unconsolidated financial statements to write off cost of the assets over their estimated useful life.

5.9 IFRS 16 - Leases

On initial recognition, right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to initial lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred.
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5.10

5.1

5.12

(a)

(b)

B -

Right to use assets are subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated depreciated/ accumulated
impairment losses and are adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability. The remeasurement of lease
liability will only occur in cases where the terms of the lease are changed during the lease tenor. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated over their expected useful lives using the straight line method.

The lease liabilities are initially measured as the present value of remaining lease payments, discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. The lease liability is also remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
change in lease terms. Each lease payment is allocated between a reduction of the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit and loss account as markup expense over the lease period.

Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

In accordance with the BPRD Circular No. 1 of 2016 dated January 1, 2016 issued by SBP, the non-banking
assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are carried at revalued amounts. Surplus arising on revaluation of
such properties is credited to the ‘surplus on revaluation of non banking assets’ account and any deficit
arising on revaluation is taken to profit and loss account directly. Legal fees, transfer costs and direct costs
of acquiring title to property is charged to profit and loss account and are not capitalised. These assets are
depreciated as per Company’s policy.

Deposits

Deposits are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received. Markup accrued on deposits is recognised
separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account on a time
proportion basis.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in
the unconsolidated profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in other comprehensive income or in equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income
or in equity.

Current

Provision for current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates
applicable at the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position. The charge for the current tax also
includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, arising from assessments made
during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided for by using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used
for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization
or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position, and applicable at the time of its
reversal. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable
profit will be available and credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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The Company recognizes deferred tax asset/liability on (deficit)/surplus on revaluation of securities and
revaluation of operating fixed assets as an adjustment to deficit / surplus on revaluation of securities and
revaluation of operating fixed assets.

5.13 Staff retirement benefits
(a) Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an approved gratuity fund for its permanent employees. Contributions to the fund
are made on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuation is carried out periodically using
“projected unit credit method”.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates a recognized provident fund for all of its permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions at the rate of 10% of basic salary are made both by the Company and the employees, which
are transferred to the provident fund.

(c) Compensated absences

As per its service rules, the Company grants compensated absences to all of its permanent employees. The
provision for compensated absences is made on the basis of last drawn basic salary.

5.14 Revenue recognition

- Mark-up / interest on advances and return on investments is recognized on accrual basis except
on classified advances and investments which is recognized on receipt basis in compliance with
Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP. Fines / penalties on delayed payments are recorded in the
unconsolidated profit and loss account on receipt basis.

- Markup / interest on rescheduled / restructured advances and return on investment is recognized in
accordance with the directives of the SBP.

- Fees, commission and brokerage income is recognised at the time of performance of service.
- Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive income is established.

- The Company follows the finance method to recognize income from lease financing. Under this method,
the unearned lease income (excess of the sum of total lease rentals and estimated residual value
over the cost of the leased assets) is deferred and taken to income over the term of lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net investment in lease. Gains/
losses on termination of lease contracts are recognized as income/expense on realization. Unrealized
lease income on classified lease is held in suspense account, where necessary, in accordance with the
requirements of SBP guidelines and recognized as income on receipt basis.

- Gains and losses on sale of investments are taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss account.
- Rental income is recognized on systematic basis.

- Gains and losses on disposal of operating fixed assets are taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss
account.
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5315,

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

I - 1

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak. Rupee at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated to Pak. Rupee at the
exchange rates prevailing at the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position. Exchange gains and
losses are included in unconsolidated profit and loss account of the Company.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company’s assets are reviewed at the date of unconsolidated statement of
financial position to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Impairment loss is recognised as expense in the unconsolidated profit and loss account. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there are present, legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events
and it is probable that an out flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amounts can be made. Provision for guarantee claims and other
off balance sheet obligations is recognized when intimated and reasonable certainty exists to settle the
obligations. Expected recoveries are recognized by debiting customer accounts. Charge to unconsolidated
profit and loss account is stated net off expected recoveries.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provision of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognized when the contractual right
to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and reward of the asset.
Financial liabilities are de-recognized when obligation specific in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and liability is recognized in the profit
and loss account of the current period. The particular recognition and subsequent measurement methods
adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with them.

Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only set-off and net amount is reported in the unconsolidated
financial statements when there is legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amount and the
Company either intends to settle on net basis or to settle the liabilities and realize the assets simultaneously.

Statutory reserve

According to BPD Circular No. 15 dated May 31, 2004 issued by the SBP, an amount not less than 20% of
the after tax profits shall be transferred to create a reserve fund till such time the reserve fund equals the
amount of the paid-up capital and after that a sum not less than 5% of profit after tax shall be credited to
the statutory reserve.
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5.21

(@)

(b)

6.1

Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing differentiated
products or services (business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments. Segment information is presented as per the Company’s functional structure and the guidance
of State Bank of Pakistan. The Company’s primary format of reporting is based on business segments. The
Company comprises of the following main business segments:

Business Segment
- Corporate finance

This includes investment activities such as underwriting, Initial Public Offers (IPOs) and corporate
financing.

- Trading and Sales

Trading and sales includes the Company’s treasury and money market activities.
- Building Rental Services

This segment undertakes the rental services of Saudi Pak Tower and its allied activities.
Geographical Segment

The Company conducts all its operations in Pakistan.
Note 2022 2021

CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

In hand

Local currency 285,888 327,130
With State Bank of Pakistan in

Local currency current accounts 6.1 116,151,462 101,612,867

116,437,350 101,939,997

These represent current accounts maintained with the SBP to comply with the statutory cash reserve
requirements.

Note 2022 2021
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
In current accounts 84,376,565 6,882,985
In deposit accounts 43,498,975 127,603,414
127,875,540 134,486,399
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7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.2.1

S -

Deposit accounts include Rs. 13,623,257 (2021: Rs 103,849,803) held in local currency accounts. These
accounts carry markup at the rates ranging from 3.75% to 13.50% (2021: 2.25% to 7.25%) per annum.

Deposit accounts include USD 132,006.24 (2021: USD 134,619.50) held in foreign currency accounts. These
accounts carry markup at the rate of 0.25% (2021: 0.25%) per annum.

Note 2022 2021

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repo) 8.1 - -

Less: provision held against Lending to Financial Institutions - -

Lending to Financial Institutions - net of provision = -

Particulars of lending

In local currency - -

Securities held as collateral against lending to financial institutions

2022 2021
- oy the g':itj/ret:zrs Total Held by the g':itg:irs Total
Company collateral Company collateral
Pakistan Investment Bonds 8.2.1 - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -

Market value of securities held as collateral at December 31, 2022 isNil (2021: Nil).
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9.2.1

9.3

9.3.1

9.3.2

Investments given as collateral

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

Provision for diminution in value of investments

Opening balance

Charge / reversals
Charge for the year
Reversals for the year

Reversal on disposals

Transfers - net
Amounts written off
Closing balance

Particulars of provision against debt securities

Category of classification

2022

27,399,908,300

2021

21,908,529,525

27,399,908,300

21,908,529,525

1,620,682,243

1,519,406,251

264,524,009 207,601,400
(16,471,728) (3,757,789)

(43,937,403) (102,567,619)
204,114,878 101,275,992

1,824,797 ,121

1,620,682,243

2022
NPI Provision NPI Provision

Domestic
Substandard = - T -
Doubtful - - - -
Loss 643,202,501 609,452,501 659,674,229 625,924,229

643,202,501 609,452,501 659,674,229 625,924,229
Overseas = = - -
Total 643,202,501 609,452,501 659,674,229 625,924,229
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9.4

I

Quality of Available for Sale Securities

2022

2021

Cost in Rupees

Details regarding quality of Available for Sale (AFS) securities are as follows

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Shares:

Listed Companies

Cement

Chemical

Close-end Mutual Fund
Commercial Banks

Fertilizer

Insurance

Oil & Gas Marketing Companies
Oil & Gas Exploration Companies
Power Generation and Distribution

Technology and Communication

Unlisted Companies

Al Hamra Avenue Private Limited

Al Hamra Hills Private Limited

Ali Paper Board Industries Limited

Bela Chemical Industries Limited

Fruit Sap Limited

Innovative Investment Bank Limited

ISE Towers - REIT Management Company Limited
Pace Barka Properties Limited

Pak Kuwait Takaful Company

Pakistan Textile City Limited

Pakistan GasPort Consortium Limited

Saudi Pak Kalabagh Livestock Company Limited
Taurus Securities Limited

Trust Investment Bank Limited

32,994,355,755

26,156,748,679

32,994,355,755

26,156,748,679

109,775,900 109,775,900
417,127,705 417,127,705
37,745,634 37,745,634

860,941,393 647,875,278

- 233,487,301
145,952,935 100,820,544
255,976,980 211,761,553
517,973,984 517,973,844

885,925,664 897,641,805
33,971,065 33,971,065

3,265,391,260 3,208,180,629

2022 2021
Cost Breakup Value Cost Breakup Value
 ruoecs B

50,000,000 - 50,000,000 -
50,000,000 - 50,000,000 -
5,710,000 - 5,710,000 -
6,500,000 - 6,500,000 -
4,000,000 - 4,000,000 -
37,623,048 - 37,623,048 -

- - 2,500,000 48,580,204
168,750,000 193,302,602 168,750,000 210,367,051
40,000,000 283,222 40,000,000 (2,485,549)
50,000,000 5,047,010 50,000,000 5,047,010

330,000,000 621,580,218 330,000,000 737,382,277
10,000,000 - 10,000,000 -

11,250,000 24,090,707 11,250,000 24,651,223
20,000,000 - 20,000,000 -

783,833,048 844,303,759 786,333,048 1,023,542,216

Breakup value has been calculated using latest available audited financial statements, except for the parties for which no breakup value
is mentioned above due to non-availability of latest audited financial statements because of litigation or liquidation proceedings.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021

Cost in Rupees

Non Government Debt Securities

Listed
- AA+, AA, AA- 860,000,000 1,060,000,000
- CCC and below 29,385,421 29,385,421
- Unrated 23,009,084 24,417,686
912,394,505 1,113,803,107
Unlisted
- A+ A, A- - -
- Unrated 57,257,340 57,257,340
57,257,340 57,257,340
969,651,845 1,171,060,447

9.5 The Company does not have any investments in foreign securities as at December 31, 2022 (2021: Nil).
2022 2021
Note Cost in Rupees
9.6 Particulars relating to Held to Maturity securities are

as follows:

Non Government Debt Securities

Listed
- AA+, AA, AA- 300,000,000 600,000,000
- Unrated 18,703,884 19,617,792
9.6.1 318,703,884 619,617,792
Unlisted
- AA+, AA, AA- 267,005,000 289,558,000
- A+ A, A- 100,000,000 100,000,000
- BBB+, BBB, BBB- 3 299,760,000
- B+, B, B- 299,760,000 -
- Unrated 544,232,193 558,381,411
1,210,997,193 1,247,699,411

1,529,701,077

1,867,317,203

9.6.1 Market value of held-to-maturity securities other than non performing investments as at December 31, 2022 is
Rs. 576 million (2021: Rs. 1,193 million).
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

10.5
10.5.1

10.5.2

10.6

10.7

1.

1.1

12.

121

I - 1

2022 2021

Particulars of write offs:
Against Provisions 10.4 - 50,934,063
Directly charged to Profit & Loss account = 559,822

- 51,493,885
Write Offs of Rs. 500,000 and above 106
- Domestic - 51,493,885
- Overseas - -
Write Offs of Below Rs. 500,000 - -

- 51,493,885

Details of loan write off of Rs. 500,000/- and above

In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the statement in
respect of written off loans or any other financial relief of rupees five hundred thousand or above
allowed to a person(s) during the year ended December 31, 2022 is given at Annexure |.

Particulars of loans and advances to staff included in advances

2022 2021

Opening balance 56,452,718 63,461,897
Amount disbursed during the year 28,441,481 16,959,466
Amount received during the year (26,848,214) (23,421125)
Amount written off - (547,520)
Closing balance 58,045,985 56,452,718
NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Cost of investment reclassified from investments

-Investment in ordinary shares 243,467,574 243,467,574

-Investment in preference shares 333,208,501 333,208,501
Less: Provision on investment (576,676,075) (576,676,075)

Less: Amounts received till 31 December - -

The Company’s investment in Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited (the “associate company”) has been
classified as non-current asset held for sale in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sales and Discontinued Operations” and measured at lower
of carrying amount at designation and fair value less cost to sell. The potential buyer had submitted its
binding offer to Saudi Pak against which letter of intent was issued and the company submitted request
to SECP for sale of its stake in SPLC. After completion of necessary formalities as sought by SECP from
the potential buyer, the outcome of request submitted is awaited.

2022 2021
FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 121 40,256,613 3,204,338
Property and equipment 12.2 4,100,125,336 4,230,565,871
Right of use assets under IFRS-16 Leases 41,414,620 9,709,270
4,181,796,569 4,243,479,479
Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 38,359,113 -
Advances to suppliers 1,897,500 3,204,338
40,256,613 3,204,338

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021
Computer Computer
13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS software software
At January 1
Cost 30,203,584 26,731,503
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 24,094,534 19,502,063
Net book Va|ue 6,109,050 7,229,440
Year ended December 31
Opening net book value 6,109,050 7,229,440
Additions - directly purchased 4,705,478 3,472,081
Amortisation charge 4,422,525 4,592,471
Closing net book value 6,392,003 6,109,050
At December 31
Cost 34,909,062 30,203,584
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 28,517,059 24,094,534
Net book value 6,392,003 6,109,050
Rate of amortisation (percentage) $B.3E 33.33
Useful life (years) 3 3
13.1  Cost of fully amortized intangible assets still in use amount to Rs. 23,843,854 (2021: Rs. 18,444,698).
2022 2021
Note ——— Ry
14. OTHER ASSETS
Income/ mark-up accrued in local currency
- net of provision
On investments 1,672,475,796 842,458,570
On advances 530,155,076 311,550,059
On deposits 1,074,553 -
2,203,705,425 1,154,008,629
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 24,031,294 13,663,883
Advance taxation (payments less provisions) 1,255,502,709 835,887,833
Excise duty 78,817,895 78,817,895
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 141 51,651,432 53,803,576
Dividend receivable 34,641,773 42,867,904
Other receivables 4,896,126 684,959
3,653,246,654 2,179,734,679
Less: Provision held against other assets 14.2 (256,792) (256,792)
Other assets (net of provision) 3,652,989,862 2,179,477,887
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims 141 22,893,624 23,847,524
Other assets - total 3,675,883,486 2,203,325,41
14.1  Market value of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 77,651,100 77,651,100
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1411

14.1.2

14.2

14.21

15.

S -0

The non-banking asset acquired from Irfan Textile represents office area on 1st floor of Famous Mall,
Lahore and was initially recorded in the financial statements in June 2007. This asset was last revalued by
independent professional valuers M/s Amir Evaluators & Consultants on the basis of assessment of
Present Market Value on 31 December 2021 at Rs. 77.651 million. M/s Impulse (Pvt) Limited is member of
Pakistan Engineering Council and also on panel of Pakistan Banking Association.

Business activity could not be started since the building was constructed due to pending approval of building
map and the issuance of completion certificate from Lahore Development Authority (LDA). Management is

hopeful to dispose off the same once the NOC is arranged and provided by the plaza owners.

Note

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Opening balance
Revaluation during the year
Disposals during the year
Depreciation

Closing balance

Gain on disposal of non-banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims

Disposal proceeds
less: carrying value
Gain realized on disposal

Provision held against other assets

Advances, deposits, advance rent 14.2.1
& other prepayments

Movement in provision held against other assets

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Reversals / transfer
Amount Written off
Closing balance

BORROWINGS
Secured

Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan
under refinance scheme

Long term financing facility 151
Temporary economic relief facility 15.2
Repurchase agreement borrowings 15.3
Against book debts/receivables 15.4

Total secured

Unsecured
Call borrowings 15.5

Total unsecured

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

2022 2021

77,651,100 163,229,557

- 14,712,840
- (97,369,951)
(3,106,044) (2,921,346)
74,545,056 77,651,100
- 158,000,000

- (97,369,951)

= 60,630,049
256,792 256,792
256,792 256,792
256,792 256,792
2,195,224 199 845,810,022
491,424,500 491,424,500

2,686,648,699

27,775,718,150
4,812,500,000

1,337,234,522

21,831,884,450
3,287,500,000

35,274,866,849

1,500,000,000

26,456,618,972

1,500,000,000

36,774,866,849

26,456,618,972




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

15.1 These represent facilities obtained against State Bank of Pakistan refinance schemes under LTFF. The
mark up is charged at the rates ranging from 2.00% to 7.00% (2021: 2.00%) per annum. These facilities will
mature during January 2023 to June 2032 (2021: January 2022 to January 2029).

15.2 These represent facilities obtained against State Bank of Pakistan refinance schemes under TERF. The
mark up is charged at the rate of 1.00% (2021: 1.00%) per annum. These facilities will mature during April
2023 to January 2031 (2021: April 2023 to January 2031).

15.3 These facilities were secured against government securities (PIBs). These carry markup at rates ranging
from 15.34% to 16.60% (2021: 10.25% to 10.65%) per annum having maturity during January 2023 to March
2023 (2021: during January 2022).

15.4  These represent facilities obtained from various banks against charge on book debts/receivables valuing
Rs. 10,267 million (2021: Rs. 10,267 million). The mark up is charged at varying rates ranging from 15.86% to
17.31% (2021: 7.96% to 11.79%) per annum. These facilities will mature during January 2023 to December
2027 (2021: January 2022 to April 2025).

15.5 These facilities were unsecured and carring markup at rate of 16.25% (2021: nil) per annum having maturity
in January 2023 (2021: nil).

2022 2021

15.6 Particulars of borrowings with
respect to Currencies

Inlocal currency

In foreign currencies

36,774,866,849

26,456,618,972

36,774,866,849

26,456,618,972

16. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
Customers
- Term deposits (local currency) 16.1 1,953,000,000 2,911,587,775
16.1 Composition of deposits
- Public Sector Entities 16.2 1,343,000,000 2,701,587,775
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 16.3 10,000,000 10,000,000
- Private Sector 16.4 600,000,000 200,000,000

1,953,000,000

2,911,587,775

16.2 These Certificate of Investments (COls) carry mark up at the rates ranging from 16.80% to 16.88% (2021:
8.00% to 10.55%) per annum with maturity on November 2023 (2021: January 2022 to November 2022).

16.3  These Certificate of Investments (COIs) carry mark up at the rate of 16.12% (2021: 7.75%) per annum with
maturity on March 2023 (2021: March 2022).

16.4  These Certificate of Investments (COlIs) carry mark up at the rates ranging from 15.67% to 17.06% (2021:
11.14%) per annum with maturity during July 2023 to December 2023 (2021: December 2022).

Annual Report 2022. 81 -



(0€0°1L0'8S) (059'87z'S8Y) G68'€68°€SL (662'120'891) ¥20'G9E Ly
vOl'vETTCEL - S68°€68°€SL (965'295'12) G08'C06'68L'L
0€9'7¢9'69C'L - 568°€68'€SL (88Y'780'S€) €CC'SI80GLL syesse paxl bunessdo Jo uoljenjeasd uo snjding
- - = (LLE'ELT) LLE'ELT L4H - $811Nd8s Jo uonenerss uo sniding
9gL'0lE'E - - 8¥0'S61 889'GI8‘C SaNlIgel| 959 JO 18U - S}8SSY 9SN JO YOI
- - - - - S95E9| Ul JUSWISaAUl }oN
71L'970°0L - - (298'0£9) 946'9LL°0L 3|qeAI®d3l puspiAid
¥29'CST'6€ - - €80°LL6EL 17S°182'SC uone(daIdap Xe} paiels|addy
uo sadudIdYIQ Aesodwa] sjgexel
(vEl'SyT'08e'l) (059'87z'S8Y) - (€0£'85¥'97L) (18£'£€S'8Y L)
(9£8'0v€"901) - - (€0L'€£5'8€) (€£1'£9L°19) S3111IN29s Pajonb s|es Io§ d|ge|IeAR UO SSO| Juswliedu]
(000°£96'959) - - (000'588°£01) (000'280°6%9) SueO| BulULI0i8d-UOU UO UOISIAOI
(z52'5€£'609) (80°296°€8Y) - - (£99'€LL'Sel) S4V - S8IN8s Jo uopenjeral uo (d1ap) / sniding
(905'102'2) (595'98¢'1) - - (176'716'G) ueld Jyousqg paulSp UO SSOJ [eLENIDY
uo sadualapIq Adesodwa] 9|gnonpaq
seadny
ceoe /v

LE 1oquisded v

DO Ul pasiuboday

Ainb3 ul pasiuboday

T9d Ul pasiubodsy

zzoe | Aenuer 1y

[44074

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

SAUDI PAK

(SL3SSV) / S3AILNIGVIT XVL d3yy¥343a Ll

220Z ‘L€ ¥39N3D3A AIAN3T VA IHL 404

SLN3INW31V1S TVIONVNI4d d3LVAITOSNOONN 3HL1 Ol S31O0N

82



s1404d BY) SABILYDE 01 B|qe 8] ||IM Auedwod a1 1ey) a|geqo.d Si eyl SeAdljaq usWabeue -

(%62 120T) %EE 10 8184 8] 18 PaINSeaW e S3dusIalIp Aleiodws)
UO S3IMI[IGRI| pUe S18SSe Xe) Paliaa 'SISeQ 19U U0 sedusiayip Alejodws) ojgexe) ay) 1suiehbe paisnipe Jo aining Ui pazijeal oq Isylis [IM S18SSe xe) palialap oyl Ajusnbasuod pue

11202) UOIIIA LLO'SS "SY JO S185Se Xe) paliajep 18U pey Auedwod ay) ‘pus Jeak 1uslind 1y

¥20'S9E v 675'6CL'L9€E 0TT'8EE'eE GLT'L6T0F
508706681l €YZ'99L'90% (598°£04'v€) LTV VY8 L18
€22'Gl805LL €72'99/'90% (008°22'92) 08L°LLLOLL sjasse paxyy bunjesado Jo uonenieasl uo sniding
LLEELT - ziece G907 1dH - S813UNd3s JO uollen|eAds uo snjding
889'Gl8°C - 889'G18'C - saljigel| 85es)| 10 18U - S18SSY 9S( 10 1ybIY
- - (850'0£9'81) 850°0£9'8l S85e3| U| JUSWISSAUI 19N
9/6°9LL 0L - vLT197'S 20L'SST'S 9|geAIBdI PUSPIAI]
1¥S'182'GT - 6lLSLET 778'506'CT uoneaIdap xey pajels|ddy
uo sadudJdYIQ Aesodwa] sjgexel
(18£°L€5'8Y 1) (#1£'9€0'6€) G80'970'89 (¢Sl LyS'LLL)
(€£1'£9L°19) - G80°CLLYT (852°6€6'16) S9ILNJSS P3IOND S|es 10§ 3|gelieA. UO SSOf Juswliedu|
(000°280'6+5) - 000'7/8'EY (000'956265) SURO| BUILLI0}ISU-UOU UO UOISIAOIG
(£99'€L'GeL) (zge'alz'se) - (582'155°L8) SV - S311IND3S JO uonen|eAs. uo (14ap) / sniding
(176'716°S) (zee'0zs) - (609760°G) ue|d JaUSq PAULSP UO SSO| [eLeNn}oY
uo saduaJdyIq Adesodwa] 9|gndNpaq
lzoT o7AY

lzoz | Aenuer 1y

1'LL

™
el

|
N
N
o
N
st
o

o
D
a4
©
>
c
c
<

L€ Jaqwedad IV DO Ul pasiuboday Aynb3 ul pasiuboday P9d Ul pasIuBoIDY

Lcoe

2202 ‘L€ ¥39N3ID3A AIAN3 VA IHL 404

SLN3INW3LV1S TVIONVNIHd dILVAITOSNOONN 3HL1 Ol S31ON



'saJleys BUIsIXa oyl Yum nssed Lied yuel saieys asayl 'zz0z ‘97 UdJeN UO play Buissiy [e42Us9 [enuUY ay) Ul SISpjoyaleys ay) Jo

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

SAUDI PAK

leaoidde Jayje syjoid pajerdolddeun woly padlajsuedy (iU 1120z) 000'000'G9L 'SH 4O saleys snuod (JIU :lz0Z) 000'00S 9L SepNPUISIYL  #'6L
‘Auedwo) ayy Jo siapjoyaleys |enba
ale elgely IpNes JO Wophbuly JO Jeysd Uo YSH ‘@dueulH JO AJISIUIA PUB URISIHE O 1UBWUIBAOD 81 JO J|eyaQg Uo UelSHed O xueg 21e1S  €°6L
000°000°'0099 000'000°G9/°9 000'000°099 000'005°9/9
000°000°009C 000'000°G9/°C (7°6L ©10U) S8Jeys snuog se panss| 000°000°09¢ 000'005°9/¢
000'000°000'% 000'000°000 % ysed ui pred Ajin4 000'000°00¥ 000‘000°00V
Ssi1eys ATeuipio
E SoJeys JO JaqUINN
1coc ceoce Lcoc ceoce
|eaded ateys dn pied pue paguasqns ‘panss|  Z'6l
000°000°000°0L 000°000°000°0L yoes Ol sy 40 saieys Aleulplo 000°000°000°L 000°000°000°L
sa.eys Jo JagquinN
1coc ccoc lcoc cecoc
|ended pazioyiny L'6L
AVLIdVD FAVHS ‘6L
‘pegeWER|S| ‘ealy aN|g ‘ONUBAY URUUIr ‘J9MO | Yed IPNeS oyl Ul IN0 19| sasiuaid 10} dURAPR Ul PaAIDda) Jual sluasaldal siyl  1'8L
€0V'89v 6Ly 68E'€/C'GES
v66°178'vC 2S0°LEVBL SSEIRH{e)
- 000'005°Z8 Jaployaieys ubleio4 01 ajgehed puspalAldg
- 980°Z8E'lE saseaT 9| - Sy4| Jad se s1esse NOY 1sulebe Aljigel| ases
090°6LL 200'Ge8'9L 19U - S19X01q %003s 0} d|qehed
005§'e62'S = uonessunuial ,s1012a41q
8G6°l67'6 719°2/9°'6 S92oUase palesuadwod JO) UOISIAOIH
ze8'sogolL 698'6LC° 0L ¥'S€ ueid 1Jausq paullep 01 ajqeied
€8/'€€€'SE L65'656°0Y solljadold pajual isulebe sysodap ANINoSS
769'886'CClL /8% 6L VSl L8l SWODUI |[Plusl SOURAPY
OrO'v/LS'l9 Geo’'logce sasuadxs panddy
8€S'9lG'6L LYL'9GE'8LE Aous.ind 20| Ul a|qeAed 1saiaiul / uinal / dn->ep
S3ILgvIi1 43HLO ‘8L
lcoc zeoe

220Z ‘L€ ¥39N3D3A AIAN3T VA IHL 404

SLN3INW31V1S TVIONVNI4d d3LVAITOSNOONN 3HL1 Ol S31O0N

e |



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021

Note Rupees

20. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of

- Available for sale securities 9.1 (1,897,120,736) (1,006,189,337)

- Fixed assets 20.1 3,847,347,375 3,968,328,363

- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 20.2 22,893,624 23,847,524

1,973,120,263 2,985,986,550

Deferred tax on surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of:

- Available for sale securities 609,735,752 125,773,667

- Fixed assets 20.1 (1,269,624,630) (1,150,815,223)

- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims = -

(659,888,878) (1,025,041,556)
1,313,231,385 1,960,944 ,994
20.1 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at January 1 3,968,328,363 2,657,833,730

Recognised during the year - 1,402,642,217

Realised on disposal during the year - net of deferred tax - -

Related deferred tax liability on surplus realised on disposal - -

Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental

depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred tax (85,896,500) (65,424,784)

Related deferred tax liability on incremental

depreciation charged during the year (35,084,488) (26,722,800)

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at December 31 3,847,347,375 3,968,328,363

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

- revaluation as at January 1 1,150,815,223 770,771,780

- revaluation recognised during the year - 406,766,243

- surplus realised on disposal during the year = -

- Impact of change in tax rate 153,893,895 -

- incremental depreciation charged during the year (35,084,488) (26,722,800)
1,269,624,630 1,150,815,223
2,577,722,745 2,817,513,140

20.2  Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired
in satisfaction of claims

Surplus on revaluation as at January 1 23,847,524 23,920,343

Recognised during the year - 14,712,840

Realized on disposal during the year - (14,361,521)

Incremental depreciation (953,900) (424,138)

Surplus on revaluation as at December 31 22,893,624 23,847,524

21. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
-Guarantees 211 70,000,000 -
-Commitments 212 759,115,718 1,342,595,377
829,115,718 1,342,595,377
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211

21.2

21.3
21.31

ii))

iii))

21.3.2

S =

2022 2021
Guarantees:
Financial guarantees 70,000,000 -

Commitments:

Commitment for the acquisition of:

- Operating fixed assets 8,935,734 5,527,051

- Intangible assets 2,525,000 3,940,759
1,460,734 9,467,810

Non disbursed commitment for term and working capital finance 747,654,984 1,333,127,567
759,115,718 1,342,595,377

Other contingent liabilities
Tax contingencies

The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) Islamabad did not accept the Company’s contention on certain matters
in appeals relating to tax years 2004 to 2006, 2008 to 2010 and 2012 to 2014. These issues mainly relate to
disallowance of provision for non performing loans and apportionment of expenses between income subject to final
tax regime and normal tax regime. The Company has filed tax references before the Islamabad High Court that are
pending adjudication. The Company however, accounted for the impact of tax of Rs. 617.237 million on provision for
non performing loans & advances by routing it through Profit & Loss in the year 2018.

The related tax demands for all the aforesaid tax years aggregate to Rs 1,091.694 million, out of which Rs 635.194
million has been paid by / recovered from the Company.

For the tax years 2015 to 2018, the assessing officer amended the Company's assessment under section 122(5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance 2001 and created an aggregate tax demand of Rs. 1,463.932 million by making various add
backs and disallowances. The Company preferred appeals before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals [CIR(A)]
who in terms of separate appellate orders remanded majority of the matters to the assessing officer and on certain
matters upheld the actions of assessing officer. The Company has preferred separate appeals before ATIR for
aforesaid cases which are pending adjudication.

For tax years 2015 to 2017 proceedings under section 161 were initiated and cummulative demand of Rs. 276.482
million was created on account of alleged default in withholding of tax out of which Rs 26.034 million has been paid by
/ recovered from the Company. The Company preferred appeal before the CIR(A) who remanded certain issues and
upheld certain matters. The Company preferred further appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication.

The management, based on the opinion of its legal counsels, believes that the above mentioned matters are likely to
be decided in favour of the Company at superior appellate forums and therefore no further charge is required to be
recognised in these unconsolidated financial statements.

Other contingencies
MACPAC Films Limited (Suit No. B-24/2014 of Rs. 1,040.623 million)

MACPAC Films Limited Karachi ("Customer") availed a Term Finance of Rs. 125 million in 2003/04 and then defaulted.
In 2011, a settlement package was approved by Saudi Pak which contained waiver/write-off of Rs. 72.659 million on
account of Markup and Liquidated Damages subject to payment of Rs. 100.141 million. The Customer accepted and
paid Rs. 100.141 million. The write off/waiver was reported to the Credit Information Bureau of the State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) in compliance with regulatory requirements. Customer requested Saudi Pak and SBP to remove its
name from CIB as it was allegedly reflecting bad on its business. Neither SBP nor Saudi Pak agreed however, the
Customer filed the subject suit in 2014 in the Sindh High Court, Karachi which is being contested on merits. On the
Court's direction, SBP has also filed comments endorsing regulatory compliance by Saudi Pak. So far, the Customer’s

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

ii})

iii))

22,

23.

evidence has been recorded. Now, it is fixed for recordir{g of Saudi Pak’s evidence (Defendant). Saudi Pak is confident
that there is no substance in the present suit and liable to be dismissed after due process of law.

Muhammad Zafar Sultan Paracha vs. Saudi Pak, Federation of Pakistan, DHA, Mukhtiarkar Gadap Town, Karachi
(Suit No.1065/2014 of Rs. 200 million)

On April 27, 2014, the Company invited bids for the sale of four properties i.e. farm house at Gadap Town and three
plots (DHA Plots No.9-C, 17-C, 20-C) at Karachi. Highest bid of Rs. 134.500 million offered by Mr. Mudassir for only three
plots at DHA was accepted, down payment was received and sale agreement dated June 2, 2014 was executed
between Saudi Pak and the highest bidder through his nominee. Mr. Zafar Sultan Paracha had offered a lower bid of
Rs. 93 million against all the four properties therefore his bid was rejected. He filed the subject suit in the Sindh High
Court, Karachi and obtained an interim stay on July 5, 2014 restraining transfer of the above mentioned plots. Saudi
Pak contested and got the stay vacated through Court as a result, three plots at DHA were transferred to the
successful bidder/buyer after receipt of balance sale consideration. Mr. Piracha then filed an Appeal in the Court
against the Stay Vacation Order which was also contested by Saudi Pak, separately. While vacating the stay order,
the learned Judge of the Sindh High Court had observed that remaining suit to the extent of damages claimed against
alleged loss of business opportunity etc, will separately be heard and decided. Appeal was fixed for hearing on 20 April
2022 but neither the counsel nor the Appellant attended the hearing, therefore, the Division Bench of the Sindh High
Court dismissed the Appeal for non-prosecution. Saudi Pak has filed its reply in the suit proceeding and filed
Application for rejection of Plaint being without any merits having no cause of action. Hearing is now scheduled on 06
March 2023 for settling issues for evidence of parties and arguments on Saudi Pak’s application seeking out-right
rejection of the plaint. Prima facie, the suit is baseless, as no cause of action is accrued to the Plaintiff, therefore, it is
expected that it will be dismissed after due process of law.

Kohinoor Spinning Mills Limited and its Guarantors vs. Saudi Pak (Suite N0.258676/2018 of Rs. 600 million)

The Customer had availed Term Finance Facility (TFF) of Rs. 400 million from the Company in 2014 but defaulted after
part payments whereof the Company filed a recovery suit of Rs. 396.085 million against the Customer and its
directors/guarantors in the Lahore High Court, Lahore in which proceedings still continue. In 2018, the Customer filed
a Suit of for Declaration and damages of Rs. 600 million against Saudi Pak in the same court. The Customer alleged
that TFF of Rs. 400 million approved by the Company was not disbursed to the Customer and due to
non-disbursement of the approved TFF, the Customer suffered business losses of Rs. 200 million. Its reply was filed by
the Company. The Suit is at evidence stage. Recording of Customer’s evidence is in process and Saudi Pak 's evidence
will be recorded after completion of customer’s evidence. Saudi Pak believes that the suit of the Customer is a counterblast
against Saudi Pak’s initiated litigation. Saudi Pak has denied all allegations vehemently by filing reply to this. The
management believes there is no substance in this suit and will be dismissed on merits after due process of law.

Presently, the Company does not deal in derivative products
2022 2021

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

Onloans and advances 1,062,279,338 1,131,054,292
On investments 4,068,149,441 2,581,246,864
Onlendings to financial institutions 26,062,611 4,686,802
On balances with banks 5,444,261 4,044,905

5,161,935,651 3,721,032,863
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24,

241

25.

26.

26.1

27.

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits

Borrowings
Securities purchased under repurchase agreements
Other short term borrowings
Long term finance for export oriented projects from SBP

Long term borrowings

Interest expense on lease liability against ROU assets

Brokerage fee

2022

2021

241 347,353,169 197,052,381
3,444,840,982 1,522,641,882
486,422,628 281,373,700

40,187,941 21,758,569

337,890,358 257,058,285
4,309,341,909 2,082,832,436

1,284,979 1,411,285

4,666,899 9,156,371

4,662,646,956 2,290,452,473

The markup expensed amounting to Rs. 1,225,668 (2021: Rs. 771,746) relates to Saudi Pak Employees Contributory Fund.

FEE & COMMISSION INCOME
Credit related fees

Commission on guarantees

(LOSS) / GAIN ON SECURITIES

Realised
Unrealised - held for trading

Realised (loss) / gain on:

Federal Government Securities
Mutual funds

Shares - listed

Shares - unlisted

OTHER INCOME

Rent on property - net

Gain / (loss) on sale of fixed assets - net
Gain on sale of non banking assets
Others

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

2022

2021

8,775,000 3,860,000
175,000 -
8,950,000 3,860,000
26.1 66,148,755 (301,989,273)
9.1 = 1,822,511
66,148,755 (300,166,762)
51,000 (345,070,665)
37,493,074 43,081,392
28,604,681 -
66,148,755 (301,989,273)
271 233,461,683 213,885,032
22,701,534 (794,282)
= 60,630,049
1,967,553 2,374,335
258,130,770 276,095,134
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Note 2022 2021
271 Rent on property - net
Rental income 464,828,257 412,227,292
Less: property expense
Salaries, allowances and employee benefits 34,718,943 28,861,689
Traveling and conveyance 2,700 3,100
Medical 1,228,016 500,424
Janitorial services 12,624,321 11,681,103
Security services 24,523,502 23,533,773
Insurance 2,170,994 1,817,391
Postage, telegraph, telegram and telephone 41,632 97,321
Printing and stationery 124,541 46,132
Utilities 13,067,191 14,424,300
Consultancy and professional charges - 100,000
Repairs and maintenance 16,287,578 1,076,469
Rent, rates and taxes 2,656,870 2,735,184
Depreciation 122,185,410 102,131,308
Office general expenses 1,734,876 1,334,066
231.366,574 198,342,260
233,461,683 213,885,032
28. OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense 281 264,069,092 298,551,347
Property expense
Rent & taxes 526,106 537,895
Insurance 310,142 259,627
Utilities cost 25,345,973 16,305,919
Security (including guards) 4,892,041 4,608,168
Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges) 4,130,272 3,251,082
Depreciation on ROU assets 14,675,277 13,785,682
Depreciation 17,455,058 14,590,187
67,334,869 53,338,560
Information technology expenses
Software maintenance 7,550,749 6,241,842
Hardware maintenance 1,911,398 1,457,324
Amortisation 4,422,525 4,592,471
Network charges 4,324,979 4,032,596
18,209,651 16,324,233
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Other operating expenses
Shareholders' fee

Directors' fees and allowances

Legal and professional charges
Consultancy, custodial and rating services
Outsourced services costs

Travelling and conveyance
Depreciation

Training and development

Postage and courier charges
Communication

Stationery and printing

Marketing, advertisement and publicity
Donations

Auditors' remuneration
Repair and maintenance
Insurance

Office and general expenses
Bank charges

28.1 Total compensation expense

Fees and allowances etc.
Managerial remuneration
i) Fixed

ii) Variable

of which;

a) Cash bonus / awards etc.

b) Bonus & awards in shares etc.
Charge for defined benefit plan
Contribution to defined contribution plan
Compensated absences
Leave fare assistance
Exgratia
Rent & house maintenance
Utilities
Medical
Conveyance
Grant to employee
Others

Sub-total

Sign-on bonus
Severance allowance

Grand total

Note

28.2
28.3

2811

28.1.1 This includes mainly group life insurance for permanent employees.

SAUDI PAK
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2022

2021

(5,293,500) 5,293,500
25,250,000 22,790,000
4,547,177 7,528,803
9,379,323 9,036,366
40,668,689 40,121,512
33,910,740 11,377,257
27,380,391 26,122,040
2,819,548 2,786,747
419,168 688,466
4,011,293 3,741,004
5,386,972 5,710,189
2,520,104 2,039,331
3,000,000 1,000,000
2,375,250 2,000,000
3,929,886 3,710,241
1,719,753 2,109,021
15,653,071 15,900,783
239,481 286,381
177,917,346 162,241,641
527,530,958 530,455,781
108,864,052 110,188,781
10,000,000 50,000,000
8,793,471 7,480,100
10,128,872 9,545,208
7,258,409 6,451,181
4,434,247 4,486,970
9,128,662 8,342,846
52,492,716 50,934,136
11,169,873 10,609,962
18,384,801 19,570,867
20,181,714 16,436,309

. 2,500,000
3,232,275 2,004,987
264,069,092 298,551,347
264,069,092 298,551,347
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Note

28.2 Donations

Prime Minister's Flood Relief Fund Account 2022
Make-A-Wish Foundation Pakistan

Cancer Foundation Hospital

Aziz Jehan Begum Trust For The Blind

Behbud Association of Pakistan

Sundas Foundation

Sahil

28.3  Auditors' remuneration

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Audit fee

Half yearly review

Fee for other statutory certifications
Out of pocket expenses

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Audit fee

Half yearly review

Fee for other statutory certifications
Out of pocket expenses

Fee for other certifications
Tax services

29. OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan

30. PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET

9.31
10.4

Provisions for diminution in value of investments- net
(Reversal) / provisions against loans & advances- net
Bad debts written off directly

2022

2021

2,000,000 -
400,000 -
300,000 -
300,000 -

- 400,000
= 300,000
- 300,000

3,000,000 1,000,000
1,150,000 -
550,000 -
200,000 -
100,000 -

2,000,000 -

- 1,150,000

= 550,000

= 200,000

= 100,000

= 2,000,000
375,250 -

2,375,250 2,000,000

30,000 130,429

30,000 130,429

204,114,878 101,275,992

113,895,841 (241,560,274)

= 559,822

318,010,719 (139,724,460)
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Note 2022 2021
31. TAXATION
Current tax
Current year 203,608,193 386,466,176
Prior year 47,583,851 (1,057,879)
251,192,044 385,408,297
Deferred tax
Current year (168,021,299) 33,338,220
Prior year - -
(168,021,299) 33,338,220
311 83,170,745 418,746,517
311 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit for the year 393,954,965 1,341,064,524
Tax rate 29% 29%
Tax on accounting profit 114,246,940 388,908,712
Tax effect on income subject to lower rate of taxation (68,062,641) 44128,878
Tax effect of prior years 47,583,851 (1,057,879)
Impact of super tax for current year 31,327,256 -
Impact of change of rate on deferred tax (99,581,727) -
Reversal of deferred tax asset for prior year - -
Permanent differences on
Reversal of provision against investment 47 113,204 53,542,123
Expenses not claimable against rental income (2,089,590) (2,110,090)
Right of use asset under IFRS - 16 Leases (4,255,830) (1,166,521)
Others 16,889,282 (63,498,706)
83,170,745 418,746,517
32. BASIC / DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 2022 2021
Profit for the year - Rupees 310,784,220 922,318,007
Restated
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 676,500,000 676,500,000
Basic / diluted earnings per share - Rupee 0.459 1.363
- o I SAUDl PAK
INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
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2022 2021

33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Balance with Treasury Banks 116,437,350 101,939,997

Balance with other banks 127,875,540 134,486,399
244,312,890 236,426,396
2022 2021

> B

34. STAFF STRENGTH

Permanent 69 64
On Company's contract 1 3
Company's own staff strength at the end of the year 70 67

341 In addition to the above, 85 (2021: 92) employees of outsourcing services companies were assigned to
the Company as at the end of the year to perform services other than security and janitorial services. No
employee was working abroad.

35. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
35.1 General description

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its regular employees and GM/CEOQ.
Contributions are made in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. The benefits under the
gratuity fund are payable in lump sum on retirement at the age of 60 years or earlier cessation of service,
subject to minimum service period of three years. The benefit is equal to month's last drawn basic salary
for each completed year of eligible service and on pro-rata basis for the incomplete year. The latest
actuarial valuation of defined benefit plan was conducted at December 31, 2022 using the projected unit
credit method. Detail of the defined benefit plan are:

35.2 Number of employees under the scheme

The number of employees covered under the following defined benefit scheme are:

2022 2021
Gratuity fund 70 65

35.3 Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuations was carried out as at December 31, 2022 using the following significant
assumptions:

2022 2021
Discount rate 14.50% per annum  11.75% per annum
Expected rate of return on plan assets 12.57% per annum  8.02% per annum
Expected rate of salary increase 12.50% per annum  9.75% per annum
Mortality rates SLIC (2001-05)-1 SLIC (2001-05)-1
Rate of employee turnover Moderate Moderate
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Note

35.4 Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plans

Present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Net liability payable

35.5 Movement in defined benefit obligations

Obligations at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid by the Company
Re-measurement loss

Obligations at the end of the year

35.6 Movement in fair value of plan assets

Fair value at the beginning of the year
Interest income on plan assets
Contributions by Company - net
Benefits paid by the Fund to the Company
Re-measurements: net return on plan assets

over interest income - loss 3582
Fair value at the end of the year

35.7 Movement in payable under defined benefit schemes

Opening balance
Charge for the year

Benefits paid to outgoing members
Contribution by the Company - net
Re-measurement loss recognised in OCI

during the year 35.8.2
Amount paid by the fund to the Company

Closing balance

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

I - 1

2022

2021

74,143,323 66,100,005
(63,923,454) (55,791,173)
10,219,869 10,308,832
66,100,005 62,233,677
7,642,125 6,702,160
7,747,584 5,970,729
(9,253,654) (10,668,173)
1,907,263 1,861,612
74,143,323 66,100,005
55,791,173 53,874,873
6,596,238 5,192,789
10,308,832 8,358,804
(9,253,654) (10,668,173)

480,865 (967,120)
63,923,454 55,791,173
10,308,832 8,358,804

8,793,471 7,480,100
(9,253,654) (10,668,173)
(10,308,832) (8,358,804)
1,426,398 2,828,732
9,253,654 10,668,173
10,219,869 10,308,832
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2022

2021

35.8 Charge for defined benefit plans
35.8.1 Cost recognised in profit and loss
Current service cost 7,642,125 6,702,160
Net interest on defined benefit liability 1,151,346 777,940
8,793,471 7,480,100
35.8.2 Re-measurements recognised in OCI during the year
Loss / (gain) on obligation
- Demographic assumptions - -
- Financial assumptions 1,104,585 737,405
- Experience adjustments 802,678 1,124,207
Total actuarial loss on obligation 1,907,263 1,861,612
Return on plan assets over interest income - loss (480,865) 967,120
Total re-measurements recognised in OCI 1,426,398 2,828,732
35.9 Components of plan assets
Cash and cash equivalents - net 3,474,857 2,962,848
Term deposit receipts (TDR) / Certificate of Investment 60,448,597 52,828,325
63,923,454 55,791,173

35.9.1 There is no significant risk associated with the plan assets, as it consists of fixed interest rate bearing
TDR's and saving accounts with financial institutions having satisfactory credit ratings.

35.10 Sensitivity analysis

A sensitivity analysis is performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant
and calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the gratuity
scheme. The increase in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each
assumption is summarised below:
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35.1

35.12

35.13

35.14

S -

2022 2021
Discount rate +0.5% 72,245,115 64,351,025
Discount rate -0.5% 76,153,975 67,960,635
Long term salary increase +0.5% 76,350,565 68,141,454
Long term salary increase -0.5% 72,043,332 64,165,575
2023
---- Rupees ----
Expected contributions to be paid to the fund 9,803,037
in the next financial year
Expected charge for next financial year
Current service cost 8,399,429
Net interest on defined benefit asset / liability 1,403,608
9,803,037
2022 2021

Maturity profile

Distribution of timing of benefit payments (years)

- 1 5,412,973 7,977,685
- 2 41,755,063 31,496,832
- 3 11,544,936 7,507,647
- 4 3,134,589 10,671,731
- 5 5,335,696 2,862,200
- 6-10 60,425,869 30,157,264
Weighted average duration of the PBO (years) 527 5.45

Funding Policy

An implicit, though not formally expressed objective is that the liabilities under the scheme in respect of
members in service on the valuation date on a going concern basis and having regard to projected future
salary increases, should be covered by the Fund on the valuation date, the total book reserve as of the
valuation date, future contributions to the Fund, future additions to the book reserve and future
projected investment income of the Fund.
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35.15 Significant risk associated with the staff retirement benefit schemes

The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to

Asset volatility meet the liabilities.

Changes in bond yields | Not applicable as underling interest rate on bonds is fixed.

The investment and bank balances may loose its value due to the increase

Inflation risk of general inflation rate.

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect

Life expectancy depends on the beneficiaries' service/age distribution and the benefit.

The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final
Withdrawal rate effect could go either way depending on the beneficiaries' service/age
distribution and the benefit.

36. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company operates a recognized provident fund scheme for all its regular employees for which equal
monthly contributions are made both by the Company and by the employees to the Fund at the rate of
10% of basic salary of the employee. Payments are made to the employees as specified in the rules of
the Fund. As per latest available unaudited financial statements of the Fund, total assets of the Fund as
at December 31, 2022 were Rs. 139,621,456 (2021: Rs. 122,649,667).
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

41.

-

CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO
& LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses)

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital

Eligible Tier 2 Capital

Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1+ Tier 2)

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAS):
Credit Risk

Market Risk

Operational Risk

Total

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio

2022 2021
Rs ‘000’

6,765,000 6,600,000
12,253,559 11,993,920
12,253,559 11,993,920
1,124,774 1,662,546
13,378,333 13,656,466
22,217,420 18,537,351
6,111,660 7,191,165
2,876,520 3,238,102
31,205,600 28,966,618
39.27% 41.41%
39.27% 41.41%
42.87% 47.15%

As of December 2022, the Company is required to meet a Tier 1to RWA ratio and CAR, including CCB,

of 7.5% and 11.5% respectively.

Standardized Approach is used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for Market and Credit Risk while

Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) is used for Operational Risk.

Leverage Ratio (LR):
Eligible Tier-1 Capital
Total Exposures
Leverage Ratio

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

2022 2021
Rs ‘000’
12,253,559 11,993,920
53,966,116 45,532,808
22.71% 26.34%




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assets 4,639,985 5,109,796
Total Net Cash Outflow 3,295,451 2,266,280
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 140.80% 225.47%

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding 36,098,612 30,780,826
Total Required Stable Funding 21,362,298 18,385,334
Net Stable Funding Ratio 168.98% 167.42%

411 The link to the full disclosures for capital adequacy, leverage and liquidity ratios will be available at
https://www.saudipak.com/financial/

42. RISK MANAGEMENT

Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Co. Ltd. (the Company) defines risk as the possibility that an
action or event could have adverse outcomes, which could either result in a direct loss of earnings /
capital, or the imposition of constraints on the ability to meet objectives. In the normal course of business,
the Company is exposed to various risks, including, but not limited to, credit, market, liquidity, and
operational risks. The Company recognizes that management of these risks is essential for maintaining
financial viability and achieving objectives. In this regard, the Company's approach to risk management is
to ensure the ongoing alignment of its risk levels with its risk appetite through a coordinated set of
activities that direct and control the Company with regard to risk.

The Company's overall appetite for risk is governed by its Board of Directors (Board) approved "Risk
Management Policy", which delineates key definitions, roles and responsibilities, risk appetite / risk limits,
and principles for managing risk across the Company. The Company's Risk Management Framework,
comprising of the Risk Management Policy, other Board-approved policies, procedural manuals, sound
management information system (MIS) and reporting, and clearly articulated roles, responsibilities and
accountabilities, is fundamental to the Company's overall risk management culture and awareness.

The Company recognizes that responsibility for risk management resides at all levels, since the risk
management processes rely on individual responsibility and independent oversight. The Board, duly
supported by its Risk Management Committee, is accountable for ensuring that adequate and sound
structures and policies are in place for risk management. The Management's role is to transform strategic
decisions and risk appetite set by the Board into effective processes and systems, and to institute an
appropriate hierarchy to execute and implement the approved policies and procedures. In this regard, the
Company has implemented a three-line-of-defense approach, wherein as a first line of defense, risk
management activities are performed in the business units and functional support units, with the
Divisional Heads being accountable for managing risk in their area of operations in accordance with the
Risk Management Framework, as well as for the results (both positive and negative) of taking these risks.

To assist in discharge of these responsibilities and accountabilities, various cross-functional committees
have been constituted at the Senior Management level, and delegation of authority in financial /
operational powers for the Divisions / Regional Offices has been clearly defined. The Risk Management
Division (RMD) and Compliance Division (CD) serve as second-line of defense by providing independent
oversight of the Company's risk-taking activities and regulatory compliance respectively. The RMD's
responsibilities include the design of a clear, transparent and well-aligned Risk Management Policy,

Annual Report 2022 I 13 -



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

421

I

independent pre-approval risk reviews of proposals and policies, and ongoing assessment, monitoring
and reporting of risks at the portfolio and enterprise level through a broad spectrum of techniques.

The second-line-of-defense is further strengthened through the presence of cross-functional committees
such as Credit Risk Management Committee, Operational Risk Management Committee and Compliance
Committee. The Internal Audit Division functions as the third-line-of-defense, with direct reporting to the
Audit Committee of the Board and independently carrying out internal audits in line with its approved
roles and responsibilities.

On an enterprise level, risk monitoring results for the year revealed that the Company's Capital Adequacy
Ratio (CAR) remained well above both the internal as well as the regulatory requirements throughout the
year, and that the capital and liquidity position remained resilient even under stress.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to the Company's earnings or capital arising from the potential that an obligor
is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability to perform on such obligation is impaired. Credit
risk arises primarily from the Company's advances / debt investments portfolio and lending to financial
institutions (Fls) portfolio. Credit risk may also arise at the portfolio level in case of inadequate
diversification of the advances portfolio, in terms of industrial sectors, regions, products, or clients.

Pursuit of credit risk is essential to fulfilling the corporate objectives of the Company, and is a primary
source of income, conversely, also constituting one of the greatest risk of losses. In this regard, focus is
primarily on bankable transactions, offering adequate risk & reward relationship with satisfactory security
support. The Company's credit risk management process encompasses identification, assessment,
monitoring and control of credit risk exposures. As part of this process, obligor risk, facility risk and
environmental risk are carefully evaluated using internal risk rating methodologies, as articulated in the
Company’s Internal Credit Risk Rating Policy.

Advances exposures are invariably secured by credit risk mitigants in the form of various types of
collateral / security with adequate margins. Readily marketable / liquid securities / urban properties are
preferred over other forms of collateral. Credit risk stress testing is regularly carried out to identify
vulnerable areas for initiating corrective action, if necessary. Regular assessment, monitoring and
reporting of the performing & non-performing credit risk portfolio in terms of trends & concentrations, is
made by the Risk Management Division (RMD) to the Credit Risk Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Board. Board-approved Credit Policy, Credit Risk Policy, Credit
Administration Policy, and Special Asset Management Policy are in place, clearly establishing relevant
roles and responsibilities, selection criteria, principles and limits for credit risk.

Specific norms for appraisal, sanctioning, documentation, inspections and monitoring, maintenance,
rehabilitation and management of assets have been stipulated. Internal controls and processes in place
for credit risk management also include:

- Well-defined credit approval and disbursement mechanism, with deliberation at cross-functional
committee, and review by independent functions;

- Post-disbursement credit administration, monitoring and review, including review of credit ratings;

- Board-approved borrower / group limits well within those prescribed in terms of Prudential
Regulations, along with other limits on portfolio concentration, e.g. sectoral limits;

- Board-approved counterparty limits for lendings to Fls in place and regularly reviewed,;

- Clear lines of authority for Treasury transactions, and independent Back Office / Settlement Division
in place to process deals;

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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- Independent Middle Office in place at RMD to monitor lending to Fls limit compliance;

- Credit Risk Management Committee-approved insurer-wise limits and eligible valuers in place and
reviewed annually;

- Policies & procedures circulated amongst concerned functionaries through the Company's intranet;
and

- Various training initiatives to enhance credit risk knowledge for concerned personnel.

Dedicated Special Asset Management Division (SAMD) and Law Division (LD) are in place to manage past
due and impaired assets through litigation, workout or other remedial measures, as appropriate. The
Company adheres to the SBP instructions for definitions of past due and impaired assets in the Corporate
/ Commercial, SME-Medium Enterprise, and SME-Small Enterprise categories respectively.

In addition, the Company may consider subjective criteria in determining account classification. The
Company determines provisioning requirements for non-performing advances in accordance with the
requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP. Write-offs are made when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery.

The Company employs the Basel Standardized Approach to determine capital requirements for credit
risk. As per SBP Guidelines, the Company recognizes VIS and PACRA as approved rating agencies and
applies their ratings where available to determine appropriate risk weight by using mapping criteria
prescribed by SBP. In absence of external ratings, the exposures are treated as unrated and relevant risk
weights are applied. The Company follows Simple Approach for credit risk mitigation in its Basel capital
calculation. Under Simple Approach, the risk weight of the mitigant is substituted for the risk weight of the
counterparty to the extent coverage is provided by the mitigant, provided the former risk weight is lower
than the latter.

The Company is presently not involved in securitization activities.

The Company's maximum credit risk exposure as at December 31, 2022 amounted to:

2022 2022
Without With
benefit of benefit of
collateral collateral

Lending to financial institutions
Debtinvestments

(excluding Government of Pakistan local currency - 1,892,240,421
denominated debt)
Advances - 9,119,290,062

= 11,011,530,483
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021
42.1.4 Contingencies and Commitments
Commitments: credit risk by industry sector
Textile 378,000,000 8,575,500
Cement 5,264,695 1,000,000,000
Sugar 112,000,000 -
Electronics and electrical appliances 52,390,289 124,552,067
Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 70,000,000 -
Financial 200,000,000 200,000,000
Others 11,460,734 9,467,810
829,115,718 1,342,595,377
Credit risk by public / private sector
Public/ Government - -
Private 829,115,718 1,342,595,377
829,115,718 1,342,595,377

42.1.5 Concentration of Advances

Top 10 exposures of the Company on the basis of total (funded and non-funded exposures)
aggregated to Rs. 7,153 million (2021: Rs. 5,752 million) as follows:

2022

Funded
Non Funded

7,153,388,076

2021

5,751,975,737

Total Exposure

7,153,388,076

5,751,975,737

The sanctioned limits against these top 10 exposures aggregated to Rs. 8,025,000,000 (2021

Rs. 6,901,341,120).

2022 2021
Amount Provision held Amount Provision held
Total funded classified therein
Substandard - - - -
Doubtful = = - -
Loss - - 719,909,649 719,909,649
Total - - 719,909,649 719,909,649
SAUDI PAK
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

42.2

e

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss to the Company’s earnings or capital arising from potential movements in market
risk factors, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to
market risk from its banking book as well as trading book exposures, the latter of which includes HFT & AFS
investments in debt & listed equity instruments. The Company uses Basel Standardized Approach to assess
the market risk for its trading book exposures. The portfolios covered under the approach include the Held
for Trading (HFT) and Available for Sale (AFS) investments in debt and listed equity instruments. The capital
charge required there against is presented in Note 41.

The market risk strategy of the Company is to maximize returns while keeping exposure to market risk at or
below the approved levels, provided in the shape of market risk limits. Board-approved Treasury Policy, PMD
Investment Policy and Market Risk Policy are in place with defined market risk management parameters /
limits to control market risk levels. The Treasury Division (TD) and Portfolio Management Division (PMD)
consider economic and market conditions, along with the Company’s portfolio mix, diversification and
expertise when setting and executing annual business strategy and reviewing policy.

Assets / Liability Management Committee (ALCO) meets monthly, and evaluates liquidity, market and
interest rate risk as part of its approved Terms of Reference. An independent Market & Liquidity Risk /
Middle Office Unit housed in RMD is tasked to, inter alia, independently monitor, measure and analyze
market risk of the Company on daily basis, perform risk review of day-to-day PMD & TD activities, escalate
any limit breaches or exceptions on the same working day of identification, review the Company’s interest
rate risk management framework & methodology, and prepare risk reports for ALCO and RMCB, including
review of performance of the investment portfolio.

The Company uses a comprehensive suite of risk measurement techniques to assess market risk in the
trading book, which includes monitoring levels and trends in mark-to-market, price value of basis point
(PVBP), beta, and Value-at-Risk (VaR) metrics, as well as stress tests and sensitivity analyses based on these
measures. VaR is calculated for all trading book positions and portfolios on a daily basis, and measures the
estimated maximum loss over a defined horizon based on historical simulation.

The Company calculates its VaR with a 1-day, 10-day and 30-day horizon period using a one-tail, 99%
confidence interval in accordance with Basel specifications. The 1-day VaR is further back tested on daily
basis against next day’s P&L based on actual observed movements in market risk factors. Back testing
results suggest that the model is currently providing an appropriate estimate of the risk. For interest rate
risk in the banking book, the Company primarily relies on gap analysis & static simulation model. Stress tests
are carried out for traded & non-traded market risks on the basis of extreme, yet plausible, stress scenarios.
Results produced by the aforementioned models are included in management and Board-committee
reporting.

SAUDI PAK
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

42.2.3

42.2.4

e

Equity position Risk

The Company’s objective regarding trading in equities is to maximize the return on equity investment by
acquiring fundamentally strong shares at appropriate levels and maintaining such a balance between short
term and long term investment that can provide maximum possible opportunities to avail both capital gains
and dividend income. The Company’s maximum exposure to the stock market is constrained in terms of
the single-stock and aggregate limits prescribed under the SBP Prudential Regulations. Prime responsibility
for managing the Company’s equity positions rests with the Portfolio Management Division (PMD). The
Board of Directors has approved sectoral limits, as well as portfolio limits that fall within the SBP-prescribed
aggregate limit for DFIs. Senior Management’s Quoted Securities Monitoring Committee reviews investment
climate and stock market investment strategy & portfolio, and reviews & approves listed stock investment
/ divestment recommendations by PMD, and stop loss decision where required. Unquoted Investments
Monitoring Committee is also in place to monitor and manage investments in unquoted companies. The
Market & Liquidity Risk /Middle Office Unit housed in RMD independently monitors PMD deals, policy /
limit compliance, broker usage, realized/unrealized gain/loss, and generates market risk metrics such as
beta, Value-at-Risk, sensitivity analyses and stress tests. The Unit is responsible for escalation of any limit
breaches to concerned authorities, and also provides monthly summary reports to ALCO and periodic
performance reports to the Risk Management Committee of the Board. PMD performance is also regularly
reviewed by ALCO through regular reporting by the former, with the latter also serving as approving
authority for the broker panel.

2022 2021
Banking Trading book Banking Trading book
book book
Impact of 5% change in equity prices on
- Profit and loss account - - - 3,396,400
- Other comprehensive income - 111,250,320 - 122,748,780

Yield / Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)-Basel Il Specific

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from its trading book and banking book. Interest rate risk in the
trading book is a result of HFT & AFS investments in debt instruments that are reported at fair value,
and whose value is influenced by prevailing interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk exposures
in the banking book originate from financial assets & liabilities that are exposed to different points in the
yield curve, and are not matched in terms of repricing / maturity dates or interest rate basis. Since the
Company does not take non-maturity deposits and bulk of its loans are floating-rate in nature, optionality/
prepayment-related interest rate risk is insignificant.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to control exposure to interest rate risk, within
approved limits. The Company has Board-approved Treasury Policy and Interest Rate Risk Management
Framework in place that govern the interest rate risk management process. The Treasury Division directly
functions to manage interest rate risks through diversification of exposures and structuring matching asset/
liability transactions. The ALCO provides oversight of interest rate risk, including articulating interest rate
view, deciding on future business strategy, monitoring interest rate risk and deliberating on mitigation
measures. To control interest rate risk in the trading book, duration limits are in place for the fixed income
investment portfolio, in terms of the Treasury Policy. To control interest rate risk in the banking book,
target levels have been established on the repricing/ maturity gaps in each time band, as determined
through slotting of interest-rate sensitive assets and liabilities according to contractual repricing / maturity

SAUDI PAK
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

dates, whichever is earlier, and ALCO-approved earnings at risk tolerance limit is also in place. The Market
& Liquidity Risk / Middle Office Unit monitors limit compliance, reviews the interest rate risk management
framework, develops interest rate risk measurement methodology, and provides monthly & quarterly reports
to ALCO. Interest rate risk measurement methodology currently employed by the Company for the trading
book includes marking-to-market, price value of basis point (PVBP), sensitivity analyses / stress testing and
Value-at-Risk. For the banking book, methodology is based on gap analysis and static simulation, with an
earnings and economic value perspective, as well as stress testing.

2022 2021
Banking Trading book Banking Trading book
book book
Impact of 1% change in interest rates on
- Profit and loss account 34,871,809 - 52,224,727 -

- Other comprehensive income - o - -

Annual Report 2022 I123 -
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

42.3 Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or
from external events. Types of events that can lead to operational risk include:

- Internal / external fraud events

- Employment practices & workplace safety events
- Clients, products & business practices events

- Damage to physical assets events

- Business disruption and system failures events

- Execution, delivery & process management events

Types of operational risk losses can include monetary, regulatory, client, or health & safety loss, or legal
liability / inability to enforce legal claim, and measures that may be taken to mitigate losses include improving
underlying processes through enhanced internal controls, having contingency plan / backup arrangements
in place, and ensuring adequate insurance coverage.

The Company’s operational risk management process is governed by the Operational Risk Management
Framework (“ORMF”) and Operational Risk Policy which have been duly approved by the Board of Directors.
The operational risk management structure comprises the line management as first line of defense, an
independent Operational Risk Management Unit (“ORMU”) operating under the Risk Management Division
(“RMD”) as second line of defense, and independent Internal Audit as third line of defense. An organizational
culture of integrity and discipline built through trainings and appropriate hiring, and separation of duties
and principles of internal control as embedded in relevant policies and procedures, are key principles for
operational risk management. Operational Risk Coordinators (“ORCs”) that have been established from
each division work with the ORMU to identify, analyze, explain and mitigate operational issues within their
respective areas of expertise. The ORMU develops and updates the ORMF, implements operational risk
measurement and reporting, and coordinates with ORCs to source necessary information and promote
sound operational risk management. Senior management-level Operational Risk Management Committee
(“ORMC”) meets quarterly with the goal to assure that actions are being taken to meet the stated objective
of operational risk management in the Company. Presently loss data, key risk indicators, risk & control self-
assessments, and scenario analysis are being used to assess operational risk. Operational risk reports on
the basis of these tools, along with suggested risk mitigants where required, are presented by ORMU to the
ORMC. Operational risk reports are also discussed as part of the agenda of meetings of Risk Management
Committee of the Board (“RMCB”).

In order to ensure business continuity, resumption and recovery of critical business process after a disaster,
the Company has a robust Business Continuity Plan / Disaster Recovery Plan in place, with off-site backup
and regular testing carried out. The Company also has a Technology Governance Framework & IT Security
Policy in place, addressing issues such as incident reporting, risk identification, IT controls and systems
security, with added oversight provided by regular meetings of the IT Steering Committee of management.
KYC / AML Policies are also in place for Credit and Treasury activities.

Basic Indicator Approach with capital charge of 15% of average gross income for previous 3 years has been
applied for Operational Risk. Loss data process has been fully implemented, with ORCs providing details for
events / near misses / potential losses through an in-house software.

42.4 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential for loss arising from either an inability to meet obligations or to fund increase
in assets as they fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses.

The liquidity risk strategy of the Company is to strive to maintain liquidity at an acceptable level over the
short- and long-term, in order to settle financial obligations in a timely and economical manner. Liquidity Risk
Policy, Treasury Policy and Contingency Funding Plan are in place to govern the liquidity risk management
process. The prime responsibility for the management of liquidity risk lies with Treasury Division (TD) which
ensures that the Company’s operations can meet its current and future funding needs. Mix of Saudi Pak assets
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

42.5 Derivative Risk

Presently the Company does not have exposure in derivative products, and consequently is not exposed
to derivatives-related risk.

43 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Saudi
Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited on 25 February 2023.

\ Director Director

GM/Ch\ef Executivi Chief Fln cwal Officer Director

— SAUDI PAK
INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL

INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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o Grant Thornton

Grant Thornton Anjum
Rahman
302 B, 3rd Floor,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Evacuee Trust Complex,

Aga Khan Road, F-5/1,

Islamabad, Pakistan.
To the members of

Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited T +92 512271906

F +92 512273874
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment
Company Limited and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at December 31,2022 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at December 31, 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to note 9.1.1 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements describing the effect of
lock-in event in respect of term finance certificates (TFCs). Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

2. We draw attention to note 22.3.1to the accompanying consolidated financial statements describing in detail the
tax contingencies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Chartered Accountants grantthornton.pk

— SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on
26 March 2022.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Hassaan Riaz.

Qm‘i\ S‘W«n\'«\ A“:‘“m &L-.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Place: Islamabad

Date: March 02, 2023

UDIN: AR2022101645ZPOIpHWF

— SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Non-current asset classified as held for sale
Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Development properties

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Subordinated debt
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

General reserve

Surplus on revaluation of assets
Unappropriated/ Unremitted profit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

20

21

22

2022 2021
116,440,110 101,956,575
137,866,992 179,155,362

36,154,009,926
9,119,337,560
4,384,554,352
6,392,003
61,321,766
3,702,657,861
192,734,028

30,897,653,705
6,868,108,912
4,468,645,879
6,109,050
2,221,065,136
198,210,163

53,875,314,598

44,940,904,782

36,774,866,849
1,953,000,000

810,490,215

26,456,618,972
2,911,587,775

438,549,336
423,993,771

39,538,357,064

30,230,749,854

14,336,957,534

14,710,154,928

6,765,000,000
1,431,486,211
358,662,940
1,313,231,385
4,468,576,998

6,600,000,000
1,369,329,367
358,662,940
1,960,944,994
4,421,217,627

14,336,957,534

14,710,154,928

The annexed notes 1to 44 and annexure | form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

W Woosse g e ==

Chief Fm cial Officer

GIJ/CI)?f Execul\vé

Director

“ \ Director

Director
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R

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND

LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Mark-up / return / interest expensed

Net mark-up / interestincome
Non mark-up / interest income

Fee and commission income
Dividend income

Foreign exchange income
Income / (loss) from derivatives
(Loss) / gain on securities
Other income

Total non-markup / interest income

Total income
Non mark-up / interest expenses

Operating expenses

Workers welfare fund
Other charges

Total non-markup / interest expenses

Profit before provisions
Provisions and write offs - net
Extra ordinary / unusual items

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Note

24
25

26

27
28

29

30

31

32

33

2022 2021
Rupees

5,186,890,998 3,743,064,292
4,661,361,977 2,289,041,188
525,529,021 1,454,023,104
8,950,000 3,860,000
415,684,929 319,605,065
6,551,295 2,202,435
67,495,895 (300,119,731
273,076,812 288,967,064
771,758,931 314,514,833

1,297,287,952

1,768,537,937

536,171,894 536,481,912
30,000 130,429
536,201,894 536,612,341
761,086,058 1,231,925,596
318,010,719 (139,676,460)
443,075,339 1,371,602,056
90,273,997 418,552,497
352,801,342 953,049,559
Restated
0.522 1.409

The annexed notes 1to 44 and annexure | form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

W Woosse g e ==

Gr\%l)ff Execut\v)

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Chief F\n c\a\ Officer

Director

“ \ Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Profit after taxation for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Iltems that may be reclassified to profit and loss
account in subsequent periods:

Movement in deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax

Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
account in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligations - net of tax
Movement in surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets - net
of tax

Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

2022

2021

352,801,342 953,049,559

|  (406969314) | [ (384,257,720) |
(406,969,314) (384,257,720)
(135,527) (2,188,829)
) 995,875,974
14,712,840
(135,527) 1,008,399,985
(54,303,499) 1577191824

The annexed notes 1to 44 and annexure | form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

GI\MZ%f Execut\vé Chief Fm cwa\ Officer Director

“ \ Director

Director
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CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 443,075,339 1,371,602,056
Less: dividend income (415,684,929) (319,605,065)
Adjustments: 27,390,410 1,051,996,991
Depreciation 167,855,891 143,832,933
Amortisation 13 4,422,525 4,592,471
Provision and write-offs 31 318,010,719 (139,676,460)
Loss / (gain) on sale of fixed assets (22,753,534) 1,324,399
Gain on disposal of non banking assets o (60,630,049)
Interest expense on lease liability against ROU assets - -
Charge for defined benefit plan 291 10,887,223 5,385,748
Charge for compensated absences 291 7,694,770 6,821,564
Unrealized gain - held for trading investments 9.1 (1,347,140) (1,860,369)
484,770,454 (40,209,763)
512,160,864 1,011,787,228
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions - 119,988,000
Held-for-trading securities (85,015,635) (25,030,989)
Development properties 5,476,135 -
Advances (2,365,124,489) 184,408,462
Others assets (excluding advance taxation) (1,070,619,261) (14,841,968)
(3,515,283,250) 264,523,505
(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities
Borrowings from financial institutions 10,318,247,877 (5,863,060,462)
Deposits (958,587,775) 465,787,775
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation) 301,887,484 (80,849,088)
9,661,547,586 (5,478,121,775)
Payments against off-balance sheet obligations - -
Payment to defined benefit plan and compensated absences (17,895,125) (14,741,186)
Income tax paid (681,095,983) (525,641,447)
Net cash flow (used in) / from operating activities 5,959,434,092 (4,742,193,675)
Cash flow from investing activities
Net investments in available-for-sale securities (6,690,909,105) 4,139,972,919
Net investments in held-to-maturity securities 425,869,382 (237,670,578)
Dividends received 423,911,060 298,961,448
Investments in operating fixed assets (88,414,215) (65,777,004)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 25,803,951 5,363,693
Sale proceeds from disposal of non banking assets - 158,000,000
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (5,903,738,927) 4,298,850,478
Cash flow from financing activities
Payments against lease liabilities R N
Dividend paid (82,500,000) -
Net cash flow used in financing activities (82,500,000)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents -
(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (26,804,835) (443,343,197)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 281,111,937 724,455,134
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34 254,307,102 281,111,937

The annexed notes 1to 44 and annexure | form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief F\n cial Officer Director

GTJ/CI)@f Exegunvé

“ \ Director

Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

1.

2.1

-]

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in
Pakistan as a private limited company on December 23, 1981 and subsequently converted to public limited
company on April 30, 2008. The Company is jointly sponsored by the Governments of Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia (KSA) and the Government of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan. The Company is a Development
Financial Institution (DFI) and principally engaged in investment in the industrial and agro-based industrial
projects in Pakistan on commercial basis and markets its products in Pakistan and abroad. The Company
was initially setup for a period of fifty years and upon mutual consent of the Government of Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia (KSA) and Government of Pakistan the duration of Company has been further extended for
another period of fifty years.

The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at Saudi Pak Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad.
The Holding Company is also operating offices in Lahore and Karachi.

The Group consists of Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited, (the Holding
Company) and its subsidiary company namely Saudi Pak Real Estate Limited (the subsidiary company) and
associate company namely Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited (the associate company).

Saudi Pak Real Estate Limited (the subsidiary company)

The subsidiary company was incorporated in Pakistan as an unlisted public limited company on November
14, 2006 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The subsidiary
company is wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company. The principal place of business of the subsidiary
company is Pakistan. The principal business of the subsidiary company is investment in properties (both for
investment and development purposes), property management services, investment in joint ventures and
other related services. The registered office of the subsidiary company is situated at Saudi Pak Tower, 61-
A, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad.

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited (the associate company)

The Holding Company has 35.06% (2021: 35.06%) investment in ordinary share capital and 63% (2021:
63%) of the issued non-redeemable / convertible preference shares of the associate company. The license
of associate company to carry out business of leasing expired on March 18, 2010, and is non-operational.
However, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company approved disposal of investment in Saudi Pak
Leasing Company Limited. Consequent to the approval the investment has been classified as held for
sale as per the requirements of IFRS 5 ‘Non-current asset classified as held for sale and discontinued
operations’. Prior to the decision of disposal, the Group has accounted for the investment in the associate
using the equity accounting of investments as per the requirements of IAS-28.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These consolidated financial statements have been presented in accordance with the requirements of
format prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan’s BPRD Circular No.2 dated January 25, 2018.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Holding Company and the
financial statements of subsidiary company from the date on which control of the subsidiary by the Holding
Company commences until the date control ceases. Subsidiary company are those enterprises in which the
Holding Company directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than 50% of the voting
securities or otherwise has the power to elect and appoint more than 50% of its directors. When the Group
loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost. The financial
statements of the subsidiary company are incorporated on a line-by-line basis and the investment held by
the Holding Company is eliminated against the corresponding share capital and pre-acquisition reserve of
subsidiary company in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of subsidiary company are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding
Company, using accounting policies that are generally consistent with those of the Holding Company.
However, Non-banking subsidiary company in Pakistan follows the requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9, Financial Instruments, Recognition and Measurement as applicable to the
subsidiary company, IAS 40, Investment Property and IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures. Intra-group
balances and transactions are eliminated.

Associate company is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial
and operating policies. Interests in associate company is accounted for using the equity method. It is initially
recognized at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated
financial statements include the Group’s share of the consolidated profit or loss and consolidated
comprehensive income of equity accounted investee, until the date on which significant influence or
control ceases.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Pak. Rupee, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

3.1 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and Companies Act,
2017; and

- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or
directives issued by the SBP and SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS, requirements of the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

3.2 The SBP, vide its BSD Circular Letter no. 10 dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of
International Accounting Standard 40, Investment Property, for banking companies and DFls till further
instructions. Further, the SBP, vide its BSD Circular Letter no. 10 dated September 11, 2002 has deferred the
applicability of International Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instrument; recognition and measurement and
IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statement was made applicable from period beginning on or after January
01, 2015 vide S.R.0. 663(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014 by SECP. However, SECP has directed through S.R.O.
56(1)/2016 dated January 28, 2016, that the requirement of consolidation under section 2018 of Companies
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

3.3

3.4

— ]

Act, 2017 and IFRS 10 is not applicable in case of investment by companies in mutual funds established
under trust structure. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the
preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. Further, the SECP, through S.R.O 411(1)/2008
dated April 28, 2008, has deferred the applicability of IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, to banks
and DFls.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards
that are effective in the current year:

There are certain amendments to existing accounting and reporting standards that have become
applicable to the Company for the accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. These are
considered either not to be relevant or not to have any significant impact on these unconsolidated financial
statements.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that
are not yet effective:

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023:

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1and IFRS Practice Statement 2) — the Board has
issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help
companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1include:

- requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are
themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on
the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

e Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) - The amendments introduce a new definition
for accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates
by specifying that a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies
the amendments.

e Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)
- The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply
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to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will
need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning
liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognized from the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment
to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) - The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business
or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves
neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective
date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations
in future periods will have no material impact on these consolidated financial statements other than in
presentation / disclosures.

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are
mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 but are
considered either not to be relevant or will not have any significant effect on the Company’s operations
and are therefore not detailed in these unconsolidated financial statements except the IFRS 9 Financial
instruments: classification and measurement that will have significant effect on unconsolidated financial
statements on its appliaction as detailed below:

SBP vide its BPRD Circular Letter no. 03 of 2022 dated July 05, 2022 has conveyed the implementation
date of IFRS-9 for DFIs as January 01, 2023 and has also issued detailed application guidance for
its implementation. The standard IFRS 9 “financial Instruments” addresses recognition, classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard has also
introduced a new impairment model for financial assets which requires recognition of impairment
charge based on an ‘expected credit losses’ (ECL) approach rather than the ‘incurred credit losses’
approach as currently followed. The total estimated adjustment at the adoption of IFRS 9 will decrease
opening balance of the Holding Company’s equity at 01 January 2023 by Rs. 853.928 million due
to recognition of ECL on related financial assets and also increase related deferred tax asset by
Rs. 281.796 million. The adjusted Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Holding Company after absorbing
referred adjustments will be 43.96%.

4. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:

certain items of fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims which are shown
at revalued amounts;

certain investments which are carried at fair value in accordance with directives of the SBP; and

staff retirement benefit which is stated at present value of defined benefit obligation net of fair value
of plan assets.

investment properties which are carried at fair value.
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5.1

5.2

53

]

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
Group uses estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimate will, by
definition, seldom equals the related actual results. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

i)  Classification of investments (note 5.4)
i) Provision against investments (note 5.16), advances (note 5.5) and other assets (note 14)

i) Valuation and impairment of available for sale securities (note 5.4(b))

iv) Valuation, useful life and depreciation of fixed assets (note 5.6) and non-banking assets acquired in
satisfaction of claims (note 5.8)

v) Useful life of intangibles (note 5.7)
vi) Taxation (note 5.11)
vii) Present value of staff retirement benefits (note 5.12)

viii) Net realizable value of development properties (note 5.9)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks
and call money lendings.

Non-current asset classified as held for sale

The Group classifies a non-current asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must
be available for sale in its present condition and its sale must be probable. For sale to be probable, the
appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset and an active programme
to locate a buyer and complete plan must have been initiated. Assets designated as held for sale are carried
at lower of carrying amount at designation and fair value less cost to sell, if fair value can reasonably be
determined.

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold under repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the consolidated financial statements as
investments and a liability for consideration received is included in borrowings. Conversely, consideration for
securities purchased under resale agreement (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial institutions.
The difference between sale and repurchase / purchase and resale price is recognised as mark-up / return

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

expensed and earned respectively on a time proportion basis as the case may be. Repo and reverse repo
balances are reflected under borrowings from and lendings to financial institutions respectively.

54 Investments
Investments are classified as follows:
(a) Held-For-Trading (HFT)

These represent securities acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short-term market /
interest rate movements. These are marked to market and surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of ‘held for
trading’ investments is taken to consolidated profit and loss account in accordance with the requirements
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan through various circulars.

(b) Available-For-Sale (AFS)

These represent securities which do not fall under ‘held for trading’ or ‘held to maturity’ categories. In
accordance with the requirements of the SBP’s BSD Circular No. 20 dated August 04, 2000 and BPRD
Circular No. 06 dated June 26, 2014, available for sale securities for which ready quotations are available
on Reuters Page (PKRV) or Stock Exchanges, are valued at market value and the resulting surplus /
deficit on revaluation, net of deferred tax, is taken through “Statement of Comprehensive Income” and is
shown in the shareholders’ equity in the consolidated statement of financial position. Where the decline in
prices of available for sale securities is significant and prolonged, it is considered impaired and included in
consolidated profit and loss account. Impairment loss on available for sale debt securities is determined in
accordance with the requirements of prudential regulations issued by SBP.

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of equity
securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee companies as per their latest
available financial statements.

Investments in other unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment losses, if any.
(c) Held-To-Maturity (HTM)

These represent securities acquired with the intention and ability to hold them upto maturity. These are
carried at amortized cost less impairment, if any, in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the
State Bank of Pakistan through various circulars.

5.5 Advances

Advances are stated net of provision. Provision for non-performing advances is determined in accordance
with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP from time to time.

The provision against non-performing advances are charged to the consolidated profit and loss account.
Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

5.6 Fixed assets and depreciation
(a) Property and equipment (owned and leased)

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except for
freehold land which is stated at cost and lease hold land, buildings and certain other items which are carried
at revalued amount less depreciation.
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(b)

5.7

5.8

5.9

Bl

Certain items of fixed assets are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from their fair value. Surplus / (deficit) arising
on revaluation of fixed assets is credited / (debited) to the surplus on revaluation of assets account and is
shown in the shareholders’ equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In making estimates of the depreciation / amortization, the management uses useful life and residual value
which reflects the pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group. The
useful life and the residual value are reviewed at each financial year end and any change in these estimates
in future years might effect the carrying amounts of the respective item of operating fixed assets with the
corresponding effect on depreciation / amortization charge.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method at rates specified in note 12.2 to the consolidated financial
statements so as to write off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset
begins when it is available for use. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date when the asset
is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is derecognized. Therefore, depreciation does not
cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated profit and loss account as and when incurred.
Major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on disposal of operating fixed assets
are taken to the consolidated profit and loss account.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is transferred to
the respective item of fixed assets when available for intended use.

Intangibles

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Amortization
is charged to consolidated profit and loss account. Amortization is computed from the date of purchase to
date of disposal / write off using the straight line method in accordance with the rates specified in note 13 to
these consolidated financial statements to write off cost of the assets over their estimated useful life.

Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

In accordance with the BPRD Circular No. 1 of 2016 dated January 1, 2016 issued by SBP, the non-banking
assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are carried at revalued amounts. Surplus arising on revaluation of
such properties is credited to the ‘surplus on revaluation of non banking assets’ account and any deficit
arising on revaluation is taken to profit and loss account directly. Legal fees, transfer costs and direct costs
of acquiring title to property is charged to profit and loss account and are not capitalised. These assets are
depreciated as per Group’s policy.

Development properties

Development properties include acquisition or development of properties for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost includes all direct costs attributable to the acquisition, design and construction of the properties.

The cost of development properties recognized in consolidated profit and loss account on sale is determined
with reference to the specific costs incurred on the property sold and an allocation of any non-specific
costs based on the relative size of the property sold. Net realizable value represents the selling price in the
ordinary course of business less cost of completion and estimated cost necessarily to be incurred for sale.
The management reviews the carrying values of the development properties on an annual basis.
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5.10 Deposits

Deposits are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received. Markup accrued on deposits is recognised
separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to consolidated profit and loss account on a time
proportion basis.

5.1 Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in other comprehensive income or in equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income
or in equity.

(a) Current

Provision for current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates
applicable at the date of consolidated statement of financial position. The charge for the current tax also
includes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, arising from assessments made
during the year for such years.

(b) Deferred

Deferred tax is provided for by using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used
for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization
or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the date of consolidated statement of financial position, and applicable at the time of its reversal. A
deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit will be
available and credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Group recognizes deferred tax asset / liability on (deficit) / surplus on revaluation of securities and
revaluation of fixed assets as an adjustment to deficit / surplus on revaluation of securities and revaluation
of fixed assets.

5.12 Staff retirement benefits
(a) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates an approved gratuity fund for its permanent employees as disclosed in note 36.
Contributions to the fund are made on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuation is
carried out periodically using “projected unit credit method”.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Group also operates a recognized provident fund for all of its employees. Equal monthly contributions
at the rate of 10% of basic salary are made both by the Group and the employees, which are transferred to
the provident fund.

(c) Compensated absences

As per its service rules, the Group grants compensated absences to all of its permanent employees. The
provision for compensated absences is made on the basis of last drawn basic salary.

5.13 Revenue recognition

- Mark-up / interest on advances and return on investments is recognized on accrual basis except on
classified advances and investments which is recognized on receipt basis in compliance with Prudential
Regulations issued by the SBP. Fines / penalties on delayed payments are recorded in the consolidated
profit and loss account on receipt basis.
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5.15

5.16

5.17

e

- Markup / interest on rescheduled / restructured advances and return on investment is recognized in
accordance with the directives of the SBP.

- Fees, commission and brokerage income is recognised at the time of performance of service.

— Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive income is established.

—  The Group follows the finance method to recognize income from lease financing. Under this method,
the unearned lease income (excess of the sum of total lease rentals and estimated residual value
over the cost of the leased assets) is deferred and taken to income over the term of lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net investment in lease. Gains /
losses on termination of lease contracts are recognized as income / expense on realization. Unrealized
lease income on classified lease is held in suspense account, where necessary, in accordance with the
requirements of SBP guidelines and recognized as income on receipt basis.

— Gains and losses on sale of investments are taken to the consolidated profit and loss account.

- Rental income is recognized on systematic basis.

— Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are taken to the consolidated profit and loss account.

— Revenue from sale of properties recognized on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak. Rupee at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated to Pak. Rupee at the
exchange rates prevailing at the date of consolidated statement of financial position. Exchange gains and
losses are included in consolidated profit and loss account of the Group.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets are reviewed at the date of consolidated statement of financial
position to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment
loss is recognised as expense in the consolidated profit and loss account. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there are present, legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events
and it is probable that an out flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amounts can be made. Provision for guarantee claims and other
off balance sheet obligations is recognized when intimated and reasonable certainty exists to settle the
obligations. Expected recoveries are recognized by debiting customer accounts. Charge to consolidated
profit and loss account is stated net off expected recoveries.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provision of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognized when the contractual right
to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and reward of the asset.
Financial liabilities are de-recognized when obligation specific in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and liability is recognized in the profit
and loss account of the current period. The particular recognition and subsequent measurement methods
adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with them.
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5.18 Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only set-off and net amount is reported in the consolidated
financial statements when there is legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amount and the Group
either intends to settle on net basis or to settle the liabilities and realize the assets simultaneously.

5.19 Statutory reserve

According to BPD Circular No. 15 dated May 31, 2004 issued by the SBP, an amount not less than 20% of
the after tax profits shall be transferred to create a reserve fund till such time the reserve fund equals the
amount of the paid-up capital and after that a sum not less than 5% of profit after tax shall be credited to
the statutory reserve.

5.20 Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing differentiated
products or services (business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments. Segment information is presented as per the Group’s functional structure and the guidance of
State Bank of Pakistan. The Group’s primary format of reporting is based on business segments. The Group
comprises of the following main business segments:

(a) Business Segment

- Corporate finance
This includes investment activities such as underwriting, Initial Public Offers (IPOs) and corporate
financing.

- Trading and Sales
Trading and sales includes the Group’s treasury and money market activities.

- Building Rental Services & Real State
This segment undertakes the purchase, development and sale of properties, property management
services, investment in joint ventures and other related services and also undertakes the rental services
of Saudi Pak Tower and its allied activities.

(b) Geographical Segment

The Group conducts all its operations in Pakistan.

Note 2022 2021
Rupees
6. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
Local currency 288,648 343,708
With State Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current accounts 6.1 116,151,462 101,612,867
116,440,110 101,956,575
6.1 These represent current accounts maintained with the SBP to comply with the statutory cash reserve

requirements.
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7.2

8.1

8.2

8.2.1

-]

Note 2022 2021
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS | Rupees |
In Pakistan
In current accounts 84,439,991 6,946,411
In deposit accounts 71&7.2 53,427,001 172,208,951
137,866,992 179,155,362

Deposit accounts include local currency accounts amounting to Rs. 23,551,283 (2021: Rs. 148,455,340) held
in local currency accounts. These accounts carry markup at the rates ranging from 3.75% to 14.50% (2021:
2.25% to 9.75%) per annum.

Deposit accounts include USD 132,006.24 (2021: USD 134,619.50) held in foreign currency accounts. These
accounts carry markup at the rate of 0.25% (2021: 0.25%) per annum.

Note 2022 2021

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repo) 8.1 - -

Less: provision held against Lending to Financial Institutions - -

Lending to Financial Institutions - net of provision - -

Particulars of lending

In local currency - -

Securities held as collateral against lending to financial institutions

2022 2021
Held by the ~ Further Held by the ~ -urther
given as Total given as Total
Group Group
collateral collateral
Note
Pakistan Investment Bonds 8.2.1 - - - - - -
Total - - - - - _

Market value of securities held as collateral at December 31, 2022 isNil (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

9.21

9.3

9.3.1

9.3.2

Investments given as collateral

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

Provision for diminution in value of investments

Opening balance

Charge / reversals
Charge for the year
Reversals for the year

Reversal on disposals

Transfers - net
Amounts written off

Closing balance

Particulars of provision against debt securities

2022

27,399,908,300

2021

21,908,529,525

27,399,908,300

21,908,529,525

1,620,682,243

1,519,406,251

264,524,009 207,601,400
(16,471,728) (3,757,789)
(43,937,403) (102,567,619)
204,114,878 101,275,992

1,824,797,121

1,620,682,243

Category of classification 2022 2021
NPI Provision NPI Provision

Domestic
Substandard = = = -
Doubtful = - - -
Loss 643,202,501 609,452,501 659,674,229 625,924,229

643,202,501 609,452,501 659,674,229 625,924,229
Overseas - - - -
Total 643,202,501 609,452,501 659,674,229 625,924,229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

9.4 Quality of Available for Sale Securities 2022 2021

Details regarding quality of Available for Sale (AFS) securities COSt IRz

are as follows:

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed
Pakistan Investment Bonds 32,994,355,755 26,156,748,679
32,994,355,755 26,156,748,679

Shares:
Listed Companies

Cement 109,775,900 109,775,900
Chemical 417,127,705 417,127,705
Close-end Mutual Fund 37,745,634 37,745,634
Commercial Banks 860,941,393 647,875,278
Fertilizer - 233,487,301
Insurance 145,952,935 100,820,544
Oil & Gas Marketing Companies 255,976,980 21,761,553
Oil & Gas Exploration Companies 517,973,984 517,973,844
Power Generation and Distribution 885,925,664 897,641,805
Technology and Communication 33,971,065 33,971,065
3,265,391,260 3,208,180,629
2022 2021
Cost Breakup Value Cost Breakup Value

Unlisted Companies | Rupees
Al Hamra Avenue Private Limited 50,000,000 - 50,000,000 -
Alhamra Hills Private Limited 50,000,000 - 50,000,000 -
Ali Paper Board Industries Limited 5,710,000 - 5,710,000 -
Bela Chemical Industries Limited 6,500,000 - 6,500,000 -
Fruit Sap Limited 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 -
Innovative Investment Bank Limited 37,623,048 = 37,623,048 -
ISE Towers - REIT Management Company Limited - - 2,500,000 48,580,204
Pace Barka Properties Limited 168,750,000 193,302,602 168,750,000 210,367,051
Pak Kuwait Takaful Company 40,000,000 283,222 40,000,000 (2,485,549)
Pakistan Textile City Limited 50,000,000 5,047,010 50,000,000 5,047,010
Pakistan GasPort Consortium Limited 330,000,000 621,580,218 330,000,000 737,382,277
Saudi Pak Kalabagh Livestock Company Limited 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Taurus Securities Limited 11,250,000 24,090,707 11,250,000 24,651,223
Trust Investment Bank Limited 20,000,000 = 20,000,000

783,833,048 844,303,759 786,333,048 1,023,542,216

Breakup value has been calculated using latest available audited financial statements, except for the parties for which no breakup value
is mentioned above due to non-availability of latest audited financial statements because of litigation or liquidation proceedings.

— SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Non Government Debt Securities
Listed

- AA+, AA, AA-

- CCC and below

- Unrated

Unlisted
- A+ A, A-
- Unrated

2022 2021
860,000,000 1,060,000,000
29,385,421 29,385,421
23,009,084 24,417,686
912,394,505 1,113,803,107
57,257,340 57,257,340
57,257,340 57,257,340
969,651,845 1171,060,447

9.5 The Group does not have any investments in foreign securities as at December 31, 2022 (2021: Nil).

9.6 Particulars relating to Held to Maturity securities are as follows:

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed
- Market Treasury Bills

Non Government Debt Securities

Listed
- AA+, AA, AA-
- Unrated

Unlisted
- AA+, AA, AA-
-A+ A, A-
- BBB+, BBB, BBB-
- B+, B, B-
- Unrated

Others
- Unrated

2022

2021

Note Cost in Rupees

9.6.1

143,666,166 166,634,489
300,000,000 600,000,000
18,703,884 19,617,792
318,703,884 619,617,792
267,005,000 289,558,000
100,000,000 100,000,000
- 299,760,000
299,760,000 -
544,232,193 558,381,411

1,210,997,193

1,247,699,41

65,284,933

1,529,701,077

1,932,602,136

9.6.1 Market value of held-to-maturity securities other than non performing investments as at December 31, 2022 is

Rs. 576 million (2021: Rs. 1,193 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021
10.5 Particulars of write offs:
10.5.1 Against Provisions 10.4 - 50,934,063
Directly charged to Profit & Loss account - 607,822
- 51,541,885
1052 Write Offs of Rs. 500,000 and above 10.6
- Domestic - 51,493,885
- Overseas - -
Werite Offs of Below Rs. 500,000 - 48,000
- 51,541,885

10.6 Details of loan write off of Rs. 500,000/- and above

In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the statement in
respect of written off loans or any other financial relief of rupees five hundred thousand or above
allowed to a person(s) during the year ended December 31, 2022 is given at Annexure |.

10.7 Particulars of loans and advances to staff included in advances

2022

2021

Opening balance 56,778,465 64,036,392
Amount disbursed during the year 28,536,481 17,877,546
Amount received during the year (27,221,463) (24,539,953)
Amount written off - (595,520)
Closing balance 58,093,483 56,778,465
1. NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Cost of investment reclassified from investments
- Investmentin ordinary shares 243,467,574 243,467,574
- Investment in preference shares 333,208,501 333,208,501

Less: Provision on investment

(576,676,075)

(576,676,075)

Less: Amounts received till 31 December

1.1 The Holding Company'’s investment in Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited (the “associate company”)

has been classified as non-current asset held for sale in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sales and Discontinued Operations” and measured at lower of
carrying amount at designation and fair value less cost to sell. The potential buyer had submitted its
binding offer to Saudi Pak against which letter of intent was issued and the company submitted request
to SECP for sale of its stake in SPLC. After completion of necessary formalities as sought by SECP from
the potential buyer, the outcome of request submitted is awaited.

2022 2021
12. FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 12.1 40,256,613 3,204,338
Property and equipment 12.2 4,344,297,739 4,465,441,541
4,384,554,352 4,468,645,879
1241 Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 38,359,113 -
Advances to suppliers 1,897,500 3,204,338
40,256,613 3,204,338

— SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

13.

131

14.

14.1

2022 2021
Computer Computer
software software
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
At January 1
Cost 30,203,584 26,731,503
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 24,094,534 19,502,063
Net book value 6,109,050 7,229,440
Year ended December 31
Opening net book value 6,109,050 7,229,440
Additions - directly purchased 4,705,478 3,472,081
Amortisation charge 4,422,525 4,592,471
Closing net book value 6,392,003 6,109,050
At December 31
Cost 34,909,062 30,203,584
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 28,517,059 24,094,534
Net book value 6,392,003 6,109,050
Rate of amortisation (percentage) 33.33 33.33
Useful life (years) 3 3
Cost of fully amortized intangible assets still in use amount to Rs. 23,843,854 (2021: Rs. 18,444,698).
2022 2021
OTHER ASSETS Note ———— IR
Income/ mark-up accrued inlocal currency
- net of provision

On investments 1,678,229,864 842,458,570
On advances 530,155,076 311,550,059
On saving bank accounts 1,148,561 14,414

2,209,533,501 1,154,023,043
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 22,212,185 11,314,549
Advance taxation (payments less provisions) 1,278,268,117 855,962,478
Excise duty 78,817,895 78,817,895
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 141 51,651,432 53,803,576
Dividend receivable 34,641,773 42,867,904
Other receivables 4,896,126 684,959

3,680,021,029 2,197,474,404
Less: Provision held against other assets 14.2 (256,792) (256,792)
Other assets (net of provision) 3,679,764,237 2,197,217,612
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims 14.1 22893624 23,847,524
Other assets - total 3,702,657,361 2,221,065,136
Market value of non-banking assets acquired 77651100 77.651.100

in satisfaction of claims
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

14.1.1

14.1.2

14.2

14.21

15.

15.1

e

The non-banking asset acquired from Irfan Textile represents office area on 1st floor of Famous Mall,
Lahore and was initially recorded in the financial statements in June 2007. This asset was last revalued by
independent professional valuers M/s Amir Evaluators & Consultants on the basis of assessment of
Present Market Value on 31 December 2021 at Rs. 77.651 million. M/s Impulse (Pvt) Limited is member of
Pakistan Engineering Council and also on panel of Pakistan Banking Association.

Business activity could not be started since the building was constructed due to pending approval of
building map and the issuance of completion certificate from Lahore Development Authority (LDA).
Management is hopeful to dispose off the same once the NOC is arranged and provided by the plaza owners.

2022 2021

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Opening balance 77,651,100 163,229,557
Revaluation during the year - 14,712,840
Disposals during the year - (97,369,951)
Depreciation (3,106,044) (2,921,346)
Closing balance 74,545,056 77,651,100

Gain on disposal of non-banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims

Disposal proceeds - 158,000,000
less: carrying value - (97,369,951
Gain realized on disposal - 60,630,049

Provision held against other assets

Advances, deposits, advance rent 14.21 256,792 256,792
& other prepayments

Movement in provision held against other assets
Opening balance 256,792 256,792

Charge for the year = -
Reversals / transfer = _
Amount Written off - -
Closing balance 256,792 256,792

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES

Balance at beginning of the year 198,210,163 198,210,163
Additions during the year - -
Cost of plots / house sold during the year (5,476,135) -
Balance at end of the year 151 192,734,028 198,210,163

This represents cost of 34 - eight marla plots situated at Royal Residencia Housing Scheme, Lahore
held by subsidary Company.

SAUDI PAK
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INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

16. BORROWINGS
2022 2021

Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan under refinance scheme

Secured

Long term financing facility 16.1 2,195,224,199 845,810,022
Temporary economic relief facility 16.2 491,424,500 491,424,500
2,686,648,699 1,337,234,522
Repurchase agreement borrowings 16.3 27,775,718,150 21,831,884,450
Against book debts/receivables 16.4 4,812,500,000 3,287,500,000
Total secured 35,274,866,349 26,456,618,972
Unsecured
Call borrowings 16.5 1,500,000,000 -
Total unsecured 1,500,000,000 -
36,774,866,849 26,456,618,972

16.1 These represent facilities obtained against State Bank of Pakistan refinance schemes under LTFF. The mark
up is charged at the rates ranging from 2.00% to 7.00% (2021: 2.00%) per annum. These facilities will mature
during January 2023 to June 2032 (2021: January 2022 to January 2029).

16.2 These represent facilities obtained against State Bank of Pakistan refinance schemes under TERF. The mark
up is charged at the rate of 1.00% (2021: 1.00%) per annum. These facilities will mature during April 2023 to
January 2031 (2021: April 2023 to January 2031).

16.3 These facilities were secured against government securities (PIBs). These carry markup at rates ranging from
15.34% to 16.60% (2021: 10.25% to 10.65%) per annum having maturity during January 2023 to March 2023
(2021 during January 2022).

16.4 These represent facilities obtained from various banks against charge on book debts/receivables valuing Rs.
10,267 million (2021: Rs. 10,267 million). The mark up is charged at varying rates ranging from 15.86% to 17.31%
(2021: 7.96% to 11.79%) per annum. These facilities will mature during January 2023 to December 2027 (2021:
January 2022 to April 2025).

16.5 These facilities were unsecured and carring markup at rate of 16.25% (2021: nil) per annum having maturity
in January 2023 (2021 nil).

2022 2021

16.6 Particulars of borrowings with respect to Currencies

In local currency 36,774,866,849 26,456,618,972
In foreign currencies - -
36,774,866,849 26,456,618,972
17. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
Customers
- Term deposits (local currency) 171 1,953,000,000 2,911,587,775
17.1 Composition of deposits
- Public Sector Entities 17.2 1,343,000,000 2,701,587,775
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 17.3 10,000,000 10,000,000
- Private Sector 17.4 600,000,000 200,000,000

1,953,000,000

2,911,587,775

Annual Report 2022 I167 -



(99/°'1Z€'19) (059'8irz's8t) G68'€68°ESL (£¥€'915°891) 9eE'6YS'8EY
paziuboodsl jou Auedwod
Toydteiond) 818'6S = (e6T'18L'Y) 9/8'905'9L L'l Aleipisgns sy} JO 19SSe Xel Pa.IJop $S90X3

60918/ LLE'L = G68'€68'ESL (865'678'€2) CLELEL L8LL
50085 = = (600°G717) #710'€0S 118 18 10D - JUSWISSAUI WIS} LIOYS
0€9'%29'69C'L = G68'€68°ESL (88%7'80°G€E) €2C'SI8'0SLL s}asse paxly buneisado jo uonen|eAss uo sniding
= = = (LLE'€LD) LLIEELT 14H - s8i1INdas Jo uonenjeass uo snjding
- - - - - S9SEes| Ul JUSWISSAUI 18N
PLL'9r0’0L = = (298'0£9) 9/6'9LL°0L 3|geAISD3J PUSPIAIQ
098°250'8¢€ = = 8elreo'zl TTL'8Ty'Se uoneD31dap Xe) Palelaedy
uo sadcuaia4ig Atesodwa ] sjgexe |

(9£2'887'16€'L) (891'80€'G8Y) = (95¥'5817' 0 L) (2S8'769'59/)
(9£8'0%€'90L) = = (€0L'€LS'8E) (€L1°£9L'19) SOI11IND3S PA}OND B[S 404 d|ge|leAR UO SSO| uswliedw|
(000£96°959) = = (000°'588°£0L) (000'280'619) SueO| Bulllio}19d-UoU UO UOISINOI-
(¢G.'5€2'609) (580°296°€8t) = 2 (£99°€LL'Sel) S4V - S9R1IND8s JO UoneNn|eAal uo (Idap) / sniding
(16871 IL) = = LYT'EL6'S (8eL'slz'LL) S9SSO| X€} pasnun
(£Sz'00T'L) (ege'ore’l) = = (7£8'€58'S) ue|d }youad pauRap Uo SSO| [eliendy
uo sadualajg Atesodwa | 9|qi3dNpaq
zeoe Aynb3 /Y

I Joquiedaq 1Y

DO Ul pasiubodsy

Ul pasiubodsy

T9d Ul pasiuBodey <20t L Alenuer 1y

ceoe

910N

(S13SSV) / SAILTIAVIT XV1 d3yy343a

"(Zz0z 1equwieded 1z0T) £20¢ 19quedsq

‘8l

01 €20z AN Buunp Aluniew yim wnuue Jad (%L1l (1202) %90 /L 01 %/9°GlL WoJ) Buibuel saield syy 18 dn ylew ALed (S|OD) SIUSWISSAU| JO 91edlileD 9saul v LL
(220t U2JBN :120T) £20T U2JeN uo Ajliniew yum wnuue Jad (%S 'L (120T) %cl'9l 40 91eJ oy 1e dn xiew Alied (S|OD) SIUBWISOAU| JO 91edliiaD 8sayLl €41

(zz0T 49quIsnoN 0} Zz0g Alenuer 11z0z) €20 19GUISAON

uo Aluniew yum wnuue Jad (%550l 01 %008 11202) %889l 01 %089l Woly Buibues sa1ed syl 18 dn iew Aued (S|OD) SIUSWISSAU| JO 81ed1IIeD) asayl  Z°LL

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

SAUDI PAK

2202 ‘1€ ¥39N3ID3A A3AN3T VA IHL 404

SLN3INWFLVLS TVIONVNIHd d31vVAITOSNOD 3H1 Ol S31O0N

168



(%62 1202) %EE 10 2181 8Y] 18 painsesw aie sedusialip Alejoduls) Uo Sanijigel| pue s1asse xe) pallajad 'siseq
18U UO Sadualalip Aletodwa) ajgexe) oyl 1suiebe paisnlpe Jo aininy Ul pazijeal aq Jaylid [|IM S19SSe xe) palialap ayl ‘Apusnbasuod pue syijold eyl sAsiyde 0}
a|ge a9 |IIM dnoJo ay) 1eyl ajgeqo.d si 1ey] seAaliag 1uswabeuey (JIu (LZ0Z) UOIIN ZZE'19 'SH JO S19Sse xe)] pallajap 18U pey dnols syl ‘pus Jesk 1usiind 1y

‘2JN1n} 9|geaasalo) Ul s1joid a|gexe) 01 paje|al Ajuiepiaoun JO MaIA
ul Juswabeuew s Ag paziubodal Usaq 10U sey Aueduwod Aleipisgns ayi 01 paielal (9/8°9059L 'SH :120Z) LOF'G8E ZL 'S 4O 1U1Xa8 8yl 0} 19Sse Xel pallajad

9EE'6YS8EY 62S'6CL'L9€ - zeS'TTS0E S/T'16T0F
9/8'905'9L (EVEYS) - €l0'67S'L 90Z°CL0'6
TARSWASVAVAS N €72'99/'901 - (665'£9€'9€) 899'8€€'/18
710'€0S - = (580'9/1) 660'6/9
€2T'SL8'0SLL €72'99/'901 - (008'22L'92) 08L'1LL'OLL
LLEE€LT - - zie'ce 590l

- - - (850'0£9'8L) 850'0,9'8l
9/6'9LL'0L - - /2'19%'S 20L'SSZ'S
TTL8Ty'se - - 8G/'L0L°E ¥96'02L'1T
(¢S8'769'59/) (LL€'286'8€E) - 8lLIYE'6S (665°€50'982)
(€£1°29/2°19) - - S80°TLLYT (857°6£6'16)
(000'280'61S) - - 000'VL8'EY (000'956'Z69)
(£99'€L1'STL) (z8e'9lz'se) - - (582°£55°/8)
(8eL'8L' /1) - - (£96'70L'8) (LLL'ELS'8)
(r£/8°€58'S) (686'59/) - - (588'/80°S)

120T oV

€ Joquiadaq 1

[DO Ul pasiubodsy

Anb3 ul pasiubooay

19d Ul pasiuboday

lz0oz | Aenuer 1y

Lcoc

paziuboosl jou Auedwod
'8l AJelpisgns ayi 4O 19SSe xe] Pallalap SS90XJ

g L8 10D - JUSWISSAUI WUa1 LIoYS

sj}asse pax|y bunelsdo Jo uonen|eAss uo sniding
14H - S®1}14N28S JO uoneNn|eAal uo snjding
S95L3| Ul JUBWISSAUI 19N

3|geAI®dal puspiAlg

uoneldaidap xe} payeia|eddy

uo sadcuaiaig Atesodwa ] sjgexe |

S21}31UN23S Pa1oNnb 8|S 104 3|ge(IRAR UO SSO| Jusuuliedul]
Sueo| BujuioIad-uou Uo UOISIAOIH

SHV - S8nN28s Jo uoneneAal uo (1oiep) / sniding
S9SSO0| Xe) pasnun

ue|d 3yoUSQ PBUESP UO SSO| [B1IBN}DY

uo sasualaig Adesodwa ] a|qizdnpag

910N

c8l

L'8L

2202 ‘L€ ¥39N3ID3A AIAN3 VA IHL 404

SLN3INW3LVLS TVIONVNIH4 d31vAdITOSNOD 3H1 Ol S31ON

(o)}
©
.
N
N
o
N
+—
-
o
o
D
a4
©
>
C
[
<



'saJleys BunsIxa 8yl yum nssed Led yued saleys 8sayl 'zz0T ‘97 UdJeN UO play Bunssy [elauss [enuuy ay) Ul Sispjoyaleys ayl Jo

[eaocsdde Js1je sujoud palendoiddeun wod) padtaisuedl (U :1zoz) 000‘000‘GIl 'SY 4O saJeys snuog (iU :1z0Z) 0000059l sepnpul siyl  #°0¢
‘Auedwo) BuIp|OH ay1 JO siapljoyaleys |enbs

2Je eigely Ipnes JO Wophuly JO Jleyag uo S ‘@dueulH JO AIISIUIA PUR URISHEd JO 1UBWUISAOD a1 JO J|Ieyag Uo urisSied Jo Mueg 21e1S €02

000'000°009°9 000'000°'S9L9 000000099 000005949

000°'000°009°C 000'000°'99LC ("0 ®10U) S8Jeys snUOQ se panss| 000°000'09C 000°00S'9/C

000'000°000 % 000000000 ysed ui pred Ajjnd 000°000°00Y 000000001

saJieys Aleuipio

E soJeysS JO JaqWINN

Lcoc ¢ecoc Llcoc c¢coce

000°000°000°0L

Lcoc

000'000°000° 0L

c¢ecoce

|euded aJeys dn pied pue paquasqns ‘panss| Z'0¢

yoes QL ‘s J0 saueys AleuipiO  000°000'000°L 000'000°000°L

sa.eys Jo JaquinN

lcoc zecoc
jexde) pazuoyny 1L'0C
IVLdVD 3dVHS 0
aloyeT ‘eze|d

UODIJ] pue pegewe|s| ‘ealy an|g ‘©NUSAY euulr ‘JIamo | Yed Ipnes oyl Ul 1No 18| sasiwaid 10} 9dURAPE Ul paAledal Jual siussaldalsiyl  L'6l

lLL'E66'ETY

Y168 YT
090°6lL
00S°€62°S
orTElB'6
LSZ'SL0'8
6.5'SeT'LE
§ee'ser ot

8SLY65°C9
8€S9LS6YL

Slz'06%7°0L8

lcoc

LEL'8618L

000'005C8

¢00°528'9L

€2L120°0L

¥€L'SL0°0L 7'9E
z8lLe8’ey

8¢ LLESSL L6l
Cl0'690°€E

LYL'9GESLE

S10N
¢coc

SIBUY1O

Jap|oysieys ubialo4 01 a|gehed puspaiAld
19U - SI9X04Q »D01s 0} 8|gehed
uoneJaunwal ,s10129.41g

S9ouUssge pajesuadulod 10} UOISIAOI-

ue|d 111auaq paulap 01 s|geled

sanJadoud pajusi isulele syisodap A1unoas
SUWODUI |PJUBI BOURAPY

Sosuadxa paniddy
Aous1ind |eoo| ul a|geAed 1sadsiul / uiniad / dn-Jen

S3LIavITd3HLIO ‘6L

2202 ‘1€ ¥39N3ID3A A3AN3T VA IHL 404

SLN3INWFLVLS TVIONVNIHd d31vVAITOSNOD 3H1 Ol S31O0N

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

SAUDI PAK

off



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

21.

211

Note
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of
- Available for sale securities 9.1
- Fixed assets 211
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 212

Deferred tax on surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of:

- Available for sale securities

- Fixed assets 211
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at January 1
Recognised during the year

Realised on disposal during the year - net of deferred tax
Related deferred tax liability on surplus realised on disposal
Transferred to unappropriated profitin respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred tax
Related deferred tax liability on incremental
depreciation charged during the year
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at December 31

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

- revaluation as at January 1

- revaluation recognised during the year

- surplus realised on disposal during the year
-Impact of change in tax rate

- incremental depreciation charged during the year

2022 2021

(1,897,120,736) (1,006,189,337)
3,847,347,375 3,968,328,363
22,893,624 23,847,524
1,973,120,263 2,985,986,550
609,735,752 125,773,667
(1,269,624,630) (1,150,815,223)
(659,888,878) (1,025,041,556)
1,313,231,385 1,960,944,994
3,968,328,363 2,657,833,730
- 1,402,642,217
(85,896,500) (65,424,784)
(35,084,488) (26,722,800)
3,847,347,375 3,968,328,363
1,150,815,223 770,771,780
- 406,766,243

153,893,895 -
(35,084,488) (26,722,800)
1,269,624,630 1,150,815,223
2,577,722,745 2,817,513,140
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

21.2

22.

221

22.2

223
2231

i)

iii)

-1

2022 2021

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired
in satisfaction of claims

Surplus on revaluation as at January 1 23,847,524 23,920,343
Recognised during the year - 14,712,840
Realized on disposal during the year - (14,361,521)
Incremental depreciation (953,900) (424,138)
Surplus on revaluation as at December 31 22,893,624 23,847,524
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
-Guarantees 221 70,000,000 -
-Commitments 22.2 759,115,718 1,342,595,377
829,115,718 1,342,595,377
Guarantees:
Financial guarantees 70,000,000 -
Commitments:
Commitment for the acquisition of:
- Operating fixed assets 8,935,734 5,527,051
- Intangible assets 2,525,000 3,940,759
11,460,734 9,467,810
Non disbursed commitment for term and working capital finance 747,654,984 1,333,127,567
759,115,718 1,342,595,377

Other contingent liabilities
Tax contingencies- Holding Company

The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) Islamabad did not accept the Holding Company’s contention on certain
matters in appeals relating to tax years 2004 to 2006, 2008 to 2010 and 2012 to 2014. These issues mainly relate to
disallowance of provision for non performing loans and apportionment of expenses between income subject to final
tax regime and normal tax regime. The Holding Company has filed tax references before the Islamabad High Court
that are pending adjudication. The Holding Company however, accounted for the impact of tax of Rs. 617.237 million
on provision for non performing loans & advances by routing it through Profit & Loss in the year 2018.

The related tax demands for all the aforesaid tax years aggregate to Rs 1,091.694 million, out of which Rs 635.194
million has been paid by / recovered from the Holding Company.

For the tax years 2015 to 2018, the assessing officer amended the Holding Company's assessment under section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 and created an aggregate tax demand of Rs. 1,463.932 million by making
various add backs and disallowances. The Holding Company preferred appeals before Commissioner Inland Revenue
- Appeals [CIR(A)] who in terms of separate appellate orders remanded majority of the matters to the assessing
officer and on certain matters upheld the actions of assessing officer. The Holding Company has preferred separate
appeals before ATIR for aforesaid cases which are pending adjudication.

For tax years 2015 to 2017 proceedings under section 161 were initiated and cummulative demand of Rs. 276.482
million was created on account of alleged default in withholding of tax out of which Rs 26.034 million has been paid
by / recovered from the Holding Company. The Holding Company preferred appeal before the CIR(A) who remanded
certain issues and upheld certain matters. The Holding Company preferred further appeal before ATIR which is
pending adjudication.

The management, based on the opinion of its legal counsels, believes that the above mentioned matters are likely to

be decided in favour of the Holding Company at superior appellate forums and therefore no further charge is required
to be recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

SAUDI PAK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

22.3.2 Tax contingencies- subsidiary company

22.3.2.1 The subsidary company was selected for tax audit under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for the tax
year 2014 and a tax demand of Rs 4,787,629 was raised.The subsidary company filed an appeal against the aforesaid
assessment order before the CIR(A). The CIR(A) has remanded back the case.

22.3.2.2 The subsidary company was selected for tax audit under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for the tax
year 2015 and a tax demand of Rs 9,022,333 was raised. The subsidary company filed an appeal against the aforesaid
assessment order before the CIR(A). A potential outcome of this proceedings cannot be ascertained at this stage.

22.3.2.3 The assessment in respect of tax year 2016 was amended by Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue vide
assessment order bearing bar code No. 100000125720901 dated June 13, 2022 under Section 122 (5A) of the Income
Tax Ordinance 2001 creating an aggregate demand amounting Rs. 183,642. The subsidary company filed an appeal
against the aforesaid assessment order before the CIR(A). The CIR(A) has remanded back the case.

22.3.2.4 The subsidary company was selected for tax audit under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for the tax
year 20715 and a tax demand of Rs 19,256,487 was raised. The subsidary company filed an appeal against the aforesaid
assessment order before the CIR(A). A potential outcome of this proceedings cannot be ascertained at this stage.

22.3.2.5 The subsidary company has received an order dated December 29, 2022, creating an aggregate demand amounting
Rs 18,256,487 under section 161(1A) of the Ordinance. The subsidary company filed and appeal before Commissioner
Inland Revenue Appeals CIR(A) against the said order on January 05, 2023 which has not been fixed for hearing.

22.3.3 Other contingencies

i) MACPAC Films Limited (Suit No. B-24/2014 of Rs. 1,040.623 million)

MACPAC Films Limited Karachi ("Customer") availed a Term Finance of Rs. 125 million in 2003/04 and then defaulted.
In 2011, a settlement package was approved by Holding Company which contained waiver/write-off of Rs. 72.659
million on account of Markup and Liquidated Damages subject to payment of Rs. 100.141 million. The Customer
accepted and paid Rs. 100.141 million. The write off/waiver was reported to the Credit Information Bureau of the State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in compliance with regulatory requirements. Customer requested Holding Company and SBP
to remove its name from CIB as it was allegedly reflecting bad on its business. Neither SBP nor Holding Company
agreed however, the Customer filed the subject suit in 2014 in the Sindh High Court, Karachi which is being contested
on merits. On the Court's direction, SBP has also filed comments endorsing regulatory compliance by Holding
Company. So far, the Customer’s evidence has been recorded. Now, it is fixed for recording of Holding Company’s
evidence (Defendant). Holding Company is confident that there is no substance in the present suit and liable to be
dismissed after due process of law.

ii) Muhammad Zafar Sultan Paracha vs. Saudi Pak, Federation of Pakistan, DHA, Mukhtiarkar Gadap Town, Karachi
(Suit No.1065/2014 of Rs. 200 million)

On April 27, 2014, the Holding Company invited bids for the sale of four properties i.e. farm house at Gadap Town and
three plots (DHA Plots No.9-C, 17-C, 20-C) at Karachi. Highest bid of Rs. 134.500 million offered by Mr. Mudassir for
only three plots at DHA was accepted, down payment was received and sale agreement dated June 2, 2014 was
executed between Holding Company and the highest bidder through his nominee. Mr. Zafar Sultan Paracha had
offered a lower bid of Rs. 93 million against all the four properties therefore his bid was rejected. He filed the subject
suit in the Sindh High Court, Karachi and obtained an interim stay on July 5, 2014 restraining transfer of the above
mentioned plots. Holding Company contested and got the stay vacated through Court as a result, three plots at DHA
were transferred to the successful bidder/buyer after receipt of balance sale consideration. Mr. Piracha then filed an
Appeal in the Court against the Stay Vacation Order which was also contested by Holding Company, separately.
While vacating the stay order, the learned Judge of the Sindh High Court had observed that remaining suit to the
extent of damages claimed against alleged loss of business opportunity etc, will separately be heard and decided.
Appeal was fixed for hearing on 20 April 2022 but neither the counsel nor the Appellant attended the hearing,
therefore, the Division Bench of the Sindh High Court dismissed the Appeal for non-prosecution. Holding Company
has filed its reply in the suit proceeding and filed Application for rejection of Plaint being without any merits having no
cause of action. Hearing is now scheduled on 06 March 2023 for settling issues for evidence of parties and arguments
on Holding Company’s application seeking out-right rejection of the plaint. Prima facie, the suit is baseless, as no cause
of action is accrued to the Plaintiff, therefore, it is expected that it will be dismissed after due process of law.
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iiii) Kohinoor Spinning Mills Limited and its Guarantors vs. Saudi Pak (Suite No.258676/2018 of Rs. 600 million)

The Customer had availed Term Finance Facility (TFF) of Rs. 400 million from the Holding Company in 2014 but
defaulted after part payments whereof the Holding Company filed a recovery suit of Rs. 396.085 million against the
Customer and its directors/guarantors in the Lahore High Court, Lahore in which proceedings still continue. In 2018, the
Customer filed a Suit of for Declaration and damages of Rs. 600 million against Holding Company in the same court.
The Customer alleged that TFF of Rs. 400 million approved by the Holding Company was not disbursed to the
Customer and due to non-disbursement of the approved TFF, the Customer suffered business losses of Rs. 200
million. Its reply was filed by the Holding Company. The Suit is at evidence stage. Recording of Customer’s evidence
is in process and Holding Company's evidence will be recorded after completion of customer’s evidence. Holding
Company believes that the suit of the Customer is a counterblast against Holding Company’s initiated litigation.
Holding Company has denied all allegations vehemently by filing reply to this. The management believes there is no
substance in this suit and will be dismissed on merits after due process of law.

23. Presently, the Group does not deal in derivative products.
2022 2021
24. MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED Note
On loans and advances 1,062,279,338 131,054,292
On investments 4,088,857,074 2,597,861,136
On lendings to financial institutions 26,062,611 4,686,802
On balances with banks 9,691,975 9,462,062
5,186,890,998 3,743,064,292
25, MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED
Deposits 251 347,353,169 197,052,381
Borrowings
Securities purchased under repurchase agreements 3,444,840,982 1,522,641,882
Other short term borrowings 486,422,628 281,373,700
Long term finance for export oriented projects from SBP 40,187,941 21,758,569
Long term borrowings 337,890,358 257,058,285
4,309,341,909 2,082,832,436
Brokerage fee 4,666,899 9,156,371

4,661,361,977

2,289,041,188

25.1 The markup expensed amounting to Rs. 1,225,668 (2021: Rs. 771,746) relates to Saudi Pak Employees Contributory

Fund.

26. FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

2022

2021

Credit related fees 8,775,000 3,860,000
Commission on guarantees 175,000 -
8,950,000 3,860,000
27.  (LOSS)/ GAIN ON SECURITIES
Realised 271 66,148,755 (301,980,100)
Unrealised - held for trading 9.1 1,347,140 1,860,369
67,495,895 (300,119,731)

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021
27.1 Realised (loss) / gain on:
Federal Government Securities 51,000 (345,070,665)
Mutual funds - 9,173
Shares- listed 37,493,074 43,081,392
Shares - unlisted 28,604,681 -
66,148,755 (301,980,100)
28. OTHER INCOME
Rent on property - net 281 237,770,603 209,539,229
(Loss) / gain on sale of fixed assets - net 22,753,534 (1,324,399)
Gain on sale of non banking assets - 60,630,049
Others 12,552,675 20,122,185
273,076,812 288,967,064
28.1 Rent on property - net
Rental income 469,137,177 407,881,489
Less: property expense
Salaries, allowances and employee benefits 34,718,943 28,861,689
Traveling and conveyance 2,700 3,100
Medical 1,228,016 500,424
Janitorial services 12,624,321 11,681,103
Security services 24,523,502 23,533,773
Insurance 2.170,994 1,817,391
Postage, telegraph, telegram and telephone 41,632 97,321
Printing and stationery 124,541 46,132
Utilities 13,067,191 14,424,300
Consultancy and professional charges = 100,000
Repairs and maintenance 16,287,578 1,076,469
Rent, rates and taxes 2,656,870 2,735,184
Depreciation 122,185,410 102,131,308
Office general expenses 1,734,876 1,334,066
231,366,574 198,342,260
237,770,603 209,539,229
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Note
29. OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense 291

Property expense

Rent & taxes

Insurance

Utilities cost

Security (including guards)

Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges)
Depreciation

Information technology expenses
Software maintenance
Hardware maintenance
Amortisation

Network charges

Other operating expenses

Shareholders' fee

Directors' fees and allowances

Legal and professional charges

Consultancy, custodial and rating services

Outsourced services costs

Travelling and conveyance

Depreciation

Training and development

Postage and courier charges

Communication

Stationery and printing

Marketing, advertisement and publicity

Donations 29.2
Auditors' remuneration 293
Repair and maintenance

Insurance

Office and general expenses

Bank charges

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

1

2022

2021

279,547,285 309,522,453
526,106 537,895
310,142 259,627
26,029,722 16,844,118
4,892,041 4,608,168
4,130,272 3,251,082
17,455,058 14,590,187
53,343,341 40,091,077
7,550,749 6,241,842
1,911,398 1,457,324
4,422,525 4,592,471
4,324,979 4,032,596
18,209,651 16,324,233
(5,293,500) 5,293,500
25,250,000 22,790,000
5,708,367 8,733,533
9,379,323 9,036,366
40,668,689 40,121,512
36,723,947 13,367,063
28,215,423 27,111,438
2,819,548 2,786,747
419,168 688,466
4,085,899 3,813,302
5,451,222 5,757,294
2,672,104 2,855,166
3,000,000 1,000,000
3,200,250 2,825,000
4,438,299 4,954,829
1,879,022 2,530,678
16,199,043 16,580,100
254,813 299,155
185,071,617 170,544,149
536,171,894 536,481,912
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2022 2021
29.1 Total compensation expense
Fees and allowances etc. - -
Managerial remuneration
i) Fixed 119,285,632 120,757,046
ii) Variable
of which;

a) Cash bonus / awards etc. 11,200,000 50,000,000
b) Bonus & awards in shares etc. = -
Charge for defined benefit plan 10,887,223 5,385,748
Contribution to defined contribution plan 10,589,261 10,008,653
Compensated absences 7,694,770 6,821,564
Leave fare assistance 4,434,247 4,486,970
Exgratia 9,128,662 8,342,846
Rent & house maintenance 52,492,716 50,934,136
Utilities 11,169,873 10,609,962
Medical 19,250,912 21.14,232
Conveyance 20,181,714 16,556,309
Grant to employee - 2,500,000
Others 2911 3,232,275 2,004,987
Sub-total 279,547,285 309,522,453

Sign-on bonus - -
Severance allowance - -
Grand total 279,547,285 309,522,453
29.11 This includes mainly group life insurance for permanent employees.
29.2 Donations
Prime Minister's Flood Relief Fund Account 2022 2,000,000 -
Make-A-Wish Foundation Pakistan 400,000 -
Cancer Foundation Hospital 300,000 -
Aziz Jehan Begum Trust For The Blind 300,000 -
Behbud Association Of Pakistan - 400,000
Sundas Foundation - 300,000
Sahil - 300,000
3,000,000 1,000,000
29.3 Auditors' remuneration
Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Audit fee 1,700,000 -
Half yearly review 750,000 -
Fee for other statutory certifications 200,000 -
Out of pocket expenses 175,000 -
2,825,000 -
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30.

31

32.

321

-l

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Audit fee

Half yearly review

Fee for other statutory certifications
Out of pocket expenses

Fee for other certifications
Tax services

OTHER CHARGES
Penalties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan

PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET

Provisions for diminution in value of investments- net
(Reversal) / provisions against loans & advances- net
Bad debts written off directly

TAXATION

Current tax
Current year
Prior years

Deferred tax

Current year
Prior year

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Accounting profit for the year
Tax rate

Tax on accounting profit
Tax effect onincome subject to lower rate of taxation
Tax effect of prior years
Impact of super tax for current year
Impact of change of rate on deferred tax
Reversal of deferred tax asset for prior year
Minimum tax of subsidiary company
Permanent differences on
Reversal of provision against investment
Expenses not claimable against rental income
Right of use asset under IFRS - 16 Leases
Others

SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Note

9.31
10.4

321

2022

2021

- 1,700,000
- 750,000
- 200,000
- 175,000
- 2,825,000
375,250 -
3,200,250 2,825,000
30,000 130,429
30,000 130,429
204,114,878 101,275,992
113,895,841 (241,560,274)
- 607,822
318,010,719 (139,676,460)
211,252,963 389,087,844
47,537,381 (1,057,879)
258,790,344 388,029,965
(168,516,347) 30,522,532
(168,516,347) 30,522,532
90,273,997 418,552,497
443,075,339 1,371,602,056
29% 29%
128,491,848 397,764,596
(73,641,008) 42,263,200
47,537,381 (1,057,879)
31,327,256 -
(99,581,727) -
7,644,770 2,621,668
47 113,204 53,542,123
(2,089,590) (2,110,090)
3,471,863 (74,471121)
90,273,997 418,552,497
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33.

34.

35.

35.1

36.
36.1

36.2

2022 2021
BASIC / DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year - Rupees 352,801,342 953,049,559
Restated
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 676,500,000 676,500,000
Basic / diluted earnings per share - Rupee 0.522 1.409
2022 2021
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Balance with Treasury Banks 116,440,110 101,956,575
Balance with other banks 137,866,992 179,155,362
254,307,102 281,111,937
2022 2021
STAFF STRENGTH m
Permanent 73 71
On Group's contract 1 3
Group's own staff strength at the end of the year 74 74

In addition to the above, 85 (2021: 92) employees of outsourcing services companies were assigned to the
Company as at the end of the year to perform services other than security and janitorial services. No
employee was working abroad.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

General description

The Group operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its regular employees and GM/CEO.
Contributions are made in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. The benefits under the
gratuity fund are payable in lump sum on retirement at the age of 60 years or earlier cessation of service,
subject to minimum service period of three years. The benefit is equal to month's last drawn basic salary
for each completed year of eligible service and on pro-rata basis for the incomplete year. The latest
actuarial valuation of defined benefit plan was conducted at December 31, 2022 using the projected unit
credit method. Detail of the defined benefit plan are:

Number of employees under the scheme
The number of employees covered under the following defined benefit scheme are:

2022 2021

—

Gratuity fund 74 72
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36.3 Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuations was carried out as at December 31, 2022 using the following significant
assumptions:

2022 2021

Discount rate - (the Holding Company) 14.50% per annum 11.75% per annum
Discount rate - (the subsidiary company) 11.75% per annum 9.75% per annum
Expected rate of return on plan assets 12.57% per annum 8.02% per annum
Expected rate of salary increase - (the Holding Company) 12.50% per annum 9.75% per annum
Expected rate of salary increase - (the subsidiary company) N/A N/A
Mortality rates SLIC (2001-05)-1 SLIC (2001-05)-1
Rate of employee turnover Moderate Moderate

2022 2021

36.4 Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plans

Present value of obligations 78,318,840 67,985,232
Fair value of plan assets (68,303,106) (60,397,842)
Payable to Member - 427,861
Net liability payable 10,015,734 8,015,251

36.5 Movement in defined benefit obligations

Obligations at the beginning of the year 67,985,232 67,900,973
Current service cost 7,947,441 7,067,466
Interest cost 7,958,153 6,142,339
Benefits paid by the Group (9,439,947) (12,371,018)
Past service cost/ (Plan Curtailment) 2,108,206 (2,141,006)
Benefits Payable - (427,861)
Re-measurement loss 1,759,755 1,814,339
Obligations at the end of the year 78,318,840 67,985,232

36.6 Movement in fair value of plan assets

Fair value at the beginning of the year 60,397,842 59,587,414
Interest income on plan assets 7,126,577 5,683,051
Contributions by Group - net 10,308,832 8,693,217
Benefits paid by the Fund to the Group (9,867,808) (12,371,018)
Re-measurements: net return on plan assets

over interestincome - 1oss 36.8.2 337,663 (1,194,822)
Fair value at the end of the year 68,303,106 60,397,842

— SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
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Note

36.7 Movement in payable under defined benefit schemes

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Benefits paid to outgoing members

Contribution by the Group - net

Re-measurement loss recognised in OCI

during the year 36.8.2

Amount paid by the fund to the Group
Closing balance

36.8 Charge for defined benefit plans

36.8.1 Cost recognised in profit and loss

Current service cost
Past service cost (credit) arising on plan curtailment
Net interest on defined benefit liability

36.8.2 Re-measurements recognised in OCI during the year

Loss / (gain) on obligation
- Demographic assumptions

- Financial assumptions

- Experience adjustments
Total actuarial loss on obligation
Return on plan assets over interestincome - loss
Total re-measurements recognised in OCI

36.9 Components of plan assets

Cash and cash equivalents - net
Term deposit receipts (TDR) / Certificate of Investment
Investment in mutual funds

2022

2021

8,015,251 8,313,559
10,887,223 5,385,748
(9,439,947) (12,371,018)

(10,308,832) (8,693,217)
1,422,092 3,009,161
9,439,947 12,371,018

10,015,734 8,015,251
7,947,441 7,067,466
2,108,206 (2,141,006)
831,576 459,288
10,887,223 5,385,748
920,363 526,828
839,392 1,287,511

1,759,755 1,814,339

(337,663) 194,822

1,422,092 3,009,161

5,390,951 5,356,645
60,448,597 52,828,325

2,463,558 2,212,872
68,303,106 60,397,842

36.9.1 There is no significant risk associated with the plan assets, as it consists of fixed interest rate bearing
TDR's, saving accounts with financial institutions and investment in mutual funds having satisfactory

credit ratings.
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36.10

36.11
36.12

36.13

B -]

Sensitivity analysis

A sensitivity analysis is performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant
and calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the gratuity
scheme. The increase in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each
assumption is summarised below:

2022 2021
Discount rate +0.5% 74,156,278 65,239,549
Discount rate -0.5% 78,443,112 68,964,370
Long term salary increase +0.5% 78,647,254 69,095,674
Long term salary increase -0.5% 73,944,945 65,097,947

2023
---- Rupees ----
Expected contributions to be paid to the fund in the next financial year 10,180,984
Expected charge for next financial year
Current service cost 8,777,376
Net interest on defined benefit asset / liability 1,403,608
10,180,984
2022 2021

Maturity profile

Distribution of timing of benefit payments (years)

- 1 5,790,920 8,008,153
- 2 42,119,346 31,549,238
- 3 11,911,730 7,575,835
- 4 3,517,027 10,754,397
- 5 5,335,696 2,862,200
- 6-10 103,796,055 48,122,388
Weighted average duration of the PBO (years) - 5.27 5.45
(the Holding Company)

Weighted average duration of the PBO (years) - 6.00 6.00

(the subsidiary company)

SAUDI PAK
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36.14 Funding Policy

An implicit, though not formally expressed objective is that the liabilities under the scheme in respect of
members in service on the valuation date on a going concern basis and having regard to projected future
salary increases, should be covered by the Fund on the valuation date, the total book reserve as of the
valuation date, future contributions to the Fund, future additions to the book reserve and future
projected investment income of the Fund.

36.15 Significant risk associated with the staff retirement benefit schemes

The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to

Asset volatility meet the liabilities.

Changes in bond yields | Not applicable as underling interest rate on bonds is fixed.

The investment and bank balances may loose its value due to the increase

Inflation risk of general inflation rate.

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect

Life expectancy depends on the beneficiaries' service/age distribution and the benefit.

The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final
Withdrawal rate effect could go either way depending on the beneficiaries' service/age
distribution and the benefit.

37. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Group operates a recognized provident fund scheme for all its regular employees for which equal
monthly contributions are made both by the Group and by the employees to the Fund at the rate of 10%
of basic salary of the employee. Payments are made to the employees as specified in the rules of the
Fund. As per latest available unaudited financial statements of the Fund, total assets of the Fund as at
December 31, 2022 were Rs. 141,427,906 (2021: Rs. 124,256,264).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

42. CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

2022 2021

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
Paid-up capital (net of losses) 6,765,000 6,600,000

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1(CET 1) Capital 12,253,559 11,993,920
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital = -

Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 12,253,559 11,993,920
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 1,124,774 1,662,546
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1+ Tier 2) 13,378,333 13,656,466

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAS):

Credit Risk 22,217,420 18,537,351
Market Risk 6,111,660 7,191,165
Operational Risk 2,876,520 3,238,102
Total 31,205,600 28,966,618
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 39.27% 41.41%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 39.27% 41.41%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 42.87% 47 15%

As of December 2022, the Holding Company is required to meet a Tier 1 to RWA ratio and CAR,
including CCB, of 7.5% and 11.5% respectively.

Standardized Approach is used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for Market and Credit Risk while
Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) is used for Operational Risk.

2022 2021

Leverage Ratio (LR):

Eligible Tier-1 Capital 12,253,559 11,993,920
Total Exposures 53,966,116 45,532,808
Leverage Ratio 22.71% 26.34%

— SAUDI PAK

INDUSTRIAL AND AGRICULTURAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assets 4,639,985 5,109,796
Total Net Cash Outflow 3,295,451 2,266,280
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 140.80% 225.47%

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding 36,098,612 30,780,826
Total Required Stable Funding 21,362,298 18,385,334
Net Stable Funding Ratio 168.98% 167.42%

421 The link to the full disclosures for capital adequacy, leverage and liquidity ratios will be available at
https://www.saudipak.com/financial/

43. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group defines risk as the possibility that an action or event could have adverse outcomes, which
could either result in a direct loss of earnings / capital, or the imposition of constraints on the ability to
meet objectives. In the normal course of business, the Group is exposed to various risks, including, but not
limited to, credit, market, liquidity, and operational risks. The Group recognizes that management of these
risks is essential for maintaining financial viability and achieving objectives. In this regard, the Group's
approach to risk management is to ensure the ongoing alignment of its risk levels with its risk appetite
through a coordinated set of activities that direct and control the Group with regard to risk.

The Group's overall appetite for risk is governed by its Board of Directors (Board) approved "Risk
Management Policy", which delineates key definitions, roles and responsibilities, risk appetite / risk limits,
and principles for managing risk across the Group. The Group's Risk Management Framework, comprising
of the Risk Management Policy, other Board-approved policies, procedural manuals, sound management
information system (MIS) and reporting, and clearly articulated roles, responsibilities and accountabilities,
is fundamental to the Group's overall risk management culture and awareness.

The Group recognizes that responsibility for risk management resides at all levels, since the risk
management processes rely on individual responsibility and independent oversight. The Board, duly
supported by its Risk Management Committee, is accountable for ensuring that adequate and sound
structures and policies are in place for risk management. The Management's role is to transform strategic
decisions and risk appetite set by the Board into effective processes and systems, and to institute an
appropriate hierarchy to execute and implement the approved policies and procedures. In this regard, the
Group has implemented a three-line-of-defense approach, wherein as a first line of defense, risk
management activities are performed in the business units and functional support units, with the
Divisional Heads being accountable for managing risk in their area of operations in accordance with the
Risk Management Framework, as well as for the results (both positive and negative) of taking these risks.

To assist in discharge of these responsibilities and accountabilities, various cross-functional committees
have been constituted at the Senior Management level, and delegation of authority in financial /
operational powers for the Divisions / Regional Offices has been clearly defined. The Risk Management
Division (RMD) and Compliance Division (CD) serve as second-line of defense by providing independent
oversight of the Group's risk-taking activities and regulatory compliance respectively. The RMD's
responsibilities include the design of a clear, transparent and well-aligned Risk Management Policy,
independent pre-approval risk reviews of proposals and policies, and ongoing assessment, monitoring
and reporting of risks at the portfolio and enterprise level through a broad spectrum of techniques.
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The second-line-of-defense is further strengthened through the presence of cross-functional committees
such as Credit Risk Management Committee, Operational Risk Management Committee and Compliance
Committee. The Internal Audit Division functions as the third-line-of-defense, with direct reporting to the
Audit Committee of the Board and independently carrying out internal audits in line with its approved
roles and responsibilities.

On an enterprise level, risk monitoring results for the year revealed that the Group's Capital Adequacy
Ratio (CAR) remained well above both the internal as well as the regulatory requirements throughout the
year, and that the capital and liquidity position remained resilient even under stress.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to the Group's earnings or capital arising from the potential that an obligor is
either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability to perform on such obligation is impaired. Credit
risk arises primarily from the Group's advances / debt investments portfolio and lending to financial
institutions (FIs) portfolio. Credit risk may also arise at the portfolio level in case of inadequate
diversification of the advances portfolio, in terms of industrial sectors, regions, products, or clients.

Pursuit of credit risk is essential to fulfilling the corporate objectives of the Group, and is a primary source
of income, conversely, also constituting one of the greatest risk of losses. In this regard, focus is primarily
on bankable transactions, offering adequate risk & reward relationship with satisfactory security support.
The Group's credit risk management process encompasses identification, assessment, monitoring and
control of credit risk exposures. As part of this process, obligor risk, facility risk and environmental risk are
carefully evaluated using internal risk rating methodologies, as articulated in the Group’s Internal Credit
Risk Rating Policy.

Advances exposures are invariably secured by credit risk mitigants in the form of various types of
collateral / security with adequate margins. Readily marketable / liquid securities / urban properties are
preferred over other forms of collateral. Credit risk stress testing is regularly carried out to identify
vulnerable areas for initiating corrective action, if necessary. Regular assessment, monitoring and
reporting of the performing & non-performing credit risk portfolio in terms of trends & concentrations, is
made by the Risk Management Division (RMD) to the Credit Risk Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Board. Board-approved Credit Policy, Credit Risk Policy, Credit
Administration Policy, and Special Asset Management Policy are in place, clearly establishing relevant
roles and responsibilities, selection criteria, principles and limits for credit risk.

Specific norms for appraisal, sanctioning, documentation, inspections and monitoring, maintenance,
rehabilitation and management of assets have been stipulated. Internal controls and processes in place
for credit risk management also include:

- Well-defined credit approval and disbursement mechanism, with deliberation at cross-functional
committee, and review by independent functions;

- Post-disbursement credit administration, monitoring and review, including review of credit ratings;

- Board-approved borrower / group limits well within those prescribed in terms of Prudential
Regulations, along with other limits on portfolio concentration, e.g. sectoral limits;

- Board-approved counterparty limits for lendings to Fls in place and regularly reviewed,;

- Clear lines of authority for Treasury transactions, and independent Back Office / Settlement Division
in place to process deals;

- Independent Middle Office in place at RMD to monitor lending to Fls limit compliance;

- Credit Risk Management Committee-approved insurer-wise limits and eligible valuers in place and
reviewed annually;

SAUDI PAK
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- Policies & procedures circulated amongst concerned functionaries through the Group's intranet; and
- Various training initiatives to enhance credit risk knowledge for concerned personnel.

Dedicated Special Asset Management Division (SAMD) and Law Division (LD) are in place to manage past
due and impaired assets through litigation, workout or other remedial measures, as appropriate. The
Group adheres to the SBP instructions for definitions of past due and impaired assets in the Corporate /
Commercial, SME-Medium Enterprise, and SME-Small Enterprise categories respectively.

In addition, the Group may consider subjective criteria in determining account classification. The Group
determines provisioning requirements for non-performing advances in accordance with the requirements
of the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP. Write-offs are made when there is no realistic prospect of
recovery.

The Group employs the Basel Standardized Approach to determine capital requirements for credit risk.
As per SBP Guidelines, the Group recognizes VIS and PACRA as approved rating agencies and applies
their ratings where available to determine appropriate risk weight by using mapping criteria prescribed by
SBP. In absence of external ratings, the exposures are treated as unrated and relevant risk weights are
applied. The Group follows Simple Approach for credit risk mitigation in its Basel capital calculation. Under
Simple Approach, the risk weight of the mitigant is substituted for the risk weight of the counterparty to
the extent coverage is provided by the mitigant, provided the former risk weight is lower than the latter.

The Group is presently not involved in securitization activities.

The Group's maximum credit risk exposure as at December 31, 2022 amounted to:

2022 2022
Without With
benefit of benefit of
collateral collateral

Lending to financial institutions = =
Debtinvestments

(excluding Government of Pakistan local currency - 1,892,240,421
denominated debt)

Advances - 9,119,337,560

= 11,011,577,981
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2022 2021
43.1.4 Contingencies and Commitments
Commitments: credit risk by industry sector
Textile 378,000,000 8,575,500
Cement 5,264,695 1,000,000,000
Sugar 112,000,000 -
Electronics and electrical appliances 52,390,289 124,552,067
Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 70,000,000 -
Financial 200,000,000 200,000,000
Others 11,460,734 9,467,810
829,115,718 1,342,595,377
Credit risk by public / private sector
Public/ Government - -
Private 829,115,718 1,342,595,377
829,115,718 1,342,595,377

43.1.5 Concentration of Advances

Top 10 exposures of the Group on the basis of total (funded and non-funded exposures) aggregated to
Rs. 7,153 million (2021: Rs. 5,752 million) as follows:

2022 2021

Funded 7,153,388,076 5,751,975,737
Non Funded - -

Total Exposure 7,153,388,076 5,751,975,737

The sanctioned limits against these top 10 exposures aggregated to Rs. 8,025,000,000 (2021:
Rs. 6,901,341,120).

2022 2021
Amount Provision held Amount Provision held
Total funded classified therein
Substandard - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
Loss - - 719,909,649 719,909,649
Total - - 719,909,649 719,909,649
SAUDI PAK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

43.2

e

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss to the Group’s earnings or capital arising from potential movements in market
risk factors, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposed to
market risk from its banking book as well as trading book exposures, the latter of which includes HFT & AFS
investments in debt & listed equity instruments. The Group uses Basel Standardized Approach to assess
the market risk for its trading book exposures. The portfolios covered under the approach include the Held
for Trading (HFT) and Available for Sale (AFS) investments in debt and listed equity instruments. The capital
charge required there against is presented in Note 41.

The market risk strategy of the Group is to maximize returns while keeping exposure to market risk at or
below the approved levels, provided in the shape of market risk limits. Board-approved Treasury Policy, PMD
Investment Policy and Market Risk Policy are in place with defined market risk management parameters /
limits to control market risk levels. The Treasury Division (TD) and Portfolio Management Division (PMD)
consider economic and market conditions, along with the Group’s portfolio mix, diversification and expertise
when setting and executing annual business strategy and reviewing policy.

Assets / Liability Management Committee (ALCO) meets monthly, and evaluates liquidity, market and
interest rate risk as part of its approved Terms of Reference. An independent Market & Liquidity Risk /
Middle Office Unit housed in RMD is tasked to, inter alia, independently monitor, measure and analyze
market risk of the Group on daily basis, perform risk review of day-to-day PMD & TD activities, escalate any
limit breaches or exceptions on the same working day of identification, review the Group’s interest rate risk
management framework & methodology, and prepare risk reports for ALCO and RMCB, including review of
performance of the investment portfolio.

The Group uses a comprehensive suite of risk measurement techniques to assess market risk in the trading
book, which includes monitoring levels and trends in mark-to-market, price value of basis point (PVBP), beta,
and Value-at-Risk (VaR) metrics, as well as stress tests and sensitivity analyses based on these measures.
VaR is calculated for all trading book positions and portfolios on a daily basis, and measures the estimated
maximum loss over a defined horizon based on historical simulation.

The Group calculates its VaR with a 1-day, 10-day and 30-day horizon period using a one-tail, 99% confidence
interval in accordance with Basel specifications. The 1-day VaR is further back tested on daily basis against
next day’s P&L based on actual observed movements in market risk factors. Back testing results suggest
that the model is currently providing an appropriate estimate of the risk. For interest rate risk in the banking
book, the Group primarily relies on gap analysis & static simulation model. Stress tests are carried out for
traded & non-traded market risks on the basis of extreme, yet plausible, stress scenarios. Results produced
by the aforementioned models are included in management and Board-committee reporting.
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43.2.3

43.2.4

e

Equity position Risk

The Group’s objective regarding trading in equities is to maximize the return on equity investment by
acquiring fundamentally strong shares at appropriate levels and maintaining such a balance between short
term and long term investment that can provide maximum possible opportunities to avail both capital gains
and dividend income. The Group’s maximum exposure to the stock market is constrained in terms of the
single-stock and aggregate limits prescribed under the SBP Prudential Regulations. Prime responsibility
for managing the Group’s equity positions rests with the Portfolio Management Division (PMD). The Board
of Directors has approved sectoral limits, as well as portfolio limits that fall within the SBP-prescribed
aggregate limit for DFIs. Senior Management’s Quoted Securities Monitoring Committee reviews investment
climate and stock market investment strategy & portfolio, and reviews & approves listed stock investment
/ divestment recommendations by PMD, and stop loss decision where required. Unquoted Investments
Monitoring Committee is also in place to monitor and manage investments in unquoted companies. The
Market & Liquidity Risk /Middle Office Unit housed in RMD independently monitors PMD deals, policy /
limit compliance, broker usage, realized/unrealized gain/loss, and generates market risk metrics such as
beta, Value-at-Risk, sensitivity analyses and stress tests. The Unit is responsible for escalation of any limit
breaches to concerned authorities, and also provides monthly summary reports to ALCO and periodic
performance reports to the Risk Management Committee of the Board. PMD performance is also regularly
reviewed by ALCO through regular reporting by the former, with the latter also serving as approving
authority for the broker panel.

2022 2021
Banking Trading book Banking Trading book
book book
Impact of 5% change in equity prices on
- Profit and loss account - - - 3,396,400
- Other comprehensive income - 111,250,320 - 122,748,780

Yield / Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)-Basel Il Specific

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from its trading book and banking book. Interest rate risk in the trading
book is a result of HFT & AFS investments in debt instruments that are reported at fair value, and whose
value is influenced by prevailing interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures in the banking book
originate from financial assets & liabilities that are exposed to different points in the yield curve, and are not
matched in terms of repricing / maturity dates or interest rate basis. Since the Group does not take non-
maturity deposits and bulk of its loans are floating-rate in nature, optionality/prepayment-related interest
rate risk is insignificant.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to control exposure to interest rate risk, within
approved limits. The Group has Board-approved Treasury Policy and Interest Rate Risk Management
Framework in place that govern the interest rate risk management process. The Treasury Division directly
functions to manage interest rate risks through diversification of exposures and structuring matching asset/
liability transactions. The ALCO provides oversight of interest rate risk, including articulating interest rate
view, deciding on future business strategy, monitoring interest rate risk and deliberating on mitigation
measures. To control interest rate risk in the trading book, duration limits are in place for the fixed income
investment portfolio, in terms of the Treasury Policy. To control interest rate risk in the banking book,
target levels have been established on the repricing/ maturity gaps in each time band, as determined
through slotting of interest-rate sensitive assets and liabilities according to contractual repricing / maturity
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dates, whichever is earlier, and ALCO-approved earnings at risk tolerance limit is also in place. The Market
& Liquidity Risk / Middle Office Unit monitors limit compliance, reviews the interest rate risk management
framework, develops interest rate risk measurement methodology, and provides monthly & quarterly reports
to ALCO. Interest rate risk measurement methodology currently employed by the Group for the trading
book includes marking-to-market, price value of basis point (PVBP), sensitivity analyses / stress testing and
Value-at-Risk. For the banking book, methodology is based on gap analysis and static simulation, with an

earnings and economic value perspective, as well as stress testing.

2021

Trading book

2022
Banking Trading book Banking
book ¢ book
Rupees
Impact of 1% change in interest rates on
- Profit and loss account 36,408,226 - 54,993,234

- Other comprehensive income -
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43.3 Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or
from external events. Types of events that can lead to operational risk include:

- Internal / external fraud events

- Employment practices & workplace safety events
- Clients, products & business practices events

- Damage to physical assets events

- Business disruption and system failures events

- Execution, delivery & process management events

Types of operational risk losses can include monetary, regulatory, client, or health & safety loss, or legal
liability / inability to enforce legal claim, and measures that may be taken to mitigate losses include improving
underlying processes through enhanced internal controls, having contingency plan / backup arrangements
in place, and ensuring adequate insurance coverage.

The Group’s operational risk management process is governed by the Operational Risk Management
Framework (“ORMF”) and Operational Risk Policy which have been duly approved by the Board of Directors.
The operational risk management structure comprises the line management as first line of defense, an
independent Operational Risk Management Unit (“ORMU”) operating under the Risk Management Division
(“RMD”) as second line of defense, and independent Internal Audit as third line of defense. An organizational
culture of integrity and discipline built through trainings and appropriate hiring, and separation of duties
and principles of internal control as embedded in relevant policies and procedures, are key principles for
operational risk management. Operational Risk Coordinators (“ORCs”) that have been established from
each division work with the ORMU to identify, analyze, explain and mitigate operational issues within their
respective areas of expertise. The ORMU develops and updates the ORMF, implements operational risk
measurement and reporting, and coordinates with ORCs to source necessary information and promote
sound operational risk management. Senior management-level Operational Risk Management Committee
(“ORMC”) meets quarterly with the goal to assure that actions are being taken to meet the stated objective
of operational risk management in the Group. Presently loss data, key risk indicators, risk & control self-
assessments, and scenario analysis are being used to assess operational risk. Operational risk reports on
the basis of these tools, along with suggested risk mitigants where required, are presented by ORMU to the
ORMC. Operational risk reports are also discussed as part of the agenda of meetings of Risk Management
Committee of the Board (“RMCB”).

In order to ensure business continuity, resumption and recovery of critical business process after a disaster,
the Group has a robust Business Continuity Plan / Disaster Recovery Plan in place, with off-site backup and
regular testing carried out. The Group also has a Technology Governance Framework & IT Security Policy in
place, addressing issues such as incident reporting, risk identification, IT controls and systems security, with
added oversight provided by regular meetings of the IT Steering Committee of management. KYC / AML
Policies are also in place for Credit and Treasury activities.

Basic Indicator Approach with capital charge of 15% of average gross income for previous 3 years has been
applied for Operational Risk. Loss data process has been fully implemented, with ORCs providing details for
events / near misses / potential losses through an in-house software.
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43.4

-]

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential for loss arising from either an inability to meet obligations or to fund increase
in assets as they fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses.

The liquidity risk strategy of the Group is to strive to maintain liquidity at an acceptable level over the short-
and long-term, in order to settle financial obligations in a timely and economical manner. Liquidity Risk
Policy, Treasury Policy and Contingency Funding Plan are in place to govern the liquidity risk management
process. The prime responsibility for the management of liquidity risk lies with Treasury Division (TD) which
ensures that the Group’s operations can meet its current and future funding needs. Mix of Saudi Pak assets
and liabilities is monitored by TD to ensure that gaps are efficiently managed, and target gap levels are in
place. Regulatory limits (e.g. Statutory Liquidity Requirement [SLR], Net Stable Funding Ratio [NSFR]) are
monitored and returns are submitted. Internal limit on liquid assets to total borrowings and deposits is also
in place. TD further aims for effective diversification of sources of borrowing / liquidity. The Group’s leverage
also remains well within parameters allowed by SBP, ensuring a stable source of liquidity in the form of
capital. ALCO provides additional oversight for liquidity risk management through its monthly meetings. The
Market & Liquidity Risk / Middle Office Unit housed in RMD independently reviews liquidity risk policy, and
monitors liquidity ratios, gaps and funding concentrations on daily basis, providing regular reporting on the
same to ALCO along with stress testing, with timely escalation in case of any limit breach. The Group overall
strives to maintain a strong market reputation and to keep credit risk and market risk within manageable
limits so that these risks may not trigger any undesirable liquidity crunch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

43.5 Derivative Risk

Presently the Group does not have exposure in derivative products, and consequently is not exposed to
derivatives-related risk.

44. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Saudi
Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited on 25 February 2023.
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© Head Office: © Regional Office, Karachi: © Regional Office, Lahore:

Saupl Pak TOWER, &1-4 Likson SQUARE BUILDING Orrice No. 301, 37 FLoOR
JiMraH AVENUE Mo. 1, 9™ FLOGR Tricon CoORPORATE CENTRE,
[SLAMABAD, 265-R.A. LINE, KaRACHI 73-E, MaiN JalL Roap

GuLeenc I, LaHORE.
Puone: UAM 11 222 oo3
Fax: UAN M 222 004

SAUDIPAK@SAUDIPAK.COM

SAUDIPAKLTD
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